Inflation emerged as a key global challenge in FY23 as escalations in geo-political tensions led
to surge in energy prices, food and non-food commodities and disruption in global supply chains.
Inflation surged to a two-decade high in 2022 across the globe, with the consumer price inflation
peaking in late 2022. While there are signs of easing, trends in core inflation indicate that price
pressures remain broad-based and sticky.

To curb in rising inflation, central banks across the world initiated monetary tightening viz., raising
interest rates and curbing liquidity. The monetary policy rates have been hiked by 5% in the US
and 2.50% in UK until May’23. RBI, on its part, raised the monetary policy rate 6 times by 2.5%
since May'22 to 6.5% in Feb'23 and sharply reduced systemic liquidity. Taking into account the
easing of Crude oil prices and expectation of a normal monsoon in its April 2023 MPC meeting,
the CPI inflation forecast was revised to 5.2% for FY 2023-24 from an earlier projection of 5.3%
and is within RBI's tolerance threshold 2% - 4%.

The tightening cycle may dampen the pace of economic growth this year and if sustained on a
prolonged basis, likely put pressure on the asset quality for financial services in general.

Globally the aggressive rate hikes have claimed several casualties — Credit Suisse in Europe,
regional banks in US Silicon Valley Bank, First Republic Bank, Signature Bank and many more.
Indian economy, with RBI's proactive assessment/approach, has faired better compared to the
global peers in the fight with inflation. The inflation trajectory for FY24 is lower, within the
regulator's comfort range. Geopolitical crises, global inflation, monsoon, and monetary policy
stance will be the key variables to be closely monitored that will weigh on the overall outiook.

The domestic, especially, rural consumption remains strong/steady and should improve earnings
for the sector, gradually assuaging the excessive strain of the pandemic years. Our business
expansion - branch rollouts and team expansion was completed in FY'22 and this year, we
focussed on improving productivity and portfolio quality.

in the backdrop of deeper understanding of our customers and better preparedness to scale the
business, we managed to achieve the highest ever growth in terms of disbursements and
portfolio. Third quarter of FY'23, we grossed Rs. 645 cr in quarterly or Rs. 230 cr of monthly
disbursement. We had some individual products crossing the Rs 100 crore disbursement in a
month, disbursed more than 100 crores of tractor loans in Oct'22 and disbursed more than 100
crores of MSME loans in Mar'23.

At the beginning of fourth quarter, Hindenburg published a report on Adani Group which lead to
excessive volatility in the capital markets for the Group companies. As a result, the term facilities
processing for Adani Capital have been taking longer than usual. We adopted a cautious stance
to conserve liquidity during this period and moderated the monthly disbursements by ¢. 25-30%.
The business fund requirements during this period were met through portfolio income and




accruals, undrawn sanctions, direct assignment transactions and co-lending program. in May'23,
the Supreme Court appointed Committee, in its report, has addressed all issues raised in the
Hindenburg report and found nothing adverse related to the Group.
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AUM grew ¢.63% YoY to Rs. 3,337 cr from Rs. 2,050 cr as of Mar'22. The on-book loan assets
were Rs. 2,728 cr as on Mar 31, 2023 compared with Rs. 1,878 crin the previous year. Rajasthan
and Karnataka continued to be our largest states and contributed 65% of the AUM albeit a shade
lower than 68% last year. As our teams and infrastructure strengthened, new states — Andhra
Pradesh and Telengana State, are gaining ground and contributed ¢. 12% from under 5% last
year. We see the residual impact of Covid waning in Maharashtra and Gujarat and have
selectively relaxed our stance in these states.




In FY24, we propose to balance out the product focus across states and improve the branch and
team presence in these states. Overall, we will resume the diversification across products and
geographies which we had altered to adapt to Covid developments.

From a product perspective, the mix is balanced with MSME including Supply Chain Finance
contributing c. 47% and our wheels portfolio — Tractor Loans and CV loans contributing 33% and
20% respectively. Over the medium term, MSME is expected to be around 55-60% of the overall
portfolio.

i Brasches! AHEPL We now have 168+ branches across 8 states and
cover western and southern states of the country.
FY23 was largely a year of consolidation and we
focused to streamiine the new branches, opened
toward end of FY22, to be more productive and
efficient.
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In FY'23, we added 26 branches (branch count
was 142 as of March 31, 2022), expanded our
team to 2,122 (1,648 in the previous year) and
added over 40,300 new borrower customers.
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The gross disbursements increased steadily every quarter throughout the year, except for the
fourth quarter due to reason attributed to Hindenburg report. In Q4, the gross disbursement for
branch products was Rs. 519 cr as compared to Rs. 655 cr in Q3. We had consciously adopted
cautious stance and temporarily reduced disbursements on account of the uncertainties and
excessive market volatilities caused by the release of the Hindenburg Report on Adani Group.
Overall, during the year, Adani Capital disbursed loans aggregating 2,143 cr up 87% compared
with Rs. 1,144 crin FY22. Incrementally, for term products, gross disbursement mix was secured
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MSME Loans (41%), Farm Loans (34%) and CV Loans (24%). This year added approximately
40,370 fresh borrower customers taking the total active borrowers at 72,736.
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Our short term Supply Chain Finance portfolio averaged Rs. 265 cr throughout the year and
closed the year at Rs. 165 cr or 5% of the portfolio.

New states — AP, TS, MP and TN collectively contributed closer to a fourth of the volumes, Rs.
473 cr of gross branch disbursements and now contribute ¢.16% of the overall portfolio.
Increasing traction in new states across product lines will diversify the geographic spread of the
portfolio going forward.

The market interest rates hardened with monetary policy rate hikes and so did our borrowing
costs. From a product sourcing mix perspective, for our wheels portfolio — Tractor Loans and CV
Loans, we altered our focus to source more used vehicle loans with 60:40 Used:New mix. This
would protect our NIMs, reduce sourcing costs — dealer payouts, Interest Free Trade Advance
(IFTA) and our experience for portfolio quality has been better for a used and refinance book.

In second half of the year, in partnership with CSC, we rolled out a pilot for lead referral in
Rajasthan with 1500 CSC centers. Promotional activities — banners/hoardings, announcement
over PA system etc were undertaken around these locations. Overall, we are satisfied with the
response having generated 7,230 leads of which 574 loans aggregating Rs. 47.5 cr were
disbursed during the 6 month period.
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We follow a model-wise location specific dynamic business/product mix, based on the historical
performance and real time on-ground feedback. Our sourcing philosophy emphasizes self-
sourcing, existing customer references and lays weightage to borrower experience, land holding,
repayment track record.

For FY23, Rajasthan and Karnataka with its stronger field presence continued to contribute c.
60% of the gross disbursements but new states Andhra Pradesh, Telangana and Madhya
Pradesh are gaining ground as its team and infrastructure improves. The states grossed over
23% of the disbursements this year and expected to improve further in the following year.
Maharashtra and Gujarat contribution has been stable around 15%.

Our sourcing mix for the financial year had a higher proportion of Used unit funding, new vs
used/pre-owned mix stood at 43:57 with the overall being balanced with a 48:52 mix.

The portfolio quality augured well during the year.
Collection Efficiency (emi receipt/ emi billing for the
month  ex  prepayment/foreclosures) ranged
between 81-91% and averaged around 86% for the
year. The overdue loans (Stage 2 and above)were
Rs. 27.8 crore or 2.5% of the book as of Mar'23.




Qur focus is largely on small and light commercial vehicle which provide last mile connectivity.
Individual owner drivers make up majority of our portfolio and the book has an average ticket size
of our portfolio is c. Rs. 5 lakh.
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The portfolio is balanced across all states. New states, Andhra Pradesh, Telangana each
contributed 17% of gross disbursement in the year. Teams are adequately and proportionately
staffed across states and accordingly the business is evenly distributed.

This year we focussed more on used unit finance and the used vs new mix was 74:26 and overall
portfolio had a mix of 69:31. The used unit funding sourcing focus will continue for CV Loans.

The waning impact of Covid on the sector greatly improved our portfolio quality. Monthly
Collection Efficiency (instalment received for billing month/billing only for the month) ranged
between 91%-96% and averaged 94% for the year. As of Mar'23, the overdue loans (Stage 2 and
above) were Rs. 31.9 or 4.8% of book compared with Rs. 34.5 crore or 9.75% in the previous
year.
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In line with our aim to support
entrepreneurs, we provide fully
collateralized small business loan
to small and micro enterprise to
help them grow their business —
extension of shop, working capital
requirement, buying of new
equipment. With average ticket
size of Rs. 10.5 lakh, approximately
20% of the loans are to essential
services value chain - Grocery and
Medical stores.

The Covid years 2020-2022, were largely focused on Rajasthan followed by Karnataka as
borrower businesses in other states Maharashtra and Gujarat were affected on account of
elongated lockdowns. During the time, we also ventured deeper in the RJ and KN in addition to
our initial branch network which has helped us build a strong distribution infrastructure in these

states.

Rajasthan and Karnataka disbursed 51%
(previous year 62%) and 26% (24%) of
gross disbursements. New states -
Andhra Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh,
Telengana and Tamil Nadu together
contributed c¢. 16% of the gross
disbursements. We are reinforcing
teams/branches in these states to
balance our business across states.

Collection Efficiency (instalment received for billing month/billing only for the month) ranged
between 96-98% and averaged 87% for the year. The overdue loans (Stage 2 and above) were

Rs. 46.2 crore or 3.4% of the book as of Mar'23.




Anchors) and have over 330 active MSME borrowers.

Our supply chain finance is an anchor
. driven program where the anchor

involvement/commitment is high and
ongoing. We provide short term finance
to address working capital requirement

- of small and medium enterprises

through our fully digital platform for end
to end customer engagement

We have onboarded 38 Anchors (3

- Adani Group and 36 non-Group

We have been building granularity in this portfolio also and have gradually bring down share of
the relatively bulkier Vendor Finance portfolio. In Mar'21, when the book almost equally split
between Dealer and Vendor Finance, in Mar'23, the Vendor Finance is approximately a fourth in
of the Supply Chain portfolio. In FY23, we did gross disbursements of Rs. 1,700 cr, up from Rs.

1,486 cr in previous year, at an average yield of 13.6%.

During the year, the portfolio averaged around Rs. 265 c, closing book as of Mar 31, 2023 was
approximately Rs. 165 cr. In the following year, this portfolio is expected to be scaled back to Rs.

250-300 cr.

SUMMARY (Rs. Cr) FY2023 FY 2022 FY 2021
AUM 3,337 2,050 1,294
O  Loan Assets* 2,728 1,878 1,183
g é Net Worth 628.2 512.0 350.2
g @ Borrowings 2,260 1896.5 980.1
Deposits/investments 118.5 541.8 143.2
- interest Income# 513.5 253.2 180.7
E {-) Interest Expense 188.5 107.4 85.1
Z  Net Interest Margin (NIM) 325.0 145.7 105.6
E {+) Non Interest Income 4.1 1.0 0.8
tﬁ (-} Operating Expenses 161.6 105.2 758
= Pre-provisioning operating Profit (PPOP) 167.5 41.6 30.6
§ Impairment 36.5 226 4.7

- ECL provision 145

6.0 2.8



SUMMARY (Rs. Cr) FY2023 Fy 2022 FY 2021

- Loss on repo / write-off 20.9 8.6 1.9
- SCF write-off 1.1 7.9 0.0
Depreciation 9.2 7.2 58
Profit Before Tax 121.8 11.9 20.1
Tax 31.1 4.8 3.8
Profit After Tax 90.7 74 16.3
CRAR 20.31% 24.71% 26.22%
» Debt/Equity Ratio 3.60 3.70 2.80
g Gross NPA % / Net NPA 1.47% /0.90% 1.49%/ 0.98% 1.38%/ 0.68%
é Cost to Net Income 49.1% 71.7% 71.3%
m Net Interest Income (NIM) (inci pf) 13.2% 10.3% 89.6%
X Return on Assets (RoA) 3.7% 0.5% 1.5%
Return on Equity (RoE) 16.3% 1.6% 4.8%

“including accrued interest, net of provisions
# Includes revenue from operations

AUM grew ¢.63% YoY from Rs. 2,050 cr as of Mar'22 to Rs. 3,337 cr. The on-book portfolio
registered a growth of 45% to Rs. 2,728 cr in the period. In the last 3 years given the covid related
slowdown and with our focus on small ticket retail loans, AUM have seen a CAGR of ¢. 37%.

Our business is now achieving scale leading to improving operational leverage and efficiencies
thus improving overall profitability. The Total income was Rs. 190.7 crin FY21, Rs. 253.2 crin
FY22 and more than doubled to Rs. 513.2 crin FY23.

The net interest margin (NIM) has stayed healthy since inception. In FY23, Net Interest Margin
grew at 123% to Rs. 325 cr this year. NIM (%) expanded to 13.2% compared to 10.3% in FY22.
Under the IGAAP framework NIM was at 11.6%.

Branch expansion phase was completed in FY22 and this year we focussed on increasing
productivity to improve operational efficiency. For FY23, the Cost to Net Income ratio improved to
49.1% which is significant improvement over previous two financial years - 71.3% (FY21) and
71.7% (FY22).

Pre-provisioning operating profit jumped to Rs. 167.5 cr from Rs. 41.6 crin FY22. The net profit
jumped to Rs. 90.7 cr this year compared to Rs. 7.1 crin FY22,




Company is well capitalized with CRAR as of March 31, 2023 at 20.31% comfortably above the
RBI benchmark of 15%. The capital adequacy levels stayed over 20% throughout the year,

Month Tier | Tier ll CRAR
Jun 30, 2022 20.20% 3.16% 23.36%
Sep 30, 2022 18.58% 2.86% 21.44%
Dec 31, 2022 17.36% 2.75% 20.11%
Mar 31, 2023 17.63% 2.68% 20.31%

Gross fresh borrowings for the year aggregated Rs. 1,221 cr and the closing borrowings were
Rs. 2,272 cr (19% higher over previous year). Overall, the funding requirement was partly offset
by Direct Assignment transaction and Co-lending program.

Leverage during year was moderate and under 4X during the year and the D/E ratio of 3.6 times
as of Mar'23.

The return on equity (ROE) comfortably stayed upwards of 14% for most part of the year and was
16.3% for the FY. Return on Assets (ROA) was 3.7% for the year ended March 31, 2023.

The excesses caused by Covid are gradually easing out reflected by the NPA trend since the
Covid outbreak,

March 31, 2021 - 1.38%

March 31, 2022 - 1.49%

March 31, 2023 — 1.47% (revised IRAC norms) & 1.22% (under old norms which is comparable
to previous years)

GNPA numbers for 2021 and 2022 have largely absorbed the impact of the Covid waves on the
portfolio and were actually stable in the given periods. Our performance was better than our peers
and we attribute this to our product strategy, prudent underwriting framework and collection
strategy.



The GNPA improved from 1.49% to 1.22% in Mar'23 (90+ DPD basis) which in addition to the
focussed efforts by our on-ground Collections and Sales team, normalisation of borrower’s
financial health.

Effective Oct 1, 2022, the revised framework on recognition and upgradation of NPA's for NBFCs
was implemented and under the revised framework, the GNPA was 1.47%. There was a
momentary increase in Dec'22 to 2.39% from 1.54% in Sep'23. The Stage 2 delinquent or the
portfolio at risk (PAR) showed improvement during the year and was 3.8% of the AUM by end of
the year.

PAR (Stage

Month  GrossNPA | NetNPA | 90+DPD 24)
| " 7 . . Rscr}%AUM
Mar 31,2022  1.49% 0.98% 1.49% 109.7 | 5.3%

Jun 30, 2022 1.43% 0.93% 1.43% 116.4|5.0%
Sep 30, 2022 1.54% 1.00% 1.54% 140.6 | 5.2%
Dec 31, 2022 2.39% 1.71% 1.80% 152.214.7%
Mar 31, 2023 1.47% 0.90% 1.22% 126.9 | 3.8%

Tractor Loans 874 32% 3.5 8.3 0.95%
CV Loans 555 20% 52 8.3 1.50%
MSME Term Loans 1077 39% 8.0 17.3 1.60%
Supply Chain Finance 168 6% 2.8 0.9 0.56%
Sub-total - Own Book 2675 34.8 1.30%
Acquired Portfolio - MSME

Term Loans (secured) — Essel 53 2% 15.4 52 9.84%
Finance

Total- Adani Capital 2728 40.0 1.47%

Early warning signals (EWS) triggers have been modified to be more stringent, especially with
respect to the early bounces which are monitored and allocated to Collections team in the bucket
1 (30 days overdue) instead of bucket 2 earlier (60 days overdue). We have also increased the
involvement of Sales to closely monitor the freshly onboarded cases. In the revised format sales
team has collection responsibility till 12 months on board (MOB) instead of 6 MOB practised
earlier. This helps in establishing a better connect and strong relationship with borrower in the
initial phase of the loan which adds to another guardrail for Sales team to source good quality
loans.



The Collection Efficiency,
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Stage wise Provision as of March 31, 2023

Loan

Asset portfolio g
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Stage 1 (0 - 30 dpd) 2,608
Stage 2 (31 - 90 dpd) 82
Stage 3 (90+ dpd) 40
Total Loans and Advances 2,728
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ECL Provisioning Details (Rs.Cr)

Assels

95%
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95%
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95.5%
3.0%
1.5%
100%

88% 8

6% 86%
76% 88% 94%
72% 94% 97%
81% 88% 91%

Provision § Provision

(Rs. cr)

(%)

17.1 0.7%
4.8 5.9%
15.7 39.2%
37.6 1.4%

Mar-22
Stage 3 Assets 40.00 28.37
% Portfolio in Stage 3 1.47% 1.49%
ECL Provision % Stage 3 39.18% 35.06%
Stage 1 and 2 Assets 2,687.75 1,873.56
% Portfolio in Stage 1 and 2 98.53% 98.51%
ECL Provision % Stage 1 and 2 0.82% 0.73%
Total Assets 2,727.75 1,901.94
Total ECL Provision 37.63 23.65
ECL Provision % 1.38% 1.24%
Coverage Ratio (Total Provision to 94% 83%
Stage3)

As of Mar 31, 2023, total ECL provisions were Rs. 37.6 cr which is 94% of Gross NPAs. Pursuant
to revised NPA recognition norms effective Oct'22, there was an incremental NPA recognition of
Rs. 6.8 cr for which additional provisioning was made at 10% i.e. Rs. 0.68 Cr. The point to note
here is that some of these borrowers have been paying but are unable to clear all overdues in a
single instance and hence are classified as NPAs as required under the revised IRAC guidelines.
While the ECL provision on the Stage 3 assets was 39.18% (under revised guidelines), the PCR

or ECL coverage on S0+DPD borrowers increased to 45% from 35% in previous FY.

the monthly billing
(prepayment/repayments excluded) trends has been improving closer to pre-Covid levels,




We were rationale in restructuring borrower accounts during covid. The total restructured portfolio
as of March 31, 23 was Rs. 25.9 cr or 0.95% of AUM. With a strong in-house collection team (soft
& hard collection), duly supported by the call centre and robust in house legal recovery
mechanism has ensured timely collection/ recovery.

v

MSME Loans (secured)

Supply Chain Finance 2 3

Sub-total - Own Portfolio 99 135 10.1
Acquired Portfofio: Essel Finance - MSME Loan 111 19.1 179 34
(secured)

Total 210 259 314 44.1

As we finance micro and small enterprise, majority of our portfolio qualifies as ‘Priority Sector’.
This supports getting fresh onlending limits / facilities from banks and even generates higher
interest for pool purchases by banks as it helps meet the bank’s priority sector lending target
requirements.

Borrowings as at March 31, 2023 amounted to 2,272 crore as against Rs, 1,896 cr in the previous
year and were c. 78% of funds employed as at March 31, 2023. Of the total borrowings, bank
borrowings consisted 71%, capital market - debentures and commercial paper — 8% and direct
assignment / co-lending program constituted 21%.

Bank LTL
66% Instrument
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Borrowings: Rs. 2,272 cr {FY 22@ Rs 1,898 ¢r) DA — Rs. 447 ¢r | Co-Lending ~ Rs. 164 cr

During the year, fresh borrowings amounted to Rs. 1,223 cr from 10 lenders (including NCDs of
Rs. 98 cr and CPs of Rs. 25 cr). Gross repayment of Rs. 886.5 cr debt during the year.

Rs ers

Opening Borrowing - Apr'2z2 1901.7
Repayment - Bank Loan 688.5
NCD/CPs 198.0

OD/WCDL 349

Availment - Bank Loan 1075.0
NCD/CPs 148.0
OD/MWCDL/ICD 69.5

Closing Borrowing - Mar'23 2272.9

Direct Assignment and Co-lending Partnerships

Banks, both private and public sector, are increasingly keen on growing their retail asset books.
Over the past 2 years, we see an increase in appetite for pool purchases and co-lending
partnerships. With majority of our book qualifying as priority sector, appetite from public sector
banks has been strong.

This year the share of DA/Co-lending book in overall funding pie increased to 21% from 7% last
year. Given the inclination from lenders/investors, and diversifying the liability mix, we expect
the share to be between 25-30% of gross fund requirement annually.

We continue to widen our investor base and now have established relationship with over 9
lenders/investors for direct assignment transactions. In FY’'23, in addition to banking investors,
we concluded DA transaction with 1 new non-banking investor.

Direct Assignment — During the year, we concluded assignment transactions of Rs. 517 cr across
Tractor Loans, MSME loans and CV loans with 4 investors in 10 tranches.



Co-lending program — Overall banks have made lot of progress with the IT infrastructure and their
internal credit policies / processes to expand this vertical and we see an increasing interest for
forming partnership amongst the public sector and private banks. Our co-lending program is live
with 2 lenders for Tractor Loans and CV Loans and this year we have concluded transactions of
Rs 216.3 crs spread across 7 tranches. We expect more partnerships to be entered into over the
medium term.

Tractor Lo

MSME Loan, Rs.6 cr, 6%
Rs.2897 cr,
40% #2 Loan,
Gross Sale - 1cr, Gross Sale -

Rs. 733 cr #2 Rs. 100 cr

MSME Loan, Rs.67
cr, B7% #1

Closing Borrowng (Rs. cr) & COF (%)
Our overall cost of funds (COF)

7% 2319 2263 zzz increased c. 51 bps to 9.01% in Mar'23
21%0 - 029%  88% compared to Mar'22. The average COF
gx f%%» w_]B ?@,8?&‘5 ) Wigé,}vﬁgyg% iif for the year, however, was c. 8.62%.
1350 B51% S B - o
e gy BM B0 The COF improved in Q1 and reversed
7so Lo gy trend once the RBI commenced
Mar-22 Apr-22 Jun-22 Sep-22 Dec-22 Mar-23 monetary policy tightening from May'22.
i Closing Borrowing s GOF - Qverall 88% of the borrowing are ﬂoating rate —

MCLR linked and repriced during the year. The borrowing rates on fresh term loan were largely
between 8.50-9.00%.

With macro economic developments, the borrowing costs on our outstanding loans and fresh
loans are expected to increase in medium term for FY24, InFY 23, the average increase in MCLR
rates is around 125bps compared to 250bps hike in monetary policy repo rate and accordingly
the borrowing costs are likely to reset by 50-75bps during FY24. Our focus for FY24 is to control
this increase by negotiating tighter credit spreads with the existing lenders for fresh borrowings.
Broadly speaking, with inflation tapering off the trajectory, interest rate is also expected to reverse
and we will also focus on revising the reset to index to 3 month or 6 month MCLR instead of 1
year MCLR.



699 During the year,

%% Liguidity Buffer adequate liquidity
575 buffer was maintained
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uncertainties with

respect to fresh funding
limts and support
growing business
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undrawn sanctions for
Term Loan facilities,
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ments BOD UMt # Undrawn Limit total Hquidity buffer is c.
Rs. 436 cr.
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Since inception, we have maintained a matched ALM structure with all borrowings in the 3-5 years
tenor. On the asset side, especially for the MSME Loans, we observe an annual prepayment rate
of 10-12%. For CV Loan and Tractor Loans is pre-payment are relatively low between 2-4%.

Contractual Plot Behavioral Plot
Al ' s
2% e &% 3% £ % 5% 0% 134%  128% 7% 4TR 1% 2% 9 0%

With prepayment, the average tenor of MSME loan is between 6-7 years and accordingly, while
an ALM statement prepared according basis contracted maturities would suggest a gap of -8%,
-7% in the upto 1 year and 1-3 year segment, when in reality, on a portfolic behavioral basis,
there is a surplus of 1% and 2% respectively in these buckets.




CRSIL Ratings has retained company’s long term credit rating at ‘CRISIL AA -’ (High Degree of
Safety) with a stable outlook and highest short term rating (including Commercial Paper) at
CRISIL A1+,

Our Risk management framework has 4 pillars as below:

«  Dynamic credit risk policy
» Underwriting standards

» Risk Analytics
Collections management

Adani capital manages the credit risk through a balanced, structured credit policy framework -
well-defined selection criteria, boundary conditions and deviations. Risk based approval authority
is delegated by our Board of Directors and the Risk Management Committee and our risk
governance framework ensures adherence to the approval matrix. The credit policy is very
dynamic in nature and reviewed and calibrated regularly, based on the micro and macro industry
changes.

The fundamentals of the underwriting regarding the credit, capacity, collateral and capital is
ascertained through a well-trained team with adequate experience in respective product and
geography. Most of the verifications - KYC, bank statements, Income Tax returns, property
verifications, vehicle registration details are done digitally and part of the ever-evolving digital
underwriting journey. The team is regularly trained on policy and overall risk management.

We have a comprehensive portfolio monitoring mechanism. Our Risk Analytics team uses historic
information to extrapolate trends which presents opportunities to better identify, measure and
mitigate risk. The team integrates multiple sources of data which includes internal ~transactional
and behavioural data, external data - credit bureau and market information. A well-tuned early
warning system helps us identify and take preventive measures to arrest any deterioration of the
portfolio. The Risk analytics team provides valuable feedback for Credit policy configuration.




Risk analytics support deeper customer insights for better decisioning by way of predictive and
perceptive information.

Data drawn / inference help to predict risk from a micro and macro point of view.

With a strong emphasis on debtor management, we have a well-defined organization structure
and SOPs for overdue accounts. We leverage technology for digital collection (multiple channels
-~ NACH, e-Nach, UPI) and call center support for regular pre-presentation reminders, overdue
follow-ups. Our rule-based collection management system provides a 360-degree visibility of
customers to our field team.

We have a strong dedicated debtor management team which includes a robust legal recourse
cell.

Adani Capital has an adequate system of internal control in place which has been designed to
provide a reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining proper accounting controls, monitoring
of operations, protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with regulations and
for ensuring reliability of financial reporting.

Adani Capital has robust internal audit program, where the Group level internal auditors conduct
a risk-based audit with a view to not only test adherence to laid down policies and procedures but
also to suggest improvements in processes and systems.

At Adani Capital, we believe that key pillars to our business are people, processes, products and
technology. Our endeavor is to create a conducive environment in which all four pillars work in
harmony for the success of the organization and its people. We believe people are our biggest
assets and they will play a stellar role in the growth and success of the Company.

The Company believes that people are its key assets and focuses on nurturing and developing
human talent that delivers continued growth & customer delight. Lots of importance is placed on
recruiting quality employees and they are groomed internally to take on higher responsibilities
within the organization. Further on the job training and induction is imparted to staff to have a
better understanding of the company, its culture and business. These initiatives coupled with
adequate compensation levels, including appropriate incentive schemes matched with the market
and good employee welfare schemes has helped us retain top talent.

Adani Capital had 2117 employees as on March 31, 2023.



Reward and Recognition Program —-The Company has introduced a comprehensive
reward and recognition program for its employees to recognize their stelar performance
throughout the year.

Employee happiness and wellness Program - The Company has introduced multiple
employee engagement as well as wellness related programs for its employees. For
example. cricket tournament, Festivals celebrations, Dance and singing competitions,
Zumba Session, Talk on sedentary lifestyle etc.

Other initiatives
a. Retention of top talent is now made an important part of all people manger's KRA/
KPls.
b. The company has launched various Sales & Collections related contests, wherein
employees who have achieved the set business parameters have a chance to
travel to international & domestic destinations.

FY23 ended as a mixed bag for us,

Tough macro economic developments causing cost pressures from the borrowing side,
Temporary risk aversion caused by the Hindenburg report on the Adani Group delaying
fresh funding discussion in Q4,

On the positive side, with the improving scale and operational leverage, we had the
highest profitability recorded this year,

Business across states is gaining traction and this has reflected in the disbursement
volumes.

We look at FY24 with a lot of hope and expect to achieve trend growth from second quarter.
This year our focus shall be on,

Geographic diversification - improve sourcing for MSME Loans and Tractors from the
recent states.

Increase focus on alternate sourcing partnership — QR codes, CSC partnership, lender
partnership programs.

Review & benchmark performance at a business executive, branch and segment level to
increase productivity

Focus on people, process, productivity and profitability



Statements made in the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations may be “Forward-looking statements” within the
meaning of applicable laws & regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or
implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include
economic conditions affecting demand supply and price conditions in the domestic & overseas
markets in which the Company operates, changes in the government regulations, tax laws & other
statutes and other incidental factors.

For Adani C}pitat Pvt. Ltd.

Garav Gupka
Managing Director & CEQ
DIN- 01669109

Date: August 14, 2023
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Board's Report

To,
The Members
Adani Capital Private Limited

Your Directors’ are pleased to present the Annual Report of your Company along with the
Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Summary of Financial Results for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 is as under:
(Amount Rs. In Million)

For the year For the year
Sr. ; ended ended
No, Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2023 2022
1 Gross Income 5176.06 2541.95
2 Finance Cost 1.885.57 107414
3 Impairment on Financial Instrument 364.78 225.63
4 Employee Benefit Expenses 1,200.86 750.30
5 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 92.19 70.98
6 Other Expenses 414,91 261.34
7 Net Profit Before Tax 1,217.75 119,56
8 Provision for Taxation 310.86 47,63
9 Net Profit After Tax 906.79 71.93
10 Other Comprehensive income .71 3.88
1" Total Comprehensive Income 905.08 75.81
Transfer to Statutory reserve created u/s
12| 45.1C of RBI Act 181.36 14.39
DIVIDEND

No Dividend was declared for the current financial year due to conservation of Profits to
meet future business requirements of the Company.

INFORMATION ON THE STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

The information on overall industry structure, economic developments,
performance and state of affairs of the Company, risk management systems, and
operations of the Company is given in the Management Discussion & Analysis
Report which is forming part of Annual Report of the Company.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the year under review, your Company earned the gross income of Rs. 5,176.06
million as against Rs. 2,541.95 million in the previous year. The total expenditure during
the year under review was Rs. 3,958.31 million as against Rs. 2,422.39 million in the
previous year. Net Profit After Tax was increased to Rs. 906.79 million as on year under
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review as against Rs. 71.93 million in previous year. The total Comprehensive Income was
Rs. 905.08 million as against Rs. 75.81 million in the previous year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Authorised Share Capital
During the year under review, there was no change in the authorised share capital of the
Company.

The Authorised share capital of the company for the year ended 315 March 2023 is Rs. 300
million (Rupees Thirty Crores) divided into 30 million (Three Crores) Equity Shares of Re.
10/- each.

Paid-up Share Capital
During the year under review the Company has issued and allotted 4,54,545 equity shares
of Rs. 10 each, at a premium of Rs. 540 per share on 27" September 2022.

The Paid share capital of the company for the year ended 315t March 2023 is Rs. 232.09
million divided into 2,32,09,086 fully paid-up Equity Shares of Re. 10/- each.

LOAN OUTSTANDING

During the financial year 2022-23, the Company’'s outstanding loan book amount is Rs.
22,601.32 million as against Rs. 18,965.02 million for the previous financial year ended
2021-22.

CREDIT RATINGS

The Company's borrowings have the following Credit Ratings:

. Rating / Outlook
Nature of borrowing CRISIL
Short Term Bank Loans CRISIL AT+
Long Term Bank Loans CRISIL AA-/Stabile
Commercial Paper CRISIL A1+
Short term Non - Convertible Debentures CRISIL A1+
Long term Non-Convertibie Debentures CRISIL AA-/Stable
Subordinated Tier |l debentures CRISIL AA-/Stable

DEBENTURES

During the year under review, the Company has raised Rs. 1,230 /- million through Non-
Convertible Debentures ("NCDs") on private placement basis including Subordinated Tier
Il debenture of Rs 250 million. As on 31 March 2023, the outstanding NCDs stood at Rs.
2,073 million,

Credit Rating assigned to the NCDs is mentioned above. During the financial year under
review, interest on Non-Convertible Debentures issued on private placement basis was
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paid on due date and there were no instances of interest amount not claimed by the
investors or not paid by the Company.

Your Company being NBFC, is exempted from the requirement of creating Debenture
Redemption Reserve (DRR) on privately placed debentures. Therefore, no DRR has been
created for the Debentures issued by your Company on private placement basis.

Disclosure under Master Directions issued by RBI for Non-Convertible Debentures:

* The total number of non-convertible debentures which have not been claimed by
the investors or not paid by the Company after the date on which the Non-
Convertible Debentures became due for redemption: Rs. Nil

* The total amount in respect of such Debentures remaining uncliaimed or unpaid
beyond the date of such Debentures become due for redemption: Rs. Nil

DEBENTURE TRUSTEE
The details of the Debenture trustees of the Company are as under:

Axis Trustee Services Limited

Axis House,

Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli,
Mumbai - 400025,

Maharashtra

Email: debenturetrusteeaxistrusiee.in
Website: www axistrustes in

LOANS FROM BANKS / FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, the Company has availed Term Loans/WCDL/OD facilities of
Rs. 12,825 million from various banks / Financial Institutions. As on March 31, 2023, the
outstanding lcans stood at Rs, 22,601.32 million.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any public deposits within
the meaning of the Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under as
well as not accepted any public deposit within the meaning of the RBI Direction, as the
Company is registered as NBFC Company not accepting Public Deposits,

NON- PERFORMING ASSETS AND PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCY

Your company adhered to the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as amended
from time to time. The Company has created provisions for contingencies on Standard
Assets in accordance with the RBI Directions.

The amount of Gross Non- Performing Assets (NPAs) as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 400.04
million, which is equivalent to 1.47% of the loan portfolio of the Company, as against Rs.
283.82 million i.e., 1.49% of the portfolio as at March 31, 2022. The Net NPA as at March
31,2023 is Rs. 243.30 million i.e., 0.97% of the loan portfolio as against Rs. 184.34 million

dani House, 56, Shrimall Society, Navrangpura, Ahrmedabad 380 009, Guiaral, india



i.e., 0.98% of the portfolio as at March 31, 2022.The total cumulative provisions towards
loan and other assets as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 376.32 million as against 236.52 million
in the previous year.

In order to prevent frauds in loan cases involving muiltiple lending from different banks /
NBFCs, the Government of India has set up the Central Registry of Securitisation Asset
Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (CERSAI) under section 20 of the SARFAES]
Act 2002 to have a central database of all mortgages created by lending institutions. The
object of this registry is to compile and maintain data relating to all transactions secured
by mortgages. Accordingly, your Company is duly registered with CERSAI.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The Company is guided by the Risk Management Framework Policy framed in accordance
with the Directions issued by Reserve Bank of India.

The risk strategy laid down by your Company heips foster a disciplined culture of risk
management and control. In conjunction with these practices, your Company intends to
optimise its capital needs through growth, by achieving highest returns on capital
employed while managing risks appropriately.

Your Company continuously monitors loan portfolio. Portfolio level delinquency metrics
are tracked at regular intervals with focus on detection of early warning signals (EWS) of
stress. These limits are periodically reviewed based on changes in the macro-economic
environment, regulatory environment, and industry dynamics. Existing credit exposure in
the portfolio is continuously monitored and reviewed. Key sectors are analysed in detail to
suggest strategies, considering both risks and opportunities. Corrective action, if required,
is taken well in advance.

COMPLINACE WITH REGULATORY NORMS:

Your Company is a Non-Deposit Taking Systematically Important Non-Banking Financial
Company holding Certificate of Registration number B.0100567. Your Company is also
registered as Corporate Agent (Composite) holding Certificate of Registration number
CAQ0628 with Insurance Regulatory Development Authority.

PRUDENTIAL NORMS FOR NON-BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANIES

The Company is in compliance with the Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset
Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances, as issued by the Reserve Bank of
India, as may be applicable to the Company.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO (CAR) / CAPITAL TO RISK ASSETS RATIO (CRAR)

Capital Adequacy Ratio is also one of the guidelines provided by the RBI! to measure the
amount of capital, an NBFC retains compared to its risk. Capital Adequacy Ratio set
standards for NBFCs by looking at a NBFCs ability to pay liabilities, and respond to credit
risks and operational risks. An NBFC that has a good CAR has enough capital to absorb
potential fosses. Thus, it has less risk of becoming insolvent and losing lenders’ money.
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As per RBI Directions the Company is required to maintain a minimum capital adequacy
ratio of 15%.

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) of your Company as at 315 March, 2023 stood at
20.27%., which includes CRAR of Tier-| Capital at 17.59% and CRAR of Tier-ll Capital at
2.69%.

SPECIAL RESERVE (STATUTORY RESERVE CREATED U/S 45-IC OF RBI ACT)
Pursuant to the provisions of section 45-IC of RBI Act, the Company is required to create
a Special Reserve and transfer therein a sum not less than 20% of its Net-Profit, every year.

During the reporting financial year, your company has transferred the amount of Rs. 181.36
million in Special Reserve, as per the requirement of the section 45-IC of RBI Act. The
closing Balance of the said reserve as on 315 March 2023 is stood at Rs. 247.65 million.

COMPLIANCE WITH CRITICAL POLICIES AND CODES

Your Company has in place a Fair Practices Code (FPC), as required by RBI, which includes
guidelines on appropriate staff conduct when dealing with the customers and on the
organisation’s policies vis-3-vis client protection.

Your Company has in place a Board approved Know Your Customer & Anti Money
Laundering Policy (KYC & AML Policy) and compliance with the said Policy are adhered
with,

The Company has in place a Risk Containment Policy to establish an anti-fraud culture and
promote consistent organizational behaviour by providing guidelines to aid in fraud
detection and prevention. It will also communicate important deterrence message to staff
and third parties that the company is committed to a zero-tolerance approach to any fraud
committed.

To ensure the redressal of Grievance of Customers, your Company has a Grievance
Redressal Policy in place, which is available on the website of the Company i.e.,
www. adanicapital.in. The said Policy prescribed the detailed guideline and Turn Around
Time (TAT) to handle and resolve the Customer Complaints.

The Reserve Bank of India Act empowers RBI to levy a penalty on NBFCs for contravention
of the Act or any of its provisions. Your Company has complied with the said provisions of
all such directions, guidelines and provisions etc. and accordingly RBI has not levied any
penalty on your Company during the year.

HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Company has no subsidiary company. As on March 31, 2023, Adani Finserve Private
Limited (AFPL) is holding Company, which holds 100% sharehoiding in the Company.
Further, AFPL has transferred 11.43% shares to Greenlight Advisors LLP (GALLP) and
w.e.f. July 20, 2023, AFPL holds 88.57% shares in the Company.

se, 56, Shrimall Society, Navrangours, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujaras, India
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During the year under review, no Company become or ceased to be the Subsidiary, joint
venture, or associate company.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY
The composition of the Board of the company is as follows: -

* Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Managing Director & CEOQ
* Mr. Rajender Mohan Malia - Independent Director

* Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran - Independent Director

s Mr. Sagar Adani - Director

Your Company being Private Limited Company, none of the Directors are required to retire
by rotation,

During the year under review there was no change in the composition of Board of
Directors.

Mr. Rajender Mohan Malla was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company at
the 2nd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the Company, heid on
September 28, 2018. His tenure of five years is expiring on the ensuing AGM i.e., 7th AGM
of the Company.

During his first term as Independent Director of the Company, Mr. Rajender Mohan Malla
has made substantial contributions to the Board and his vast knowledge and experience
in the field of corporate business leadership and management benefited the Board's
decision-making process. Mr. Rajender Mohan Malla fulfils the criteria of Independence as
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 and criteria of fit and proper as defined as per the RBI
Directions.

Accordingly approval of Members is being sought to re-appoint Mr. Rajender Mohan Malla
as an Independent Director of the Company for another term (2nd term) of One year i.e,
from the date of ensuing AGM i.e. 7" AGM till the date of Eighth AGM of the Company to
be held in calendar year 2024, pursuant provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
Schedule IV of Companies Act, 2013 and provisions of Master Circular — "Non-Banking
Financial Companies - Corporate Governance (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015".

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Following officer is the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company as per the Requirement
of the Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

1. Mr. Gaurav Gupta - Managing Director & CEO
2. Mr. Viral Shah - Chief Financial Officer
3. Mr. Jitendra Chaturvedi - Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

During the year under review there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company.
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FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

As your Company is neither a Listed Company nor a public company having a paid-up
capital of Rs. 25 crores or more, the statement indicating the manner in which formal
annual evaluation has been made by the Board of its own performance and that of its
committees and individual Directors is not required to be disclosed.

POLICY AGAINST SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Company duly follows the Policy on prevention of sexual harassment and the said policy
seeks to protect women employees from sexual harassment at the place of work. The
primary objective of the same is to safeguard the interest of female employees in the
Company and also provides for punishment in case of false and malicious representations.
The Company spread awareness on the same by providing training to its employees at
regular intervals.

During the year, no complaint has been received by the Sexual Harassment Committee.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Since the Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company, the disclosure regarding
particulars of loans, guarantees given and security provided in the ordinary course of
business is exempted under the provisions of Section 186 (11) of the Act. Details of
Investments made by the Company is disclosed in the Financial Statements forming part
of Annual Report.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS

During the period under review 7 Board Meetings were held as per the following details:
8™ April 2022

239 May 2022

30" July 2022

27 October 2022

5% January 2023

31% January 2023

28" March 2023

Nowauwn -

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board
hereby submit its responsibility Statement; —

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2023 and of
the profit and loss of the Company for the year ended on that date:

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for

WYOW. 84anL oM

i Soclety, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarst, india

I3



Capital

safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and

other irregularities.

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

e) that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls
were adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate. The Internal Financial Control procedure
adopted by the Company are adequate for safeguarding its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. During the year under review,
the Internal Financial Controls were operating effectively, and no material or serious
observation has been received from the Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or
inadequacy of such controls.

AUDITORS

M/s Nangia & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, having FRN 002391C/N500069, as a
Statutory Auditors of the Company. The Statutory Auditors complies with the Eligibility
criteria as prescribed under the Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors
(SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs
(including HFCs) read with the applicable of Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS REPORT

The Auditors Report to the Members of the Company for the financial year ended March
31,2023, does not contain any qualification and is self-explanatory, hence does not call for
any comment of Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

Pursuant to Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules 2014 read
with Section 177(9) of the Act (as amended from time to time), the Company has in place
Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy ("Policy”) to enable Directors and employees to
report genuine concerns or grievances, significant deviations from key management
policies and reports any non-compliance and wrong practices, e.g., unethical behaviour,
fraud, violation of law, inappropriate behaviour / conduct, etc.

The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee / Board from
time to time. None of the Directors or employees have been denied access to the Audit
Committee of the Board.

The objective of this mechanism is to maintain a redressal system which can process all
complaints concerning questionable accounting practices, internal controls, or fraudulent
reporting of financial information.

"y

siety, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 3806 009 Gularar, indis



Capital

The Policy framed by the Company is in compliance with the requirements of the Act and
same is available on the website of the Company.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
The Company recognizes the responsibilities towards society and strongly intends to
contribute towards development of knowledge-based economy.

The Company has contributed INR 2.27 million (being 2% of average net profits for last 3
years) towards CSR activities in FY 2022-23 through the Adani Foundation, as per the
applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and CSR Policy of the Company. The Annual
Report on CSR containing the details on CSR spending is annexed as Annexure-1.

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of the following Members:
* Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran- Independent Director

*  Mr, Gaurav Gupta- Managing Director & CEQ

*  Mr. Sagar Adani- Director

The Company has also formulated a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which is
available on the website of the Company (https://www.adanicapital.in/Downicads)

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Details of Committee of Board inter-alia including Composition, Terms of Reference
and number of meetings are disclosed in Corporate Governance Report, as annexed as
Annexure-2,

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, KMP, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION

The company pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 has
formulated and adopted a Nomination & Remuneration Policy which is available on the
website of the Company i.e. hitps:/www. adanicapitalin/Downioads

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY,
EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR:

The Company duly ensures the Fit and Proper Criteria, as prescribed by RBI read with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of law, regarding the
appointment of Directors. Your Directors have submitted the required Disclosures and
Undertakings as required.

Ahrnedabad 380 009, Gujarat. India
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DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143 (12)
OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GEOVERNMENT
There were no frauds as reported by the Statutory Auditors under sub-section 12 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 along with Rules made there-under other than those which
are reportable to the Central Government,

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOS)

Members of the Company has approved Employee Stock Option scheme for attracting,
retaining and rewarding Employees of the Company. Board of the Company has granted
the options to the eligible employees of the Company, as detailed hereunder:-

Sr. No. | Particulars Employee Stock Option Scheme
I, Options granted Refer to the Note No. 57 of the Financial
i, The Pricing formula Statements

"I Options vested
V. Options exercised

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

All the related party transactions entered into during the financial year were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm's length pricing basis and none of the
transactions with the related parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013. In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has
formulated the Related Party Transaction Policy which is also available on the Company's
website (hitps://www.adanicapitalin/Downloads).

The Directors draw attention of the Members to Note No. 51 to the Financial Statements
which sets out related party transactions’ disclosures.

During the year under review, there were no material contracts or arrangements, or
transactions entered into by the Company with related parties. Form AQOC-2 is annexed as
Annexure-3 to this report.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES:

The Company does not fall within the purview of the provisions of disclosure of
Remuneration under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

ANNUAL RETURN
The Annual Return of the Company is available on the website of the Company at
https//www adanicapitalin/Downicads

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

Human Resource Development is considered important for effective implementation of
business plans. Constant endeavors are being made to offer professional growth
opportunities and recognitions, apart from imparting training to employees. During the
reporting year, in-house training programs were provided to employees, inter alia, in
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Code etc. Your Company’s total headcount stands at 2,117 employees as on 31 March
2023,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH
THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT.

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the company dated July 20, 2023,
the AFPL has entered into agreement with BCC Atlantis il Pte. Ltd. (An entity of Bain
Capital) (Hereinafter referred to as "Investor”) to transfer its shareholding/stake in the
Company to the aforesaid Investor, subject to the applicable regulatory approval.

Further, AFPL has transferred its 11.43% shareholding in the Company to Greenlight
Advisors LLP (GALLP) and w.e.f. July 20, 2023, AFPL holds 88.57% shares in the
Company.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status of your Company and its operations in future.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act, the rules made there under relating to
conservation of energy, technology absorption do not apply to your Company as it is not a
manufacturing Company. However, your Company has been increasingly using information
technology in its operations and promotes conservation of resources.

Details relating to Foreign Exchange Inflows and Outflows is given herein below:
Rs. in Millions

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

Foreign Currency Transaction (Qutflow)
1.96 2.37

Receivable and Payable outstanding in
foreign currency - -

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH THEIR
STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: NIL

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF:

NIL

nrimali Soclety, Mavrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Sularat, Indis
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your
Company has appointed M/s. Chirag Shah & Associates, Company Secretaries in whole-
time practice, based in Ahmedabad, to carry out the Secretarial Audit of the Company for
the year under consideration i.e., FY 2022-23.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers, mentioned in
Secretarial Audit Report provided by the aforesaid Secretarial Auditors in the prescribed
format i.e., MR-3, since the Company has ensured compliance of all the applicable
regulatory and statutory provisions of law(s). The report of the Secretarial Auditors is
annexed as Annexure-4,

Further, as there is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer is given by
the Statutory Auditors in their Audit Report and by the Company Secretary in practice in
their Secretarial Audit Report, hence there is no explanation or comments have been given
by the Board.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Your Directors wish to place on record their gratitude to the Reserve Bank of India,
insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, Office of Registrar of
Companies, BSE Ltd, the Company’s Customers, Creditors, Bankers, Investors, Members,
Vendors and others for the continued support and faith reposed in the Company. The
Board also places on record its deep appreciation for the dedication and commitment of
the employees at all levels. The Directors would also like to thank the Credit Rating
Agencies for their co-operation,
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
: Adani Capital Pvt, Ltd.

&

Y

. Mr. Gaurav Gupta
- Managing Directgr’ & CEO

DIN- 61669109

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 14, 2023




Ancewuye— 1

Annual Report on CSR Activities
for the Financial Year
2022-23

1. BRIEF OUTLINE ON CSR POLICY OF THE COMPANY.

The Board of Directors in its Meeting dated 29th June 2018 adopted the CSR
Policy of the Company in compliance with section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, '

a) The Company endeavors to contribute to CSR activities as specified
under Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. A corpus with an amount
at least 2% of the Average Net Profits* of the Company made during the
3 (Three) immediately preceding financial years will be made for this
purpose as per the provisions of the Act and rules made there under.

b) Asapartof CSR program, the Company plans to focus on the activities as
defined in the schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

Implementation of CSR Projects
The Company shall implement the identified CSR Projects by the following
means:

I. Direct Method

1. The Company may itself implement the identified CSR Projects
presently within the scope and ambit of the Thrust Areas as defined in
the Policy;

2. The Company may also implement the identified Projects presently
through its Foundation or Society which is involved in CSR activities,
within the scope and ambit of the Thrust Areas as defined in the
Policy.

3. The CSR Officer may engage external professionals/firms/agencies if
required, for the purpose of implementation of its CSR Projects.

4. The Company may collaborate with other companies, including its
Group Companies if required, for fulfilling its CSR objects through the
Direct Method, provided that the CSR Committees of respective
companies are in a position to monitor separately such CSR Projects.

II. Indirect Method

1. The Company may implement the identified CSR Projects through
Agencies, subject to the condition that:

Corporate office:

Adani Capital Private Limited Tel +91 22 6241 1200
One BKC, - Wing, 1004-1005, 10* fiQor, Fax +91 22 2652 0650
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) contact.acpi@adani.com
Mumbai 400051 www.adanicapital.com

Maharashtra, india
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Registered Office: Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009, Gujarat, India



» The activities pursued by the Agency are covered within the scope
and ambit of Schedule Vil to the Act provided

+ The Agency has an established track record of at least three years in
undertaking similar programs or projects, and

» The Company has specified the Project to be undertaken through
the Agency which shall preferably be in Thrust Areas, the modalities
of utilization of funds on such Projects and the monitoring and
reporting mechanism which shall be at least once in three months.

2. The Company may collaborate with other companies, including its holding
and subsidiary Companies and Group Companies if required, for fulfilling
its CSR objects through the Indirect Method provided that the CSR
Committees of respective companies are in a position to monitor
separately such Projects.

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:
Si. No. Name of Designation / Number off Number of
Director Nature of |meetings of CSR/meetings of CSR
Directorship | Committee held Committee
during the year | attended during
the year
1 Ms. Padma |Independent 1 1
Chandrasekaran] Director
(Chairperson)
2. Mr. Gaurav Managing 1 1
Gupta Director &
CEO
(Member)
3, [Mr. Sagar Adani 1 0
Director
(Member)

Corporate office:
Adani Capital Private Limited

One BKC, C- Wing, 1004-1005, 10% fl0or,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E)
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3. WEB-LINK WHERE COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE, CSR POLICY AND
CSR PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BOARD ARE DISCLOSED ON THE
WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY.

1) Company’s CSR Policy is available at the following weblink:-
httos//www.adanicapital.in/Downloads

2} Composition of CSR Committee is provided in point no. 2 of this report,
which also forms part of Annual Report. The report is also available on
the website of the Company.

4. Executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

The Company has contributed Rs. 22.67 lakh through Adani Foundation to
support to create international level schooling facilities at subsidized rate.

5(a). AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER SECTION 135(5): Rs.
1133.41 Lakh.

(b). TWO PERCENT OF AVERAGE NET PROFIT OF THE COMPANY AS PER
SECTION 135(5): Rs. 22.67 Lakh (After rounding off).

(c). SURPLUS ARISING OUT OF THE CSR PROJECTS OR PROGRAMMES OR
ACTIVITIES OF THE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEARS: Not Applicable, as there
is no surplus arising out of the CSR Project.

(d). AMOUNT REQUIRED TO BE SET OFF FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR, IF ANY: Not
Applicable

(e). TOTAL CSR OBLIGATION FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR (7A+7B-7C):  Rs.
22.67 Lakh.

6(a). Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than
Ongoing Project): Rs. 22 Lakhs (Ongoing Project).

(b). Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Rs. 0.67 Lakh.
(c). Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable.
(d). Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)): Rs. 22.67 Lakh

Corporate office:
Adani Capital Private Limited Tel +91 22 6241 1200

One BKC, C- Wing, 1004-1005, 10* fl0or, Fax +91 22 2652 0650
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E) contactacpi®adanioom
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CIN: U65990Gj2016PTLC0O93692
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(e). CSR Amount Spent for the Financial Year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Total Amount Amount transferred to any fund
Amount | transferred to Unspent |specified under Schedule VIl as per
Spent for | CSR Account as per | second proviso to section 135(5).
the section 135(6).
Financial
Year. (in
Rs.)
22,67,000 | Amount. Date of Name of | Amount. Date of
transfer. the Fund transfer.
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(f). EXCESS AMOUNT FOR SET OFF, IF ANY: Not Applicable

Sl

No.

Particular

Amount (in Rs.)

()

Two percent of average net profit of the
company as per section 135(5)

(in)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(iif)

Excess amount spent for the financial year

[GD-(0]

(iv)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous
financial years, if any

(v)

Amount available for set off in succeeding
financial years {{iii)-(iv)]

Carporate office:

Adani Capital Private Limited
One BKC, C- Wing, 1004-1005, 10* fl0or,
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7. DETAILS OF UNSPENT CSR AMOUNT FOR THE PRECEDING THREE FINANCIAL

YEARS: Not Applicable

SI. |Preceding Amount | Amount |[Amount transferred to|Amount |Deficie
No. |Financial jtransferred| SPeNt in| any fund specified | remaining | ncy, if
Year. |to Unspent the under Schedule Vil as to be any
CSR reporting per section 135(6), if| spent in
Account Financial any. succeeding
under | Year (in IName Date of| financial
section Rs.). of Amountltransfer, Y&2rs: (in
135 (6) (in the |(in Rs).
Rs.) Fund Rs.)
1. Fy-1 - - - . . - .
2. FY-2 - - - - . - .
3, FY-3 - - - - - - .
Total - - - - - - -

Yes

i

No v

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired:

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through
Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Corporate office;

Adani Capital Private Limited

One BKC, C- Wing, 1004-1005, 10* AQor,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E)}

Mumbai 400 051
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. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:




Sl. | Short Pincode | Date of | Amoun | Details of entity/ Authority/
No | particular | of the creatio |t beneficiary of the registered
s of the propert | n of CSR | owner
property |yor amount
or asset(s) spent
asset(s)
[including
complete
address
and
location
of the
property]
CSR Nam | Registere
Registratio | e d address
n
Number, if
applicable

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal

Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the

immovable property as well as boundaries)

9. SPECIFY THE REASON(S), IF THE COMPANY HAS FAILED TO SPEND TWO PER
CENT OF THE AVERAGE NET PROFIT AS PER SECTION 135(5): Not Applicable

For Adani Capital Pvt, Ltd.

A\

)\A

Gaurav Gupta
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 01669109

Date: August 14, 2023
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Annexure-2
Corporate Governance Report
Adani Capital Pvt. Ltd,

FY 2022-23
A) Corporate governance
1) Composition of the Board
Capaci Number of Board Remuneration
ty (i.e. Meetings No. of
Executiv shares
st e/ Nonf No. of held in
N Name Direct Executiv DiN other Salary and ]
o of or - e/ Direct and Sittin | Com convertibl
Direct | since ari;ma Held Attended| Of other | g missi | €
or ships | compe | Fee | on instrume
Promote n (Rs. (Rs. nts held
J sation | in in in the
nominee (Rs.in | Mmilli | mitio | NBFC
/ Million on) n
indepen )
dent)
1 M, 02-05- Independe 0013 7 & 10 Ni 1.20 Nit Nil
Rajender 2018 nt 6657 '
Mohan
Malla
2 s, 07-04- Independe 0660 7 5 4 Nil 1.20 Nil Nit
Padma 2021 nt 9477
Chandras
ekaran
3 M. *12-09- Managing 0166 7 7 ik Nil 26.30 Nit Nit
Gaurav 12016 Director & 9109
Gupta CEOQ
4 Mr. Sagar30-09-  Non 0762 7 2 g Nil Nil Nil NH
Adani 2016 Executive 6229

*Note: Mr. Gaurav Gupta was appointed as Managing Director & CEO w.e.f. 31-03-2021.

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous
financial year: Nil

Where an independent director resigns before expiry of her/ his term, the reasons
for resignation as given by her/him shall be disclosed: Nil

Details of any relationship amongst the directors /inter-se shall be disclosed: Nil



=

2) Committees of the Board and their composition

i. Names of the committees of the Directors and terms of reference:

Sr.
No.

Name of Committee and Members

Terms of Reference

1

Audit Committee

Recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors;

Review and wmonitor the auditor's
independence and performance and
effectiveness of audit process;
Examination of the financial statements
and the auditors’ report thereon;

Approval or any subsequent modification
of transactions with related parties
Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and
investments

Valuation of undertaking or assets of the
company as may be necessary

Evaluation of internal financial controls
and risk management systems;
Monitoring the end use of funds raised by
the Company

Review of the observations of the auditors,
if any

Review of financial statements before
submission of the same to the Board
focusing mainly on :

- changes in accounting policies and

practices;

- the going concern assumption;

- Compliance with accounting
standards;

investigate any matter specifically
referred by the Board

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee (NRC)

Formulate the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director.

Identify persons who are qualified to
become Director and persons who may be
appointed in Key Managerial and Senior
Management positions in accordance with
the criteria laid down in this policy.
Recommend to the Board, appointment
and removal of Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel.

To look into the entire gamut of
remuneration packages for the Executive
Director(s) and senior personnel's of the
Company and revise their remuneration
suitably within the limits prescribed under




any statutory acts, amendments,
modifications or enactments thereof

To formulate and implement one or more
Employees’ Stock Option Scheme(s) for
the benefit of the employees including
Directors of the Company,

To determine the commissions payable to
the Directors within the prescribed limits
and as approved by the shareholders of
the Company

To undertake such other acts or activities
as may be determined by the Board of the
Company.

And other Terms, as specified in
Nomination and Remuneration Policy,

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee (CSR Committee)

Formulate and recommend to the Board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility Palicy
which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by the company as specified in
Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013
Recommend the amount of expenditure to
be incurred on the activities referred to in
clause (i)

Monitor the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy of the company from
time to time,

Update the Board on the implementation
of various programs and initiatives,

Finance Committee

Allotment of all type of securities/money
market instruments on such terms and
conditions as may be agreed from time to
time in this regard.

Issue of shares certificate/ debenture
certificate/ letter of allotment or any type
of certificates which is required for the
allotment of the securities.

To borrow moneys

To invest funds of the Company.

To grant loans or give guarantee or provide
security in respect of loans

To consider and approve/accept the
letters of sanction by the term lending
institutions /Banks/NHB and other bodies
corporate, opening and/or closing of the
current accounts/cash
credit/overdraft/fixed deposits or other
account(s) with any bank and authorize
the Directors/officers of the Company for
the purpose.

To authorize operation of such accounts
of the company with its bankers and to
vary the existing authorization to operate
the same and granting of general/specific




53

power of attorney to the officers at the
branches for routine matters and any such
matters pertaining to the routine
functions.

¢ Toapprovethe change/s of rate of interest
of all loan products or on debentures,
debts or any other instruments/financial
products issued by the company.

e To open and close the current account(s)
with any bank(s) at any place outside the
territory of India and to finalize/vary the
authorization(s) to operate the same.

s To open and close the
securities/demat/custodian account(s)
with any depasitory/ participant at any
place in India and abroad and to
finalize/vary the authorization(s) to
operate the same.

¢ To consider and approve the split of share
certificate(s)/ Debenture
Certificate(s)/ all type of securities
certificate(s).

s To consider and approve the transfer/
transmission of shares/ Debentures/ all
type of securities.

s To consider and approve proposals for
direct assignment and securitization and
transfer of assets from time to time.

s Any other matter with as may be deiegated
by the Board from time to time.

Risk Management Committee
(RMC)

The Risk Management Committee shall be
responsible for setting up and reviewing risk
management policies of the Company from time
to time., The Risk Management Committee shail
primarily be responsible for identifying,
monitoring, managing and mitigating the credit
risk, market risk, operational risk and other risks
of the Company that can be applicable to the
Company considering the business operations of
the  Company through integrated risk
management systems, strategies and
mechanisms.

IT Strategy Committee

» Approving IT strategy and policy
documents and ensuring that the
management has put an effective
strategic planning process in piace

s Approving IT strategy and policy
documents and ensuring that the
management has put an effective
strategic planning process in place

e Ensuring IT investments represent a
balance of risks and benefits and that
budgets are acceptable




* Monitoring the method that management
uses to determine the IT resources needed
to achieve strategic goals and provide
high-level direction for sourcing and use of
IT resources

e Ensuring proper balance of IT investments
for sustaining NBFC's growth and
becoming aware about exposure towards
IT risks and controls

*Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran was appointed in the IT Strategy Committee w.e.f, 22-11-2022.



ii. Composition and other details of Committees:

1. Audit Committee

Member Capacity Number of No. of
St Name of of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Commit the Committee in the
tee Held Attended Company
since
1 Mr. R. M. Malia 19-05- Independent 4 4 o
2018 Director and
Chairman of the
Committee
2 Ms. Padma 07-04- independent 4 4 0
Chandrasekara 2021 Director and
n Member of the
Committee
3 Mr. Gaurav 19-05- Managing 4 4 0
Gupta 2018 Director & CEO
and Member of
the Committee
2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC)
Memb Capacity Number of No. of
Si Name of er of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Commi the Committee in the
ttee Held Attended Company
since
1 Ms. Padma 07-04- independent 2 2 0
Chandrasekaran 2021 Director and
Chairperson of
the Committee
2 Mr. R. M. Malia- 19-05- Independent 2 1 0
Independent 2018 Director and
Director Member of the
Committee
3 Mr. Sagar Adani 19-05- Director and 2 2 0
2018 Member of the
Committee




3. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee)

Memb Capacity Number of No. of
Si. Name of er of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Commi the Committee in the
ttee Heid Attended Company
since
1 fls. Padma 27-11- Independent 1 1 0
Chandrasekaran 2022 Director and
Chairperson of
the Committee
2 Mr. Gaurav 19-05- Managing 1 1 0
Gupta 2018 Director & CEO
and Member of
the Committee
3 Mr. Sagar Adani 19-05- Director and 1 o 0
2018 Member of the
Committee
4. Finance Committee
Memb Capacity Number of No. of
St Name of er of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Commi the Committee in the
ttee Held Attended Company
since
1 Mr. Gaurav 18-06- Managing 13 13 0
Gupta 2021 Director & CEO
and Chairman of
the Committee
2 Mr. R. M. Malla 18-06- Independent 13 5 0
2021 Director and
Member of the
Committee
3 Mr. Sagar Adani 18-06- Director and 13 10 0
2021 Member of the
Committee




5. Risk Management Committee (RMC)

Member Capacity Number of No. of
sl Name of of Meetings of shares heid
No. Member Commit the Committee in the
tee Held Attended Company
since
1 Mr. R. M. Malla 07-04- Independent 4 4 0
2021 Director and
Chairman of the
Committee
2 Mr. Gaurav 19-05- Managing 4 4 0
Gupta 2018 Director & CEO
and Member of
the Committee
3 fMir. Rajaram 07-04- Chief Risk 4 4 0
Manian B 2021 Officer and
Member of the
Committee
6. Information Technology Strategy Committee (IT Strategy Committee)
Memb Capacity Number of No. of
Sl Name of er of Meetings of shares held
No. Member Commi the Committee in the
ttee Held Attended Company
since
1 *Ms, Padma 27-11- independent * * 0
Chandrasekaran 2022 Director and
Chairperson of
the Committee
2 *Mr. R. M, Malla *03-10- independent 2 2 0
2020 Director and
Member of the
Committee
2 Mr. Gaurav 19-05- Managing 2 2 0
Gupta 2018 Director & CEO
and Member of
the Committee
3 Mr. Sagar Adani *03-10- Director and 2 0 0
2020 Member of the
Committee




4 Mr. Amit Vatsa 23-05- Chief Digital 2 2 0
2022 Officer and
Member of
Committee

5 Mr. Naved 23-05- Head Business 2 2 0
Hussain 2022 Solution Group -
iT & Projects
and Chief
Technology
Officer and
Member of the
Committee

*Note: Mr. R, M. Malla was the Member of IT Strategy Committee since 3" October, 2020.
Further, the IT Strategy Committee was reconstituted pursuant to the approval of
the Board of Directors dated 27" November, 2022 and Ms. Padma
Chandrasekaran was appointed as the Chairperson of the Committee and
Mr. R. M. Malla ceased to be the Member of the Committee,

Further, after the appointment of Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran 3s the
Chairperson of the Committee, no meeting of Committee was held in FY
2022-23.

3) General Body Meetings
Give details of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General
Body Meetings.

St Type of Meeting Date and Place Special
No. (Annual/Extra-Ordinary) resolution
passed
1 Annual General Date: 29-09-2022 1
Meeting
Place: Ahmedabad

4) Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013
Give details and reasons of any default in compliance with the requirements
of Companies Act, 2013, including with respect to compliance with
accounting and secretarial standards:

Nil



5) Details of penalties and strictures

(NBFCs should disclose details of penalties or stricture imposed on it by the
Reserve Bank or any other statutory authority):

Nil
B) Breach of covenant
Nil
C) Divergence in Asset Classification and Provisioning

Nil

For Adani Capital Pvt. Ltd.

Lo

Gaurav Gupta
Managing Difector & CEO
DIN- 01669109
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NANGIA & COLLP

CHARTERED AQCOQUMNTAMNTSE

INDIEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Adani Capital Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited tha Ind AS Financial Staterments of Adani Capital Private Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind
AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended {“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit including Other Comprehensive
income, Its Cash Flows and the Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for QOpinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013 . Qur respansibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repart, We are
independent of the Company in aceordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apprepriate {0 provide a basis for our audit opinion on the [nd
AS Financial Statements,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters that in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the In¢l AS Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our apinion therean, and
we da not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

we have fulfifled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's respansihilities for the audit of the Ind AS Financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS Financial Statements. The resuits of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters helow, provide the basis for our audit opinion an the accompanying Ind AS Finapcial Statements.

«
A Eloor, leonic Tower, Urmi Estate, 9% Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel {West), Mumbai - 400013, india

Pt 8122 6173 7000

LLP Registratian NO, AA-L379
Naida - Mew Delhi - Gurugram - Mumbai - Bangaluru - Chennal - Pune - Qebradtin



NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Key audit matters |

How our audit addressed the key audttmatter_

A

(@) kmpairment of lnanassetsasa{:ba!ance sheet date (expected credit losses)
As described in note 55,1 of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Ind AS 109: Financial Instruments ("Ind AS 109"}
requires the Company to provide for impairmant of
its loan assets using the expected credit [oss (ECL}
approach. ECL involves an estimation of
probability- weighted loss on financial instruments
over their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events,
current conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions which could impact the credit
quality of the Company's loans and advances, In
this process, a significant degree of judgement has
been applied by the management for:

a) Defining Staging of loans {i.e. classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk’ ("SICR") and
‘default’ categories);

bl Grouping of borrowers  based  on
hoemogeneity by using appropriate statistical
techniques;

¢} Estimation of behavioural life;

d} Estimation of tosses for loan products with no
/ minirmal historical default; and

e} Management overlay for macro-econamic
factors and estimation of their impact on the
credit guality,

i the view of such high degree of management’s

judgement involved in estimation of ECL, it is

identified as key audit matter.

Our audit pracedures inciuded the follg

+ Evaluated the Company's accounting policies for
impairment of loan assets and assessed compliance
with the policies in terms of Ind AS 109 and with the
governance framework approved by the Board of
Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank of india
guidelines issued on March 13, 2020.

@ Evaluated the management estimates by
understanding the process of ECL estimation and
related assumptions and tested the controls around
data extraction and vatidation

» Assessed the criteria and tested sample for staging
of loans based on their past-due status and to
evaluate compliance with reguirement of ind AS
108,

a Tested the ECL model, including assumptions and
underlying computation. Tested the input data used
for determining the Probabhility of default and loss
given default rates and agreed the data with the
undertying books of account and records.

» Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Company.

s Read and assessed adequacy of the disclasures
included in the financia! statements in respect of ECL
with the reguirements of Ind AS 107 Financial
instruments: Disclosure {"Ind AS 107") and Ind AS
109.

(b) Information technology (1T} systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting systems of
the Company are fundamentally retiant on T
systems and IT controls to process significant
transaction veolumes. Automated accounting
procedures and IT environment controls, which
inciude IT governance, general IT controls over
program developmert and changes, access to
programs and data and iT operations, are required
to be designed and to operate effectively to ensure
appropriate financial reporting

Therefore, due teo the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment
of the general |IT controis and the application
controls specific to the accounting and preparation
of the financial information is considered to be a
key audit matter.

Qur audit procedures, with support from IT specialists,
inctuded the following:

s« Tested the design and operating effectiveness of IT
access controfs over the information systems that
are critical to financiat reporting.

v Tested IT general controls {such as logicai access,
changes management and aspects of iT operational
controis), This included testing that requests for
acress 1o systemns were appropriately reviewed and
authorised.

o Tested the Company's periodic review of access
rights. We inspected requests of changes to systams
for appropriate approval and authorisation.

e |n addition to the above, we tested the design and
operating effectiveness of certain application
cantrals (automated and IT dependent manual
controls} that were considered as key internal
controls over financial reporting.

¢ Where deficiencies were {dentified, we tested
caompensating controls or performed alterpate
procedures
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Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors |s responsible for the other information. The other information eomprises the
Board’s Report {“other information”), but does not include the ind A5 Financial 5tatements and our auditor’s
report theraon.

Our opinion on the Ind A5 Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the Ind AS Financlal Staterments, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materiaily inconsistent with the ind A5 Financial
Statements or our knowledge ohtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other infarmation, we are
reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financlal Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134({5) of the Campanies Act,
2013 {"the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including Other Comprehensive income, Cash Flows and Changes
in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accaunting Standards {thd AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Campany and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiat contrals, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the acecurscy and completeness of the actounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS Financial Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company's ahility to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to Hguidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do sa.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and ta issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is 3 high fevel of assurance, but Is not @ guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect 2 material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered materia! if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thase Ind A5 Financlal Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with $As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(-
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Auditar's Respansibilities for the Audit of the ind AS Financial Statements (Continued)

a  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respansive to those risks, and obtain sudit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting frotn fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, a5 fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal control,

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desigh audit procedures that
are appropriate in the cireumstances. Under section 143{3)(i} of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our apinion on whether the company has adequate Internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

»  Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the apprapriateness of management’s use of the going concern hasts of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doulbt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, if we
conciude that 3 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the retated disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disciosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion, Qur conclugions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

v Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
disclosures and whether the tnd A5 Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them alf relationships and other matters that
may reasanably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Ind A% Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because of the adverse consequences of doing 50 would
reasonably be expected to outwelgh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Repaort on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As reguired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central

Government of Indiz in terms of sub-section {(11) of section 143 of the Carnpanies Act, 2013, we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.
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Report on Other Lagal and Regulatory Requirements (Contfnued)

2

As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

fa)

(d)

(e}

{g}

fif.

We have soaught and obtaired all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowiedge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinton, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those hooks;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, and the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

tn our opinion, the aforesafd tnd AS Financial Staternents comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules,2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directars, none of the directars is disgualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 {2} of the Act;

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these ind AS Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rutes, 20114, in our opinion and to the best of aur infurmation
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Cormpany does not have arny pending litigations which would impact its financial position-
Refer note 43 to Ind AS Financial Statements

The Campany did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note G5.B to the financial statements, during the year no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources ar kind
of funds) by the Company 1o or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities
{“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
tntermediary shall, direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) ar provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

fb} The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 65.8 to the financial statements, during the year no funds have been received by the
Company fram any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persans ar entities identified in any manner whatscever by or
on behalf of the Funding Farty {"Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(/

L



NANGIA & CO LLP

CHARTEREDB ACCOUNTANTS

Report on Other Legal and Regutatory Requirements (Continied)

{c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i} of Rule 1l{e) contain any material
misstatement,

v. As proviso to rule 3{1) of the Carmpanies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company
anly w.e.f. Aprit 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

vi. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

FRN No, 002381C/N500069
<

Membership No.: 601788
UDIN; 23601788BGVIHR7522

Place: Mumbai
Date: Aprit 29, 2023
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Amnexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements’ of our report of even date

Re: Adani Capital Private Limnited ("the Company")

{i)

(i}

{iii)

{a){A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and the situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,

{a}{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars of intangible assets,

{b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets including
property, plant and equipment by which the fixed assets including property, plant and equipment
and are vetified by the management according to a phased prograrnme designed ta cover all the
items over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonahle having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of Its assets and no
discrepancies were noticed on such verificatian.

(c} There is no immavabie praperty {ather than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee}, held by the Cormpany and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{i){c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d} The Company has nat revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023,

{e) According to information and explanations glven to us, there are no proceedings initiated or
are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

{a} The Company's business does not require maintenance of inventorles and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3{if){a) of the Order is not applicable ta the Company.

{b) As disclosed in note 65.4 to the financial statements, the Company has be¢n sanctioned
warking capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the
basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly returns/statements filed by the
Company with such banks are in agreement with the boaoks of accounts of the Company.

{a) The Company's principal business is to give loans accordingly, Clause 3(fii)(a) of the Qrder is not
applicable to the Company.

(b} During the year the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances to Companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's
interest.

{c) In respect of loans granted to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayment or receipts are regular except in the following cases:

<
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Mame of the Entity /Lm;;;“ mhmnunt {in | Due date Extent of delay | Remarks,
praduct Rs miltion) (in days) if any
Tractor and commercial 1,013.09 | Various due Mare than one -

vehicle loans dates day

Business and other retail 1,416.61 | Various due More than one -

loans dates day

(iv)

{v}

{vi)

(vit)

(d) The following amounts are overdue for more than ninety days from Companies to whom loan
has been granted, and reaspnable steps have been taken by the Company for recovery of the
overdur amaount of principal and interest.

No. of cases | Principsl averdue {In | Interest overdue Total Overdue {ln | Remarks, |If
Rs millions) {in Rs millions) Rs millions) any
1,111 400.04 - 400.04 -

(e) The Company’s principal business is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision of Clause 3(lii}(e)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(F} According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms
or period of repayment to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause 2(76) of Companies Act,
2013,

in our gplnian and aceording to the information and explarations given to us, provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loens to directors including entities
in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and
guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the Company.

The Carnpany has neither accepted any deposits from the puhlic nor aceepted any amounts which
are deerned to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to repart on clause
3{v} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goads or provision of such services as prescribed.
Accordingly, the requirement ta repart on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicatle to the
Company.

(a) Accarding to the Infarmation and explanations given to us, the Campany have generally been
regular in depositing with appropriate autharities though there has been slight delay in a few cases
of undisputed statutory dues includipg goods and services tax, provident fund, income-tax,
employee state insurance corporation and other statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions
relating to duty of customs, sales-tax, duty of excise and value added tax are currently not
applicable to Company. According ta the information and explanations given to us and based on
audit protedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory
dues were autstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payahle.

{b) According to the information and explanation given ta us, there are no dues of income tax,
empioyee’s state insurance, goods and service tax and cess which have not been deposited an
account of any dispute. The provision relating to sales- tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty
and value-added tax are currently not applicable to the Company.

-
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{viti}

(ix)

{x)

{xii)

{idi)

According to the information and expianations given ta us, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the fncome Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of foans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender,

{b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or finincial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were apptied for the
purpose for which the [pans were obtained.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Comparny, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.

{e}) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3{ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{f) The Company dwes not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement te report on Clause 3{ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations are given to Us, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial publie offer or further public offer {including debt instrurments) hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3{x}{a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares ffully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3{x{b) of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations are given to us, no fraud by the Company or no
materiat fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b} During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by a secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{¢) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the company during the year.

The Company Is rot a Nidhi Company as per the provistons of the Comparies Act, 2013, Therefore,
the requirement to report on clauses 3{xii)(a), (b} and {c) aof the Order is not applicable to the
Campany.

According to the information and explanations are glven to us, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

iy
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{xiv)

{v)

{>vi}

{xvii}

{soviii)

{xix)

{xx)

(a) According 1o the information and explanations are given to us, the Cornpany has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issted til! the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
nen-cash transactions with its directors or persons ¢onnected with its directors and hence the
requirement to report on ctause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the Information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by
us, the Company has registered a5 required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

(b} The Company has not conducted any MNon-Banking Financial without obtaining a valid
Certificate of Registration {CoR} from the Reserve Bank of Indfa as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reguirement to report on clause 3{xv}(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{d} Arcording to the information and explanations given to us, there is na Core Investment
Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3{xv)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding
financial year respectively,

The previous statutory auditors of the Carapany have resigned during the year and we have taken
into consideration the issues, objections or concerns ralsed by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 65.11 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and hased on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assdrance that all liabilities fatling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged hy the Company as and when
they fali due,

(a} In respect of other than angoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in 5chedule VIi of the Companies Act (the Act}, In compliance
with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter bas been disclosed in
note 38 to the financial statements,

o
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{b) There are ne unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section {6) of section 135 of
Companies Act. This matter has been disciosed in note 38 to the financial statements,

(xxi} The Company does not prepare consolidated financial statements, hence the requirement to
repart on clause 3{xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

Far Nangia & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN No. 002391¢/N500062
/’?’

Ly

sprest Singh Bedi

Partner

Membership No.: 601788
LD[N; 23601 788BGVIHR7522

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 29, 2023
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“ANNEXURE 2" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE UMITED

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Cumpanies Act, 2013 (“tha Act”)

To
The Member of
Adani Capital Private Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of Adani Capital Private Limited
{“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the ind AS Financial Statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibitity for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is respansible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on Internal control over financtal reporting criteria established hy the Company considering the
essential components of internal controf stated inthe Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, impiementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of Its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errars, the
accuracy and completeness of the aceounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibitity

Our responsibility is to express an epinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reparting based an our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Cantrols Over Financial Reporting {the “"Guidance Note”) and the 5tandards on Auditing,
issuad by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent spplicable to an audit of internal financial contrals, both applicable to an audit of Internat Financial
Controls and, both issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india, Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves perfarming pracedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reperting and their aperating effectiveness. Our audit of Internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal Financial controls
over financlal reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exlsts, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for
aur audit apinion oh the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

¢
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A carmpany's internal financial contrel over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of ind AS Financial Statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies. A campany's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that {1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detait, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonabte assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasenable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised scquisitian, use, or disposition of the
campany's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherant Limitations of Internal Finandial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of coltusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due Lo error
or fraud rmay occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
aver financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compllance with the poticies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qpinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over flnancial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of tnternal Flnancial Controls Over Fipanclal Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of tndia,

Far Nangia & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 002391C/NE00069

p’reet'hsingh Bedi

Partner

Membership No.: 601788

UDIN: 2360178BBGVLHR7522555

Place: Mumbai
Date: Aprit 28, 2023



ADANE CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Balahte Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(AN trnerindts in X gn Milliers unfess atherwise stated)

A TE |
‘March 31,7082
ASSETS
Findrdial dyyets
(4] Cash ond cash equivaents 7 10,34 4,136,480
{t)  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 8 394.50 1.281L61
(¢} Reeeivables
1) Trade receivables ] 10.69 779
{I) @ther receivables - -
[d} laans 1¢ 26,901.15 18.782.78
0] Investragmty 11 35355 -
() Other Hnaneisl asants 12 1,145.80 330N
o, 29,635.73 24,546.25
Non-financial assees
{a}  Current tax assots {nyt) 13 - IR.6h
(b1 Property, plant and equipmant 15 25344 304.78
{c}  Copilaf wark-in.progress 18 ' 0.8
) Intacidle assots under development 17 33.1% 13.38
{«)  Quher mtangible assets 18 33103 27
IIF Qther hen-financial assets 1y 101,74 E7.66
564,71 557.43
TOTAL ASSETS 30,200,443 2%,103.68

LFARILITIES AND EQUITY
LiABILITIES

Flnancfal Habilities
{a) Payablez ]
{tyTrade payablng
{I tatal autseanding duas of micro entorprisns and small enterprises - -
thi) tetat guistanding dugs of greditgrs athar than nwcra enterprises 18547 6012
ornd small enterprisas
(1) Qther payables
{#] toaral outstanding dues of micro enterprises ond small enlerpiises

(il) 44l outstanding dues af creditors other than micro enterprises 77 3.B5

and dimall =nterprises
(&) Debt secueliivs b33 1,744.08 2,511,469
0] Borrowligs (etlur than dabt snciitias) 12 10,281.08 10,116.57
{d] Subordinated Habiikies 213 576.16 33696
{#}  Quher financial habitithes 2] 673,00 BIT.6%
23,4B0.36 19,841.64

Mon-financiat HabwHiles

(2) Currient tax llabibries [net) 75 ar -
(B} Provisiuns 16 1510 4737
(1) Paferrad tax Habliities {net) 15 203.61 1733
{d) Dthar nan-financisf labllities 27 144,19 77.30
A7 67 141.70
E4uiY
{2) Equlty shary capital 74 732.09 22755
{b} Other equity Fi) §,04%9.71 q4.831.79
5,181.81 5,120,324
TOTAL UARIITIES ARl EQUHY A0, 20044 35,403 56
The accompanying aotas feeny apn Integeal pare of the financlal statements 1-67

Fhis is the Balancg Sheet refertad 1 in aur report of $ven date

For Nangiz & Co. LIP Far aned iy bghalt of tha Board of Directars of
Chartered Adcountanes Adan| Capital Private Limited
$CAl Firen Registrattan EBer: 002391C/NS00063 CIN. UESB‘JDGJ?D}}PTCDQ!EEZ N
g p
. P N
\ ‘:?PJ )ﬁbh.&_‘j" ““.-"' g ‘(L‘_ j/‘/"'"-"-l
. o
Mﬂﬂ'&urav ﬁu‘;m:\t'f Mr. Sagar R. Adanl
Managing Direptdr & CEG Dircctor
embership No: 601785 DIN: 015651&?! DIN: 07626320
Placa; Mumbal Place: Ahmedabad D .
P T
Ve o
Placn: Meimbas wr. Vieal Shat M. ditentiri Chaturuid]
efief Financiol Officer Gompiny Secratary

Mamnbarship No: AQ515E
Late: April 29, D23 Plade Mumisi Placa: Mumbal



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Stutement of Profit and Logs for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Alf gmaunts jn 4 in Miliions ypless otherwise stated)

Farthadars

Foe the year ended
March 31, 2023 |

of the yeat snded
Wiaich 31, 202

Revenue From aperations

{i) Interest income 30 4,202 BU 2,389.43
(i) Met gain on fair value chonges 31 B8 3h31
{Hii} MNetgain on derecognition of financlal instruments under amaortised cost category 56 B39.08 111.95
{1} Totofrevenue fromoperations b 5,135.06 2,531.69 |
{l} Qrherincome 2 41.Dq 10.26
(f} Total income (§ + H) 517806 2,541,495
Expenses
{1} Findnce costs 13 1,885.57 1,074.14
{ii}  Impairment op financial indttuments 34 364.78 225.63
(i Empioyee bonefits oxpanses 35 1,200.85 790.30
{iv} Depreciation, amartezation and impairment 36 92,14 70.98
{v} Others axpensas BN 414.9] 26134
(Iv) Toetal expenses 3,958,373 1.422.39
{V] Profit hefare tax (1§ - 1V) 1,.217,75 119,56
[V} Tax Expense:
- Current Fax 41 123.90 12.33
- Leferred Tax 41 187.06 A5.30
(Vit} Profit for the petiod (V) $06.74 71.93
{vitl} ather comprehenslve incame
(i} \rgms that will not be reclassified to profit ar loss
{a} Remeasurements gain / (losst on defined benafit plans (2.29 5.1%
{il} Ihewme tax relating to items that witl not be reclassified to profit or loss Q.58 (1.31)
Other camprehensive income / {loss) [Net of tax} (:_”1, - .88
(1X) Yotaf comprehensive Ineome for the petlod (Wil + Vi) 905.08 75.81
{x} Eernlngs per equlty share {Face Value Rs 10 por sharg) az
« Basic {8s,) 3045 4,15
- Diluted (Rs.) 3857 4.14
1-67

The accompanying notés ferm an integral part ef the financial statements

This 15 the Statement of Profit and Logs refarred ta in our roport of guen date

For Naogla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

1CAl Flrm Registration mbar; Q02341C/NS00069

Mr. Yafpreet Singh Bedi
Pariner
MpmEarship No: GO1788

Mace: Muymbai

Date: April 29, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board
Adan) Capital Private Limited
CIN: UR5890G)2016FTCOY3652

NP

MerBIFY Gupts ™
Manoging Qiregter §& CEQ
DiN; 1669108

Place: Mumbal

'}. e
NV

-
#r, Viral Shah
chief Financio! Officer

Place: Murbat

of Directors of

F:; ?._. k/\'ﬂ_A_‘._

M. Sagar R. Adani
Director

OIN: D7626223
Mace: Ahmedabad

%\w.\»"(\}f}\_\}f pu

b,
Mt literidra Chaturvedi

LCompany Secretary
Mumbership do; AsR1ER
Ptace: Murmbal



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Statament of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All urounts in & In Millions unfess otherwise stated)

Partieulars

. ~Far the year entle
:“March 31, 2023

“For the year ended ;.

March 31, 2022 -+

A. Cash fluw operating activities

Profit before tax 1,217.75 119.56
Adjustments for:

Bepreciation, amortization and impairment 92.19 70.98
Impairment of financtal instrument 145,17 60.14
Interest an lease liability 20.45 17.62
Interest on income tax refund (1.29) {2.56)
Excess provision written back (7.1%) -
Profit on sale of mutual funds (53.18) {30.31)
Share based payrent to employees 5.24 30.91
Remeasurements of the dafined beneflt ptans - gratuity {2.29) 5.12
Net gain an derecagnition of financial instruments under arnortised cost category (839.08) {111.95)
Profit on sale of property, ptant and equipment {2.54) (0.04}
Interest income (4,242.80) {2.389.43}
Finrance Cost 1,865.13 1,056,52
Cash inflow from interest 3,933.65 2,245.70
Cash outflow from finance cast {1,937.41) {1,051.36)
Cash penerated from operations before working capital changes 193.84 20.97
Adjustments for ehanges in Working Capital -

Decrease / [Increase) iy Trade raceivable (4.8} {5.59)
Decrease / {Increass) in Loans (7,950.4G} {7,048.55)
Decrease / {Increase) in Qther financial assets 16.55 (20.28)
Decrease / {Increase) In Other non-financiat assets {34.0R} {60.25)
(Decresse) 7 Increase in Trade payabfes 143.67 {7.77)
(Decrease) / Increase in Qther financial lisbHities {116.16} 534.50
(Decrease) f Increase in Provisions 27.23 121
(Decredse) /7 Increase in Other non-financial liablilities 71,89 15.33
et cash generated from / {used in) operation {7,650.80) (6,579.43)
Refund / {(Payment) of tuxes {net) {63.14) (13.20)
Net cash generated from / {used i) aperating activities (A} {7,713.94) {6,592.83}
B. Cash flow from investing activities

Furchase of property, plant and equipment (39.77) {61.79)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.36 0.17
Purchase of intangible assets (34.71) (5.45}
{Purchase)/sate of capital werk-in-progress 0.18 (0.18}
{Purchase)/sale of intangible assets under development {9.77) {23.29}
tnvestment in bank deposits with original maturity greater than three months {(Net) 887,41 (1,281.61)
Purthase of investments in equity shares (239.66) .
Purchase af investmeants in Security Recoipts (214.29) -
Redemption of tnvestments in Security Receipts 60,40 -
Puretase of investiments in mutuat funds {30,780.00) {20,566.,50)
Sale of investments in mulual furnds 30,833.18 20,596.81
Net cash penerated from / {used in) Investing activities (B} 466,33 (1,341 .84}




ADANI| CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Cash flows for the year endied March 31, 2023
(Al amounts In X in Miflions unfess otherwise stated)

parder orthevearendsd | Fortheyear ended
‘March 31, 2023 .. T Miarch 31,2002
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Peoceads from Issue of Equity Shares (Including securities premium) 250.00 1,500.00
share Issue expenses (0.0E} -
Payment of principal portion of lease labilities {34.33) {23.5M
Payment of interest an lease liabllities {201.45) {17.62)
Issue of debt securities 1,215.21 980.00
Repaymuent of debt securities (1,967.60) {1,000.00)
Issue of subardinated Lahilities 250.00 350,00
Proceeds fram borrowing (other than debt securities B subordinated liabilities) 11,214.22 12,240.00
Repayment of borrowing (other than debt securities & subordinated liabilities) [7.005.83) {3,388.85)
Net cash generated from / {used in) inancing activities (C) 3,901.15 10,639.94
niet ingrease f {Decrease} in Cazh and Cash Equivalents (A + 0 + ¢} (3.346.46} 2,705.27
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of year 4,136.80 1,431.53
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 790.34 4,136.80
Components of Cash and cagh equivatents
Cash on hand 18.22 2.84
Balances with banks 77312 3,133.R6
Fixed deposit with bank {Qriginal maturity less than 3 months) - 1,000,310
790,34 4,136.80

Tha above Statament of cosh flaw has bean prepored under the indirect method set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cosh Flow.

For disclosures refating to changes In Nabilities arising from financitg activities, refer Mote 33

This ts the Staternent of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date

For Nangia & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Nember: 0DI391C/N300069

<Jaspreot Singh Bedi
Fartner
Memhership No: 601788

Place; Mumbal

Rate: April 29, 2023

For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of

Adanl Capltal Private Limited
CIN: UB5990G)Z016PTCO93692

: . ;\ -
¥ ", P
\\ ;}LJ:”“\:‘J - J

Mrv%aurau Gupja“"‘

Managing Director & CFO
DIN: 01665109
Place: Mumbai

Mr. ‘{i.fﬂ
chisf Financiel Qfficer

Place: Mumbai

i

Mr. Sagar R. Adani
Pirectar

DIN: 07626229
Place: Ahmedabad

) e i_i\w\d&-\_ﬁtﬁ-aﬁph )

r. Jitendra Chaturvedi
Company Secretary
Membershio No: A4515%8
Place: Mumbai




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Staterment of Changes in Equity for the year anded Marels 31, 2023
{All gmounts in X in Milfions yriess otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
balance at the beglnning of the reporting period 227.5% 173.00
Changas in aquity share capital due to priod period crrors - -
Resrated balanea at the beginning of the current raporting period 127.55 173.00
Changes In equity share capital (Refer Note 26 (A} for additiono! detailsi 4.54 54.55
Balance 3t the end of the reporting period 232.09 AR7.58
B. Other equity
Raserves and Surplus
Special Reserve wnder
Partheulars :eﬂlon 45-1C of the Share option Tatal
Secturities premium Retained sarnings autstanding account
Reserve
Bank of Indle Act, 1934
Balanee at April 1, 2021 3,128.76 ] 51.90 111.53 37.14 3,329.33
Profit for the year . - 11.53 71.93
Premium on issue of pquity shares 1,445.45 - - - 3,445,459
Share based payment expanse - 420 42.20
Qther comprehensive income fot the year - 3Bg - 328
Total comprehensive incame for the yeor {net of tax) 1,405.45 - 75.81 az.24 1,563.46
Transfer [ utilisations
Transfersed 12 special reserve from retalned earnings
- 14.89 114.34) : -
Bmaluvl:lf‘snthgrch 31, 2921 4,574.21 a6.29 17295 79.34 4,892.7%
Profit for the year - - 90E.79 - a05, 79
Pretmicin on tisue of equity shares 245,45 - 245.45
Ampunts utilised tawards share fusue expenyes 10.08) - {0.08)
Share based payment expense - - 6.48 6.48
Other comprebensive income far the yoar (1.71} {1.71)
Total comprohansive income far the year {net of tax}
24537 - 905.08 6.48 1.156.923
Transfer / wttlisations
Trangfeered Lo spocial caserye from retuined eirnings
- 151.36 {181.36) - -
Datance at March 31, 2023 4,819.58 247.65 B96.67 85.32 6,048,732

Yhis i5 the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even datg

For Nangla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accauntants

ICAI Firtm Rauistratlunﬁurr wr: (02391C/NS00069

Mr. Jaspraet Singh Bodi
Partner

Membership No: R01788

Place: Murmbai

Date: April 23, 2023

far and on behalf of the Aoard of Rirectors of
Adani Capital Private Limited
CIN: UB5990G20 6P 1093692

X
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* ._..«'"
Mr, Gaurav Gupita ’_,.-"

Manoging Dirgetor & CEQ
DRIN: 1665308
Plage: Mumbai

i
WL
mF vlgp!‘shah
Chigf Finqnciol Officer

Flace: Mumbal

¢ B f--—

Mr. Sagar B, Adan}
Direetar

DM B7626229
Place: Ahtnedabad

Q\w .\ Uy M'L‘"rﬂ,.;

Mr_ Jitehdea Chaturvedi
Compony Secretury
Memberibip No: A45158
Place; Mumbal




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Significant Accounting Policies:

1. Corporate information;
Adani Capital Private Limited (the ‘Company’) was incorporated in India on Septernber 12, 2016 under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {‘the Act’).

The Company Is engaged in the business of providing loans.

The Company holds a Certificate of Registration (CoR) as Non-Banking Financial tnstitution, without
accepting public deposits, registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI"} under section 45-4A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, The Company received its certificate of registration as a non-banking
finance Company on January 6, 2017 having registration number 8.01.00567.

The Company Is a wholly owned subsidiary of Adani Finserve Private Limited.

The Registered office of the company is Adani House, 56, Shrimali Society, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat - 380009.

The financial statements of the Cempany for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorised for issue in
accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 29 April 2023.

2. Basis of Preparation:
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (ind AS) notified under the Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015 (as amended
from time to time).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as, other financial instruments held for trading, which have been measured at fair
value. The financial statements are presented in indian Rupees {INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest Millions, except when otherwise indicated. The financial staterments have bheen prepared on a
EQINE concern basis,

The preparation of financial staternents requires the use of certain gccounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosed amount of contingent liabilities, Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 6 - Significant
ateounting judgements, estimates and assumptions,

3. Statement of Compliance:
These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards as per the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other refevant provisions of the Act.

4. Presentation of financial statements:
The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule 1 {Division i1l of the Cormpanies
Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets
and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent an a future event
and the parties intend to settle on a net basis.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial 5Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

4.1 Functional and presentation currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) which is also its functional currency and
all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

5. Significant accounting policies:

5.1 Revenue from operations:

1.1

5.1.2

Recognition of interest income:

interest income is recognised by applying the Effective interest Rate {EIR} to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets
chassified as measured at FVTPL,

The EIR in case of a financlal asset is computed

* As the rate that exactly discaunts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
* By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating

the cagh flows

* Including all fees received/paid between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or
discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest
income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Income from direct assignment / co-lending;

Gains arising out of direct assignment / co-lending transactions comprise the difference
between the interest on the loan portfolio and the applicable rate at which the direct
assignment / co-lending is entered into with the assignee, also known as the right of excess
interest spread (E1S). The future EIS basis the scheduled cash flows on execution of the
transaction, discounted at the applicable rate entered into with the assignee is recorded
upfront in the statement of profit and loss, Any subsequent changes in the EIS is recognised
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

The Company recognises either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for servicing contract.
If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate compensation for the
servicing activities, a servicing asset is recognised with a corresponding credit in Statement
of Profit and Loss. If the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the Company
adequately for performing the servicing activities, a servicing liability for the servicing
obligation is recognised with a corresponding charge to Statement of Profit and Loss,




ADANI CAMTAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

5.1.3

5.1.4

Dividend income:

Dividend income is recognized

a. When the right to receive the payment is established,

b. it is probahble that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
entity and

¢. the amount of the dividend can he measured reliably

Fees and Commission income;

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance
obligation, at fair value of the consideration received or recelvable based on a five-step
model a3 set out below, unless included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement hetween
two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria
for every contract that must be met,

Step 2: identify performance cbligations in the contrack: A performance obligation Is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price; The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

5.2 Financial instruments:

5241

Initial Recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and borrowings are Initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established
by regulation or convention in the rmarketplace. Loans are recognised when funds are
transferred to the customers’ account. The Company recognises berrowings when funds are
available for utilisation to the Company.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

52,2

5.2.13

5.2.4

r
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Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial Hahility are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cast
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through
profit & loss (FVTPL)), are added to or subtracted from the fair value of financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction cost directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVYTRL are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit or loss:

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and
the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models
for which seme of the inputs are not observable, the difference hetween the transaction
price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in prefit or loss when the inputs
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and fiabilities:

The Cornpany classifies all its financial assets based an the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’'s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets at amortised cost {(AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business modet whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely for the payments of
principal and interest on the principal amaount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial agsets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOC! if it is held within business model whose objective s
achieved by both coflecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial assets that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that
represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
changes in fair vatue of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive income.

interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit ot loss in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at arnortised cost,

Financial Assets at fair value through profit & loss [FVYTPL)

A financial asset which is rot classified in any of above categories are measured at FVTPL.
The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
date. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account,

A

Uyt e i



ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

5.3 Financial assets and liabilities:

531

5.3.2

533

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
or issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfalio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of
a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and
measured in the halance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain
on fair value changes.

Debt securlties and other borrowed funds:

The company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at amortised ¢ost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calcwlated by taking tnto account any discount er premium
on issue funds, and ¢osts that are an integral part of the EIR,

Here debt securities and other berrowed funds also Include non ~ convertible debenture.

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL on initfal recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
required ta be measured at fair value under ind AS 109. Management only designates an
instrument at FYTPL upon initial recognition when one of the follewing criteria are met. Such
designation is deterrnined on an instrument-hy-instrument basis:

» The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on thern on a different basis, or

» The liabilities are part of a group of financlal liabilities, which are managed, and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accerdance with a documented risk
management ar investment strategy, or

¢ The ljabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract,
or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements
in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit
risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCl and do
rot get recyeled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated
at FYTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into
account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of
instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is
recorded using contractual interest rate,
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53.5

Loan commitments:

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration af the
commitment, the Company is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the
customer. Currently Company has not recognised any ECL in respect of undrawn
commitment

Financial ltabilities and equity instruments:Financial instruments issued by the Company
are classified as either finanejal liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments Issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Afl the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments and
financial guarantees.

5.4 Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart fram
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates 3 business
line. The company didn't reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period and
previous period.

5.5 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities:

551

Derecognition of financial asset:

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the riphts to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it hag both transferred
the finaneial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if and only if; either

& The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
ar

* |t retains the contractual rights to receive the ecash flows of the financial asset but
assumed a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay
to third party under ‘pags through' arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a Financial asset (the ‘original asset'), but assumes a
contractual obfigation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities {the 'eventual
recipients’), when all of the foliowing conditions are met:

+ The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it
has collected equivalent amaunts from the original asset, excluding short-term
advances with the right to full recovery of the amount fent plus accrued interest at
market rates.
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» The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security 1o the
eventual recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,
except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the
period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventyal
recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
» The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

« The Company has neither transferred ner retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers contral to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrefated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Campany also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss
has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are classified as Stape
1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed to be purchased
or originated credit impaired (POCI).

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification doas not result In derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the original EIR, the Company records a madification gain or foss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial liabilities:

A Financial lakility is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecopnition of the
original Hability and the recognition of' a new liability. The difference between the carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid, including modified
centractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is recognised statement of profit
and loss.

5.6 Impairment of financial assets:

Overview of ECL principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets
not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments, in this section all referred to as ‘Financial
tstruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109,

ECL is @ probahility-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit |oss is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity
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expects to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount
and timing of payments, a credit foss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but {ater than
when contractuaily dye.

Simplified Approach

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Campany to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine
impalrment loss allowance. However, if receivables contain a significant financing component, the
Company chooses as its accounting palicy to measure the loss allowance by applying general
approach to measure ECL,

General Approach

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the Iife of the asset {the
lifetime expected eredit loss), urdess there has been no significant increase in credit rick since
origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument, The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent
the ECLs that resuit from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date.”

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on a collective basis, depending on the nature
of the underlying portfolio of financisl instrurments. The Company has grouped its loans into
corporate {oans, business loans given to MSMEs {MS5ME]}, home loans, commercial vehicie loans and
supply chain finance.

The Company has established a poticy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the ehange In the risk of default occurring over the remaining life
of the financial instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit
risk at a borrower level.

Based on the ahove, the Company categorises its loans Into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
below:

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The company classifies all standard advances and advances upta 30 days
default under this category. For these assets, 12-month ECL {resulting from default events possible
within 12 months from reporting date) are recognized.

Stage 2
Al exposures where there has been a significant inerease in credit risk since initial recognition but
are not credit irmpaired are classified under this stage. Assets which are 30 Days Past Due and less
than 90 Days Past Due are considered as significant increase in ¢redit risk, For these assets lifetime
ECl. are recognized.
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Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are dlassified in this stage. For
exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
cafculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of Expected Credit Loss)
rather than the gross carrying amount. 90 Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a
financial instrument as credit impaired,

Credit-impaired financial assets

"At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
and debt financial assets carried at FYOC are credit-impaired, A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’
when ane or maore events that have a detrimental itmpact on the estimated future cash flows of the
Tiranctal asset have occurred.

Evidence that a Tinanclal assey is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

» Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

= A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

* The restructuring of a loan or advance by the cormmpany on terms that the company would
not cansider atherwise,;

* |tis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; or

# The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties,”

The calcufation of ECL
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the fikelihood of default aver a given time horizon, A
defautt may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been
previously derpcognized and is still in the portfolio. In the absence of sufficient history of default, the
company has primarily sourced the PDs from external default reports published by various rating
agencies.

Exposure at Default

The Exposure at Default {EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date. taking into
account expected changes in the exposure after the reparting date, including repayments of principal
and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed
facilities, and accrued interest from rmissed payments,

Loss given Default

The Loss Given Default (LGD} is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a
given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed
as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is computed in the following manner:

a}) In case of Commercial vehicle and Farm Equipments portfolio the LGD percentage is
determined based on the recovery experience from closed cases.

b} In case of loans to MSME Sector and term foans to Corporate customers the LGD percentage
is determined based on the estimated value of recovery from the sale of collateral after
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considering regsonable haireuts as determined appropriate by the management where iatest
fair vaiue of collateral is not available with the management.

€} In case of other portfolios proxy LGD percentage as prescribed by the regulatory autherity
(FIRB Approach) is considered.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage
2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when Hs credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the
Company considered rebuttable presumption that credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,

5.7 Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on finarcial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible.
The ¢ollateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, vehicles,
real estate, etc. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet.
However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. The collateral are assessed at
time of inception and are being reassessed as and when required.

5.8 Collateral repossessed;

In its normal course of business whenever default occurs in Farm / Commercial Vehicle Business, the
Company may take possession of underlying assets in its retail portfolio and generally disposes such
assets through auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the
custormners/obligors. The Company generally does not use the assets repossessed for the internal
operations. ECL on the underlying loans in respect of which coliaterais have been repossessed and
not sold is provided as under.

Repa Ageing wo% ]
<90 da;rqs’.mw LGD as per normal ECL model

> 90 days & <= 180 days | 1.2x of LGD applicable for praduct
| = 180 days & <= 365 days | 1.5x of LGD applicable for product
| > 365 days 2x of LGD applicable for product

As a result of this practice, assets under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the balance
sheet as it does not meet the recognition criteria.

5.9 Write-offs;

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financlal asset when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs.
Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the staterment of profit and loss,
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5.10 Determination of fair value;

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either,

» Inthe principal market for the asset or flability, or

» Inthe ahsence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability Is measured using the assurmptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their econemic
best Interest. A falr value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling It to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumnstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unohservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived,
financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised
below:

Levet 1 financial instruments

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted guoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Coampany
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards 1o the volume
and liquidity of the identical assets or labilities and when there are binding and exercisable price
quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments

Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such
inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, guoted prices for
identical instruments in inactive markets and observable Inputs other than quoted prices such as
interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may
be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates to items that
are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable
inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the instruments as
Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments

Those that include one or more unabservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company periodicatly reviews its valuation technigues including the adopted methodolegies and
model calibrations. Therefore, the Cormpany applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk
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associated with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based
approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the
individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-
collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis
and reclassifies instrurments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Leasges:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a perlod of time in exchange
for consideration.

Company as alessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, exeept for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities representing
obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

5.11.1 Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, fess any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amaunt of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

5.11.2 Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments {(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guaraptees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the aption to terminate,

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate impliclt in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabillties is remeasured if there is a madification, a change in the lease term; a change in the
lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a charge in an index or rate used
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5.12

5.13

5.14

to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabifities are included in Other Financial Liabilities.

5.11.3 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exermnption to its short-term leases {i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 tmonths or less from the commencement date and do nat contain
a purchase option). it also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that
are considered to be of low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to lssue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. DHuted earnings per
share is computed hy dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the
year by weighted average number of equity shares caonsidered for deriving basic earnings per share
and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all
potential equity shares,

Foreign currency transaction:

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the
Company. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reparting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-rmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Employee henefit expenses:
5.14.1 Short-term employee benefits:

Defined contribution schemes

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund which is a defined contribution
scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
staternent of profit and toss. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as
an expense during the period when the employees render the services
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5.14.2

5.14.3

5.14.4

Paost-employment bencfits:

Defined benefit schemes - Gratuity

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any
plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan
is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the nét defined benefit liability and the
return an plan assets {excluding amounts inciuded in net interest an the net defined benefit
lizhility), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in whieh they oceur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Other long-term employee benefits:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitiement to subsequent years, subject to 2 ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge in the staterment of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such
non-vesting accumulated leave entitiement based on a valuation by an independent
actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method.

Employee share-based payments:

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees providing services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination
of the fair vatue of equity-settled share-based payments transactions are set out in Note
57.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share based payments is
expensed an a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At
the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Share Based Paymients Reserve,

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share ditution in the
camputation of diluted earnings per share.

5.15 Property, plant and equipment:

All items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and incidental expenses directly
attributahble to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the management,
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Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortization period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, onfy when it {s probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All ather repairs and
maintenance are recognized in profit or loss during the reporting period, as and when they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives which is in line with the estimated
useful life as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013

As per the requirement of 5chedule H of the Campanies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the
useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule |l
far calcutating the depreciation. The estimated usefu! lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Office equiprment 5 years

Computer Systems -~ End User Devices | 3 years

Computer Systems - Servers & Networks & years

Electrical Installation 10 years

Furniture & fixtures 10 years

Office Fremises ‘ On the lease term

The residual values, useful tives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted praspectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when ne future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of thase
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of
replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets:

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that
the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the company.

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are
carried at cost less accumulated amaortization and impairment, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amoartised over the useful economic life, The amertization period and the
armortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financiat year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumptian of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the amortization
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5.17

5.18

5.19

period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in
the statement of profit and |oss.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a periad of 10 years based on its estimated useful
life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financlal assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired based on internal/external factors, if any such indication exists, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset, If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its ¢carrying amount, the
carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
ioss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an
indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed, and the impairment is reversed subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before
impairment.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {fega! or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the ohligation, and a
refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net
present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liabifity.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it Is elther not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed
as a contingent liability. Contingent liakilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or rnon-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whoelly within the control of the Company.
Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outfiow of resources in settlement is
remote, are not disclosed as contingent liahilities.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realized. However, when the realization of income is
virtualfy certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

Income tax expenses:

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

5.19.1 Current tax:

Current tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or dircetly in equity, in which case, the
current tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
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respectively. The management periodically evaluates positions taken In the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulfations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate,

5.19.2 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liabllity arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in & transaction that is not a business combination and, a#t the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit and loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused

tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is notl a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit and loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset s realised or the liahility is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit and loss is recognised outside profit
and loss [either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxahle entity and the same tax authority.

5.20 Goods and services tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expensas:

Goods and services tax /value added taxes pald on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

When receivables and payables are stated with the amaunt of tax included
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The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

5.21 Securities issue expenses:

Expenses incurred in connection with fresh issue of Share capital are adjusted against Securities
premium reserve.

5.22 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined abaove, net of outstanding bank overdrafts if any, as they are considered
an Integral part of the Company’s cash management.

5£.21 Cash-flow statement:

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

6. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting peried. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future
periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future
periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

6.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting polices:
6.1.1 Business model assessment:

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest {SPPH) and the business model test. The Company determines the business
mode| at a level that reflects how Company's financlal assets are managed together to achieve a
particular business objective. This assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the
risks that affect the perfarmance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers
of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost
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that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the guantum, the reason for their
disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was hald. Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business
model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and 50 a prospective change to the
classification of those assets.

6.2 Key source of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty al the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a rmaterial
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities within the next financial year, as
described befow. The Company based its assurmptions and estimates on pararmeters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyand the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

6.2.1 Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a lizhility in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurernent date under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that
price js directly observable ar estimated using another vatuation technique. When the fair values of
financial assets and financial labilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active
markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation
maodels. The inputs to these models are taken from ohservable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates
include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own
and counterparty}, funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

6.2.2 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company's EIR methodology, as explained in Note 5.1, recognises interest income / expense
using arate of return that represents the best estimate of a canstant rate of return over the expected
behavioural life of loans given/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates
at various stages and other characteristics of the product life ¢cycle inetuding prepayments and
penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
iife ¢ycle of the instrument, as well expected changes to India's base rate and other fee
income/expenses that are integral part of the instrument,

6.2.3 Impairment of Financial assets;

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgment,
in particular, the estimation of the amaount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estirnates are driven by a number of factars, changes in which can result in different levels of
altowances.
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The Company's ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of varjable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL rmodels that
are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

» PD calculation inciudes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

» The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and
the qualitative assessment.

» The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
* Development of ECL models, including the various formulfas and the choice of inputs

» Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on P25, EAD and LGD

# Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probahility weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

# The impact of COVID -19 on the global economy and how government, business and
consumer is uncertain This uncertainty is reflected in the Company’'s assessment of
impairment aflowance an its loans which are subject to a number of management judgement
and estimated. While methodologies and assumption applied remains unchanged. Company
has separately incorporated estimates, assumption and judgements specific to the impact of
COVID -19 pandemic.

In terms of the requirements as per RBI notification no. RBi/2015-20/170 DOR
{NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020 on Implementation of Indian
Accounting standard , MNon-Banking Financial Companies {NBFCs) are required to create an
impairment reserve for any shortfall in Impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 and income
Recognition , Asset Classification and Provisioning (IRACP) norms (including provision an standard
assets). The impairment aliowance under Ind AS 109 made by the company exceeds the total
provision required under IRACP {including standard asset provisicning), as at 31 March 2023 and
accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to impairment rezerve.

It is Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary,

6.2.4 Impalrment of Nan-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and its value In use. Where
the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to s recoverable amount.

6.2.5 Provision and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
elernent of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation,
arbitration and regulatary investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.
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When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific
case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case.
Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate
cannot be made, a contingent Hability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Slgnificant judgment is required to conclude on these
estimates.

6.2.6 Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including
judgement on whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax
assessment can involve complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated, They are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the
Company and that are helieved to be reasonable under the circumstances,

6.2,7 Leases - Estimating the Incremental Borrowing rate:

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the {ease, therefore, it uses its
incremental horrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR Is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company 'would have te pay’, which reguires
estimation when no ohservable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the fease. The Company estimates the IBR using ohservable inputs when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

6.2.8 Leases - Estimate of lease period

Ind A% 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Company makes an assessmerd on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis
and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the
contract will be exercised.

6.2.9 Share-Based Payments:

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires use of an appropriate valuation
madel. The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with Option holders using
Black-Scholes Model to determine the fair value of the options on the grant date.

Inputs irnto the valuation model, includes assumption such as the expected life of the share optian,
volatility and dividend yield.

Further details used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disciosed in
Note 5,14.4,
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6.2.10 Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment;:

The useful life to depreciate property, plant and equipment is based on technical obsolescence,
nature of assets, estimated usage of the assets, operating conditions of the asset, and manufacturers’
warranties, maintenance and support period, etc. The charge for the depreciation is derived after
considering the expected residual value at end of the useful life,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed by the management at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Further details about property, plant and equipment are given in Note 15,

6.2.11 Defined benefit plans (gratuity and compensated ahsences benefits)

The Company’s obligation on account of gratuity and compensated absences |$ determined based on
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation invelves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, attrition rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its fong-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assurnptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter subject to frequent changes is the
discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest
rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the cusrencies of the post-employment
benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables in India. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to dermographic changes, Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are
given in Note 40.




APANI CAFITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Natas ta the Einancial Statements for the year endud Mareh 35,2023
(Al emonints In Tk Milian upless atherwise stared)

7 fash and cash equivalents
A% at Agat
Partlguta
" March 81, 2023 | March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 18.22 54
Balancos with banks FEFB ¥4 3,133.86
Fixed depasit with bank for original maturity less than 3 menths {ineluding intergst acerued) - 1,000.10
Tatal 790.34 4,136.80
8 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
- Asx st Az at
Pacticulars
Nratch 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Short-term deposits with banks (including interest acerued} - 1,23074
Lang-térm deposits with banks {incheding Interest aceruzd] 304,20 50.87
T 19420 1,381,634
9 Receivables
I, Trado Recelvables
Az at Az at
Partipular:
Mareh 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023
tonsldered good - S=cured . .
Considerad goad - Unsaourad 11.5% 7.61
Gross trade recelvables 11.44 7,61
Less: Allawance for Expected Cradit Losses o 10.80) (0.32)
Total yrade recelvables [net of impairment) 10.69 120
a, Recandiliation of impairment allowance on trade receivalles:
For the year For the year
Partitulars mided endad
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Impairment dllowance 83 per simplified dpprasch
Cpening Batance Q.32 0.07
Addf{less): On Assets eriginated or sequiced {net) C.98 .75
Clasing Balance 0.89 0.32
Ao trode o other receivebie are due from directors or ether affecers of the company eithar severally or jointly with any ather person. Nor any trade or gther
recelvabie arg gug from firms ar private componies respectively in which ony director it a portner, o director or ¢ member.
b, Trade recalyables agning schadulg
Outstanding far Following perleds fram due date of payment
As at March 31, 2025 Less than & B months - Mote than 3 Tatal
12 ypars 23 yaars
months 1 year years
Cansideved good - Secured - - - . ' .
Censidernd gand - Unserured 4.86 1.45 0.16 - - 11.48
G3ross trade receivables .86 1.46 0,16 _ - 3343
Lusy: Allawance tar Expacted Cradit Losses (0.80)
Tatal trade receivabius (net of impairmnont) 10
Qutstanding for follewing parinds from dug date of payment
Asat M u Mote than ¥ Todal
at March 31, 2022 Lass than & & manths 12 years 23 years ote tha
months 1 year Yaars
Considetud goad - Secured - - - - " .
Considergr gond - Unsecurad 146 a.02 D.13 - - 161
Gross frade receivables 7.46 4.0% LR I LA : 7,61 |
Lass: Allowance [or Expecied Credit Losses {0.32)
7.4

Tatal trage reccivables (net of knpaitment)
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10 Loans
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amortized cost Amortised cost
{A) Loans 27,271.47 19,019.30
Total - Gross {(A) 27,277.47 19,019.3¢
Less: Impairment loss allowance (376.32) {236.52)
Total - Net of impalrment loss allowance {A} 26,901.15 18,782.78
{B} (i) Secured by tangible assets 25,549.07 16,188.32
(i) Unsecured 1,728.40 2,830.98
Tatal - Gross (B} . 27,271.47 15,019.30
Less: tmpairment loss allawance {376.32) {236.52)
Total - Net of impairment loss aflowance {B) 26,901.15 ’ 18,782,78
(C) Loans in India
(i} Public sectors - -
{ii} Dthars 27,217.47 19,019.30
Total - Grass {C) 27,277.47 19,019.3¢
Less: Impairtment loss allowance (376.32) (236.52)
Total - Net of impairment loss allowance (€} 26,501.15 18,782.78
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{All emounts in T in Millions unless atherwise stated)

Investments

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

At fair value through profit & Joss

-investment in Security Receipts 153.89 -

2,14,285 (As at 31.03.2022 NiL) Security Recelpts of

EARC TRUST 5C - 435 of £ 1,000 each [Face Value as

at 31.03.2023 - 718,14 (As a1 31.03.2022 NIL}]
-Investment in Equity Shares of Other Company

1,19,235 (As at 31.03.2022 NIL) Equity shares of C5C 239.66

Grameen EStore Private Limited of ¥ 10 each fulty

paid-up -
Total - Gross (A) 393.55 .
{1} Investments outside India - -
{ii) Investrnents in india 393.55 -
Total - Gross (B) 393,55 -
Less: Allowance for impairment loss {C) - -
Total - Net {A-C) 393.55 -
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(Al smounts in % in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Other financial assets
Particul As at Asat
arttcuiare March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security Deposits 17.08 15.87
Excess interest Spread [EIS) Receivables 1,072.84 233.76
Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses (4.90) -
Yatal EIS Receivables {net of impairment) 1,067.94 133176
Qthes receivables from related parties (Refer Note 51) 56.47 83.85
Others 4,30 4.29
Total 1,145.80 337.77
Current tax assets (net)
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Advance income tax - 38,66
(PY: Net of provision tor income tax € 36.82 millions)
Total - 38.66
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Deferred tax

The major companents of deferred tax assets / (liabilities} arlsing on account of timing dilerences are az follows:

As at March 21, 2023

As at Recognised in profit Recognised As at
Particulars Aptit 01, 2022 ot nss inad March 2], 2023
Daferred tax assots
Impalrment loss on financial assets 52.09 42.82 - 94.91
EIR érmpact on financtsl instruments 6.14 (6.42) {0.28)
Impaet of Leages 6.67 .51 - 7.18
Retlrement benefit plans 31.80 6.42 .58 18.90
{A} 76.80 A3.23 0,58 120.71
Beferred tax liabillties
Difference between written down value of fixed 355ets as per the books 10.53 0,93 - 11 B6
of aceounts and income tax
EIR impact on borrowings 2416 18,29 42.45
Impact of direct assignrment trantactions 58.84 211.17 - 270,01
{8} £3.93 230.29 - 324.32
Deferrad tax assets / {liabllities) (net) {A-B)] {17.13)] {187.06)] p.58 | (203.61)
A4 at March 33, 1022
" Ised | fi R ised A
Particulars Az gt Recognised In profit erognise < at
April 01, 2021 or lass in 01 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets
impalrment foss on financist assets 41.74 10.35 - 52.09
£4R impact en financial |nstruments 5.68 .46 - 6.14
impact of Leases 4,23 2.44 - 6.67
fetivement benefit ptans B.2G 495 {1.31) 11.80
{A) £9.91 18.20 (1.31} 76.80
Deferved tax Habilitles
Difference between written down valye of fixed #ssets as per the books 9.08 1.85 - 1093
of accounts and incarne tax
EIR [mpact on horrowings .69 13.47 - 14.16
Impact of direct assignment fransactions 34.86 28.18 - 58.84
(8) 40,43 53.50 - 93,93
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net} (A-B)] 19.48 | {35.30)] {1.31)] {17.13)
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes ta tha Financial Statements for the year endod March 31, 2023

(AN amounts in § in Millions unlesy otherwise stoted]

16 Capital-Wark-in Progress

Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

Amaunt in CWIP for a porfod of

Particulars Mara than 3 Total
1ess than 1 Year 1-2 Years -3 Years
Years
Projects in progress R R - R "
Projects tarnporarily suspepded " R -
Total B . - .
Ageing schedule as at 31 March 1022
Amoaunt in CWIP for 3 period of
Particulars b Yot
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years -3 Years Mare than 3 atal
Yaars
Projects in progress 0,18 f " - 18
Projects tamporarily suspended - - - .
Tital 0.18 - - - 0.18
17 Intangihle assets under development
Ageing schedule as at 31 Myreh 7023
Amount in Intangible assets under development for 2 perfod of
Partlcularg
LessthanlYesr | 12 Years 2-3 Yoars Mare than 3 Total
Yoars
Projects in progress 33.15 - - - 33,15
Projects tarnporarily suspénded - N
Total 33.15 u u - 13.15
Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022
Arsount [n Intangible aszets under development for a perlod of
Particulars Mare than 3 Toral
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years are than ot
Years
Projects in progress 23,38 " . 23.38
Projects temporarily suspended - - - .
Tatal 7338 B - - 23.38

T
ot

. v




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Staternents for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in T in Millions unless otherwise stated)

18 Other intangible assets

particulars Software Total
|Gross Block

As at April 01, 202 161.56 161.56
Additions 5.45 545
Disposais . R
As at March 31, 2022 1p7.01 167,01
Additions 34.71 3471
Dispasals “ .
As at March 31, 2023 201.72 201.72
Accumulated Depreciation / Amortization:

As at April 01, 2021 27.80 27.80
Depreciation / Amartization for the year 16.44 16.44
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2022 44.24 44.24
Depreciation / Amortization for the year 20.45 20.45
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 64.69 64.69
et book value

As at March 31, 2023 137.03 137.03
As at March 31, 2022 122.77 122.77

19 Other non-financial assets
Particut As at As at
articulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2027

Prepaid expenses 63.00 29.42
Batances with government authorities 35.41 21.52
Others 333 16.72
Total 101.74 67.66




ADANI] CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(AN groounts in % in Milltony unless otherwise stoted)

20 Payables
Particutars As dt As at
March 21, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Trade payables
{i} tota! outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 20 (o) below) - .
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smaH enterprises 185.87 60,12
185.87 60.12
Other Payables
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entarprises " »
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21.77 3.85
21.77 385
Total 207.64 63.97

extent of iInformation reseived by the Company from the suppliers regarding thair status under MSMED Act:

Information required as per section 22 of the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 {M3MED Act) provided based on and to the

Particulars

As at
Match 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Principal amount due to syppliers undar MSMED Act, as at the year end {since paid)
Interest accrued and due to suppliers urder MSMED Act, on the above amount as at the year end
Payment made to suppllers {othet than Interest) neyond the appointed day, during the year
Interest pald to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than section 16)

interest pald to suppliers undar MSMED Act [section 16)

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payments alraady made
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the year end to suppliers under MSMED Act

b. Trade payables ageing schedule

Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment

As at March 31, 2023 More than 3 Total
st Mareh 3t Less than I yesr 1-1 years 2-3 years
years
Trade payables - Undisputed
{i) MSME " - - . .
{l} ©thar than MSME 1B5.87 - - - 185.87
Total 185 87 R - . 185.87
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
A% at March 21, 2022 Muors than 3 Total
2 * Loss than 1year|  1-2 years 2-3 years
years
Trade payables - Undisputed
{i} MSME - . N .
(i} Dther than M5ME 60.12 - . - 60,12
Total 60.12 - - - 60,12




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in T in Milllons unless otherwise stoted)

21 Debt securities

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Az at
March 31, 2022

Amprtised cost

Amortised cost

Privately placed reteemable non-convertible debemtures - Secured 1,496.46 2,511.69
Commercial papers - Unsecurad 247.62 -
Total 1,744.08 2,511.69
Debt Securities in india 1,744.08 2,511.69
Debt Securities outside India - -
Total 1,744.08 2,511.69
a. Maturity profile and rate of interest of debt securities are set out below:
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Rate of intarast Maturity Amaoundt
Repayable in single
Privately placed non-canvertible debentyres - 3 9.50% instalrment on 29 lune 500.00
2023
Repayable in single
Privately piaced non-convertible debentures - § 9.39% instaiment on 5 980.00
January 2024
Repayahle in single
Privately placed commerclal papers 7.70% instalmeat on 19 May 250.00
2023
1,730.00
Add: Interest accrued and effective interest rate amortisation 1408
1,744.08
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Rate of interast Maturity Amaunt
Repayable in single
Frivately placed non-convertible debentures - 2 B.15% Instatiment an 18 May 1,000.00
2022
Repayable in single
Privately placed nan-convertible debentyres - 3 9,503 instalment an 29 June 500.00
2023
Repayabrle in single
Privataly placed non-convertible debentyres - 4 8.60% Instalment on 13 9E8D.00
Ducember 2007
2,480.00
Add: interest accrued and effective interast rate amortization 31.69
2,511,649

£, Nature of Security :

Privately placed non-convertible debentures - 2/3/4 : Redeamable nan-convertible debenturas which have been privatety placed are secured by hypothecation

of Loan Receivables & Investmant Receivahles of the company to the extent of 1,2x times,

Privately placed non-corvertibie debentures - 5 ; Redeamable non-convertible debentures which have been privately placed are secured by first ranking
exclusive charge over the identified foan assets/baok debts of the company alang with all present and future book debts which has up to 1 year of original

maturity such that the principal amount with respect te such assets shall at afl times be equal to 1.00x
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Flinancial State rments for the yesr ended March 31, 2023

AN aragunts in % in AMNIToNS unless atherwise stated)

h. Naturs of Securlty

Barrowlngs {other than debt securities)
As ot As at
Particufars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amortised cost Amortised cost
Secured
Term laans
- frorm Banks 19,249.22 14,933.65
- from financial tnskitutions B03.63 1,179.5%
Loans repayable on demand
2 friomm hanks 128.0%
Unsecured
Term loans
- from financial institutions - 2.73
Laahs repayable on demand
- from related parties 1G0.80
Tatal 20,281.08 16,116.,37
Borrawings in india 20,231.08 14,116.97
Borrowings outside India .
iTotal 20,281.08 16,116.37
a. Maturity proflle and rate of Interest of borrowlngs from banks and other partics are set put below:
As at March 31, 2023
Pavticutars Rate of Interest Maturity |
0-1Year 1-3Years 3-8 Yaars Total
+arm Loans from banks - Secured 7.95% to 10.50% 6,855.1% 9,607,2]1 2,4900.71 19,357.07
Term Loans from financial institutions - Secured B.50% to 10.65% 416,67 387.50 804,17
Loans repayable on demand from banks - Secured +.50% to 10.85% 128.03 - 128,03
Loan: repayable on dermapd  from R.00% 160.00 k00
Unsecured
20,358,217
Add: Interest accrued and effective interest rate smortisation (138,19}
20,281.08
Az at March 31, 2022
, Maturity
Particulars Rate of Interest 0-1Year T-aveare T Total
Term Leans fram banks - Secured 5.00% to 10.20% 5,642.15 5,993.61 3,371.4% 15,007.25
Titree Lagns fram financial institutions - Secured B.50% to 11.25% 56423 616.67 . 1,180.90
Terrn Loans from financial Institutians - Unsecurad 5.48% 2,73 . .73
16,180.68
Add: Intarest accrued and effective Interest rate smortlistion [74.51)

1511647

Teren loany from banks B financial institutions / ioaas repayable pn demand freim banks are secured by hypothecation of loan receivables & Investment receivatles of the

campany.

¢. The borrawings have not bees guarantieed by dirpctars ar othars. Alzo the Company has not defaulted in repayment of barrowings and interast.

s,

A
A Tl
AR




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amaunts In % In Mifllens uniess otherwise stated)

Subordinated liabilities

AL aL As at
Partieulars maerch 31, 3023 Mareh 33, 2022
Amortised cost Amortised cost
Uingaeired
Privately placed subardinated {Tier I} redecmable non-convertible debantures £76.16 336494
Total 576,16 136.96
Subordinated Liabilities in India 576,16 336.96
Subgrdinated Liabilities sutside India - )
Total 576,16 336.96
#. Maturity profile snd rate of interest of subordinated lahilities are set out below:
A5 Mareh 1, 2023,
Particulars Rate of interest Maturity Amount
Repayable in single
Privately placed subordinated {tier 31} redeemable pon-convertible debentures - 3 5.75% Instalment on 30 350.00
Nevember 2028
Repayable in single
Privately placed subordinated (Tier 1} redeemable non-convertible debentures - 2 9.75% instaiment on 25 May 250.00
2029
606,00
Add; Interest accrued and effective interest rate amortisation {23.84)
- 57616

As at March 33, 2022

Particulars Rate of intarest Ivaturity Amount
Repayable in single
Privately placed subordinated (Tier i1} redeemable nonscenvertible debentutes « 1 9.75% Instalnent an 30 35000
N Movember2028 |
350.00
Add: Interest accrued and effective interest rate amortisation (13.04)

336.98
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

fAll amounts in X In Millions unless atherwise stoted)

Other financial liabilities

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Lease Liability {Refer Note 52) 207.75 225.10
Ermployee benefits payable 1.37 3.47
Other Payables 462 .88 584.08
Total 672.00 B12.65
Current tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Pravision for income tax 9.77 .
{Net of advance tax & TDS % 150.75 millions)
Total 9.77 -
Provisions
Particulars

As at A5 at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (Refer Note 40) 27.01 16.79
Compensated Absences (Refer Note 40) 48.09 30.48
Total 75.10 47.27
Other non-financial liabilities
Particular
* As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Statutory liabilities 37.15 24.54
Revenue received in advance 4.72 3.21
Others 107.32 49 .56
Total 149.19 77.30




ADANI] CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Finznclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Alf amaunts in & in Miflions urless otherwise stated)

18 Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Partleulars Nuinber Amount Numhber Amount
Authorlsed Capital
Equity shares af T 10 aach 30,000,000 300,00 30, 000, (G0 300,00
10,000,000 360,60 40,000,000 300,00
Issued, subtcribed and fully pald up
Equity 3bares of % 10 each fully pald up 23,200,084 232.09 22,754,541 22155
23,209,086 231.09 12,754,541 227.55
I. Movement ip sguity share capital
As at March 31, 2023 Af at Mareh 31, 2022
Particulars MNumbar Amount Kumber Amount
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 22,754,548, 227.55 17,298,996 173.00
Ehares issued during the year 454,545 4.54 5,454,545 54.55
Outstanding at the end of the year 23,200,086 232.09 22,754,541 221,55

Motes:

A, issia of equity shares

During the year, the company has tsswed 4,54,545 [PY; 54,54, 545) fully paid-up equity shares of & 10 per share at a premium of & 540 [PY: K 265}
per share for aggregate consigeration of X 250,00 Miltion (PY; % 1,500.00 Millicn} te its helding company Adani Finserve Private Limited,

B. Terris/rights attached to equity shares

The company hat only one elass of pquity shares having pat value of X 18 per share fully paid up, Each holder of equily shares iz antitled 10 ono

vote per share.

In the event of liguidatisn of the company, the equity shareholders will be entitted to receive remaining assots of the comgany, after distsibution
of all preferential amounts, if aiy, in proportion to the number of sgulty shares held by the sharehaldars,

C. Shares held by the holding company

As at March 31, 2023 As ot March 31, 2022
Particul
artiouiars Nea, of shares hetd % Holding Mo, of shares hald % Halding
Holding Company
Adanl Finsarve Private Limited 23,209,085 100.00% 22,754,540 104 080%
Total 23,209,085 100.00% 22,754,540 100.00%
0, Detaik of shareholder{s) holding more than 5% of equity shares in the company :
As at March 31, 2022 As at Mareh 31, 2022
Name of thareholder No. of shares hald % Halding Na. of shares held % Holdlng
Equity shares of 8 10 oach fully pald up
Holding Company
Adant Finkerve Private Limited 23,104,085 100.00% 22,754,540 100.00%
Total 23,209,085 100.00% 12,754,540 100.00%

As por the recards of the Company, Including its register of shargholders/mersbers and other declarations received from sharehalders regarding
beneficial intarest, the above sharchoiding reprasents both legal and benelicial ownerships of shares.

wwwww
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to the Financtal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts i % in Mitions unlegs ptherwise stated}
ZB Equity share capital fepntd..}

E. Shares held by the promoters

As at March 21, 2023

Opening balance

% change during

Particutars Clusing balance of
f ho, of 5 { % of total shares % of total shares
afno. of shar ® na. of shares held the year
held
Bromoters
Adard Finserve Private Limited 12,754,540 100.00% 23,209,085 100.00% 2.00%
As at March 31, 2022
Opaning balance
Farticulars Closing balance of % change durln,
of no., of shares | % of total shares 8 % of tota! shares B &
no. of sharas held the year
hald
Promoters
Adani Finserve Private Limited 17,299,335 100.00% 22,754,540 100.00% 31.51%




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts in X in Mitlions uniess otherwise stated)

29 Other equity

Particulars As at As at
March 21, 2023 March 31, 2022
L. Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 1,574.21 3,128.76
Add : Premium received on issue of securities 24545 1,445.45
Less: Share issUe eXpenses (0.08) -
Ciosing Balance 4,819,528 4,574.21
Il. Share based payment resarve
Opening halance 79.34 37.14
Add: During the year 6.48 42,20
Closing Balance B5.82 79,34
. Special Reserve under section 45-1C of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934
Opening balance 66.29 5190
Add : Additions during the year 1B1.36 14.39
Clasing Balance 247.65 66.29
V. fmpairment Reserve
Opening balance - -
Add : AdditTons during the year - -
Closing Balance - -
V. Retained earnings
Opening balance 172,95 111,53
Add : Profit for the year 906.79 71.93
Add : Other comprehensive income (1.71) 3.88
Amount available for appropriation 1,078.03 187.34
Less: Appropriations
Transfer to Special Reserve u/fs 45-1C of the Reserve (181.38) {14.39)
Bank of India Act, 1934
Closing Balance 898.67 172.95
Total Other Equity 5,049.72 4,892.7%




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in T in Millions unfess otherwise stated)

Securities premium reserve

The securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. The reserve can
be utilised only for limited purpase such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with provision of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Share based payment Reserve

The Company has stock option scherme under which the eligible employees and key management personnel
can exercise the stock options granted and vested in them. On such exercise of the stock options the
employees will be allotted equity shares of the Company. The share-based payment reserve is used to
recopnise the value of equity-settied share-based payments,

Statutory reserve
Reserve created under 45-IC{1} In The Resarve Bank of India Act, 1924 a sum not fess than twenty per cent of
its net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents surplus / accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for
distribution to shareholders.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in X in Milfions unless otherwise stated)

Interest income

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars On financial assets Qn financial assets
measured at amortised | measured at amottised
cost cost
interest on foans 4,024.15 2,166.08
interast on fixed deposits 3z.41 17.00
Other nterest Incorme 186.24 105.49
Tatal 4,242.80 2,292 57
Net gain on fair value changes
Particul Year ended Year ended
articuiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Met gain on financial instrurments at fair value through profit or loss
-On trading portfolio - -
-Investments 53,18 30.31
Total £3.18 30.31
Falr value changes
-Reallsed 53.18 30.31
-Unrealised . .
Total 53.18 30.31
Other income
Particul Year ended Year endead
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
interest on income tax refund 1.29 2.56
Excess Provision written back 7.15 -
Miscellaneous intormne 32.56 7.70
Total 41.00 10.26
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Fipancial Statements for the year anded March 31, 2023

(Al aravunts In X in Miltions unless otherwise stated)

Finance costs

Particulars

Year anded
Mareh 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

an financlal lahilities
measured at amortised

On financiat liabilities
measured at amovtised

cost £ost
interest on borrawings 1,652.24 82039
Interest on debenturas 138.68 216.51
Interest on subordinated liabilities 54.83 11.28
tnterest ¢n lease liability 20,45 17.62
Other finance cost 19.37 8.34
Total 188557 1.074.14
Impairment an financial instruments
b | Year ended Year ended
Artiedlars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
On Financial instruments measured at amartised ¢ost
{i} Lpans 129,80 59.89
(i) Investments v -
{iii) Others 5.37 0.25
L.oan write off 154.51 136,19
Loss on sale of repussessed assets 65.10 35.30
Total 364.78 225.63
Employee benefits axpenses
Particut Year ended Year ended
aricutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Salaries and wages 1,036.55 662.72
Contribution to provident and ather funds 81.57 49.80
Share based payment to employees (Refer Note 57) 5.24 3091
Staff welfare expenses 46,56 23.21
Gratuity expenses (Refar Note 40} 8.19 B.08
Leave encashment 22,75 15.58
Total 1,200.86 790.30
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Depreciation on property, plant and equiprments 71.74 54.54
Amortisation on intangible assets 20,45 1644
Total 91.19 70,98
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 3L, 2023
{all gmounts iry % in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Other expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Rent 21.05 18,79
Communication expenses 30.04 i1.76
Travelling and canveyance 2312 41,32
Miscellaneous expentes 1.4G 2.50
Bank charges 5.06 2.32
Cash collection expenses 4.32 7.65
File starape and processing expenses 25.13 14.69
Dhrector's fees, alowances and expenses 2.62 21.62
Membership & subscription 1.67 0.54
Security expenses 2.1 2.55
Branch setup expenses 056 0,32
Credit information ¢osts 0.11 0.69
Electricity charges 12.00 7.58
IT gxpenses 100,39 50.63
IHsurance expenges 0,18 0.09
Lepal and professional fees 125.49 95.35
Office expenses 7.92 5.74
Office maintenance expensas 9.12 2.8%
Printing and stationery 14.67 93.76
Payment to auditers (Refer Note 37.1) 4.93 4,71
Rates and taxes 12.98 431
Recruitment expenses 2.55 217
Repairs and maintenance 149 1.03
Marketing Expenses 19.26 10.63
C5R expenses (Refer Note 38) .27 133
Recovery of shared cost from feliow subsidiary fRefer Note 37.2} {82.37) {56.63)
Total 434.91 261.34
Payment to the auditors:

. Year ended Year ended
Particutars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

As Auditor

Audit fees 4.03 378

Certification and other matters .58 D.B1

Reimbursement of expenses 0.15 0.01

GST 0.18 0.11
Total* 493 4.71

* Amount includes Goads and sesviee tax for which input eredit has been disallowed

Recovery of shared cost from fellow subsidiary;

Adani Capital Private Limited (ACPL) Incurs expenditure like rent, electricity chargas etc, which is for the cammon benafit of itsell and
itz feflow subsidiary Adani Housing Finance Private Lirnited {AHFPL). This cost s expended is recovered by ACPL hasad or the actual

expenditura incurred, the number of employees and volume of business ete,




ADANLI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Motes o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al gmounts in ¥ in Milllons unless otherwive stated)

38 Corporate social responsibility expenditure

Particulars Year anded March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
1. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 2.27 1.33
2. Amount of expenditure incurred on:
1) Constructionfacquisition of any assat . -
Ii) On purpases other than (i) above 2.27 133

3. Shortfall at the end of the year*

4. Total of previous years shortfall

5, Reason for shartfall

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

&, Nature of CSR activities

Support to ereate International levef
schoaling facilities at subsidized rate

1. Provision of infrastructure facilities
at schools

2. Provision of food to needy people
during COVID-19 pandermnic

7. Detatls of related party transactions in relation to C5R expenditure as
per reievant Accgunting Standarg

Refer Note 51 - Related Party
Disclosure

Refar Note 51 - Related Party
Disclasure

*Nate;

1. In respect of ongaing projects, there are no unspent amount. Accardingly, no amount is required to be transferred to the spectal account.
2. In respact of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amaunt. Accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to the fund,

39 Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particul As at Cash Flows Changes in Fair Others Az at
articulars Aprit 1, 2022 {net} Value {net)* March 31, 2033
Debt securities 2,511.69 {752.38) - (15.23) 1,744.08
Borrawing cther than debt securities 16,116.37 4,208,40 - {43.68) 20,281.08
Subordinated liahitities 33696 250.00 - {10.80) 576.16
Total 18,965.03 3,706.02 - {69.73) 22,501.32
Particul Asat Cash Flows Changes in Fair Others As at
articulars April 1, 2021 (net) Value fnet)* March 31, 2022
Dabt securilies 2,516,771 {20.00) 14,98 2,511.63
Borrowing ether than debt securities 7,284.05 B.B51.15 (18.83) 16,116.37
Subardinated liabilitias " 350,00 - [13.04) 336,96
Tatal 9,800.76 9,181.15 - {16.89} 13,965.03

* Others cofumn includes the effect of acerued but not pald interest an borrowings, amortisation of processing fees, etc.
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40 Employee Bengfits

&, Defined ¢ontributlan plan . provident funds

1+ pegRrdanen with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscallinedius Pravicipns Act, 1952, amployees of the Company are entitled to peteive beaefits undar 1he pravident fusd, 3 delined
cantribution plan, inwhith, batk the dinpioyms gnd e Cornpany contribute monthly at a determinzd rate. These centtibutians are image ta 3 recogaizad provident fund administarad by
Ragional Providant Fund Commissionar. Th etnployeres cantribute 13% of their basic salary and this Camatny Sontriaunes ao agual amoung.

The Company recagnised @ B1.57 hlllon (PY: ® 49.80 Milllon) for year ended bMarch 31, 2023, fae provicent fund and ather cantnbutions in the Hatement of prafit and loss.

b. Dafinod Bunoflt Man - Gratity

In accordance with i Payiment of Geatuhy AtT, 1972, the Company prowides for gratuily, 2 non-coalributary dafingg ponafit arrangement praviding lump-sum geatulty benefis
exprezsed In teems of final monthly salary and year of service, covering all emplgyees. The pian prevking a lump sium payment 1o vested employees at retirement or termination of
employment in aceordance with the rules laid down inthe Payment of Gratuitly Act, 1973,

The: mast recent agtadsial wilustion pertiining b present valug of the dafinad benctit obligation (GHD) for gratuity wirs Gatriod owt As a1 March 31, 2623. Tho prascnt valug of the
defined benefit abitigatiang ang the rolatod currgnt servica cost and past service cost, were messured wiing thi Prajacead Unit Cradit Method.

Baswrct on the actuarial valuatian obtained in this respect, the fallawing Talle £015 auT Th status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the Company's Tinantial statements 33
at balanca showt date:

Partisulars o Az at Azat
Moreh 33, 2098 | March 31, 2033 |
Prafnnt valig of obligation {A) 7.0 16,79
Fair value of plaw igers {B) - -
Present value of ebligation (A B] 2401 16.7%
Net doficle / {assets) are analysed a+:
Uabllitles » {(Refer natwe 26) 7.01 16.79
Movairgnt Ih rdt defined benefit {asset) llability
‘fhe following tablo shaws a recanciltation frarm thy apontng balances to the closing balances for net defined beaefit (asser) lixbiity and it components.
Particutars Dafinod Banaft Obligation Ealr Value of plan assats Nt duTlised Boefiy 1%’..‘.!1!2%!5.!“
31-Mar23 AL.Marid §i-Mar-33 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 35-Muor-22
fApening balance 16.79 11.84 . - k79 1184
CUrr#nt sarvice cost 7.34 7.46 - - .34 746
Interast cast linsome) 4.80 0.63 - - L.BE a3
Banefits Poid w27 - - v .27 .
1sakily Tranzfer In - .06 - - - 2.06
Linbitlty Transfer {Out) - " - - - -
24.5x .94 - " .71 11.9%
Other comprghamive income
Remeasuremant losg (gain]:
Actuaria! loss {gain) arizing from:
Chingn in damographic assumptions {1.33) (5.97) . - (3.33) {5.47)
Erperienes varlance 4.67 054 - - 157 0,55
Change In Fipanalnl assumptingg (1.05) Q.22 - . {5.0%) 0.22
7.29 {s.20} - - 2.28 (5,200
ttosing balance 21.01 16,79 - . 21,01 16,78
Raprigrnted by
Net defined lighility . 17.01 16.79
27.01 16,78
o,

FEdL

N
\)\L,‘:I.: :.rﬂ |
Ly 33
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Notes to the Flnaneinl Statorments for fha year endad Maorch 31, 2023
(Al omounts i X Ire Millians enhtst otherwise stated)

Coriposants of defined banefit plan cost:

Far the year Fuar Ths yuse
Purticulirs endod anded
March $1, 2023 March 31, 2022
Recopnized in szatomant of prafic or loss
Current warvice cost 7.34 746
itarast cast/ (income) dnet) 0.86 0.63
Total 8.1% 8,09
Ructgvined in ather comprehenslva ineoima
Actuarlal loss (galn) arising from:
Change in demographit sysumptions 133 {5.0%)
Experie nen yatighae 467 (i 4
Chanige in Finanziat assunprians (1.0} ar
Total 2.19 1320
Actwacii ] ediumptians:
The foltawiag were tha principa) actuarial assumptions at the Feparting data:
Af &% g it
Partieulats Parch 3L, 2023 | Marsh 31, 2032
Qggouny racn 150% 5.10%
Salary growth rate 2,00% &.bo%
withdrawalfattritinm rate (ased an cateporfes) 54.30% 46 10%
maortality ratn 100 of IALM 100% of 1ALM
2042-14 2012-1d
Expetied welghted avarage remaining working livas of employees 26.25 yeds 26.55 yeark

Notes:

) The dlicaunt rote indicated abave reflects the estimoated timing and currescy of braefit pijmwents. i (5 baigd an the ylelds / rotes avoloble on applicable bonds oz on the cuerant

walumtion daty.

&) The sudiey growth rate indlcuted obove (s the Company's best estimele & an increase b selary of the seapleyoss in furure years, determined considerlng the general trend in inflaticn,
La8IDFILY, PIomations, past experience ond other frelevel faiTors sueh of gemand and supply in emplopment market, otc.

) Attritian rare jndicoled obove represents the Compony's besT astimarg of emplayee turaover Jn future (other then on account of retirement, death of dilnblement) determined

considering ¥orius fortirs such oF sarure of businesk, reteation paficy, industry factors, past sxperience, ctc.

Sensitivity snalyzis:

Reasanalily possible changes at the reparting date Lo ane of the felevdnt adtiarlal dssuimpiions, balding ofher assumptions constant, would have affected the defined bencfit obligation

by the amounts shown below.

[Y¥H A1l
Particulars Muech 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ncroase Decrease increase Brcroase

Satary Growth Rate {+/- 1%) FYRN) 2550 17.34 16.34
(% chanpe compared 1o BAsE dus T debsitivity) 1,580% -1.00% 2.70% -2 60N
Digsount Rarg 4/ 19} 25.49 27.54 16,35 17.26
{% change compyrad to base dus Lo sensitlvity) -1.904 2.00% 608 280%
Aliritier Rate [+ 5% of attrition ratos) 118 EER: 1354 21.55
{% changr fompyred to base due to sensitivity} «10.40% 2dAte 248 70 20.30%
Mortafity Kate {-/4 10% of mortafity ratos} 2701 A7.00 1879 16,79
% ehange cempared to base due to sensitivity] .00% o.00% o2.00% a.00%

The Sensitivily is porfarmnd on the OO at the respnctive vatuatior date by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other paramaters constant. Thave 5 no change it the rethod of

valization For the prior pariod.

", i y

Vtmy o= ’j
LY o
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ADANI CAPITAIL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes 1o Lthe Hnanclal Statgments for tha year ended March 31, 2023
I emavnits (1 T in MIIORS Unfess atherwise sieied)

Maturlty profite of Defined Denefit Quligation

Expecred ¢ash flows over the next {valued on undiscounted %845k y Mprq:;:‘]_ﬂz; MM‘:;:::N%W
1years 13.49 4.30
1105 yaars 15.66 13,03
6 iz 10 years 134 1.98
Maore than 30 Years 0.04 0.13
Eapariante adjustments
As ut Az at
Parsieittnes
! March 23, 2023 1 torch 31, 2o
Defined Denefit Obligations A7 16.79
Falrvirue of plan assels - -
Assct/[Hiability} tecoprized In the balante theet trai 16.79
Experience adiustmant an pian Falilitgs LA 055
& Campontatesd absances;
Tha Cormgpany provides for accumulated compensatad ahsences az at the balance sheet dote using projectedt undt cradit frethed bastd on aituprial valuation.
Partizutars At at Az at
Mtaech 31, 2022 | Match 31, 2022
Present value of upfunded ablization 48.08 30.48
Expunses recognfsed (n L Statermenn of Profit and (055 1761 4457
{AMImption
Diseount Raby 7.50% 5. L0
Talary growth rate B.O0% B.ODW
witharawalfattrivian eats {based on catogaring) EA.30% A65.20%
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Noites to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amaunts in Tin Millions unfess otherwise stated)

41 Tax expense

(a} Amaunts recognised in staterment of profit and loss

Particulars

Year eanded
Mareh 31, 2023

Year ended
Mareh 31, 2022

Current tax expense

Current year 123.90 12.33
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of tarnporary differences 187.06 35.30
Tax expense for the year 310,96 47.63
(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
As at March 31, 2023
farticulars Befarae tax Tax {expensa) Nat of tax
items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss
(8) Remeasurements of defined benefit fiabifity (asset} {2.29) 0.58 {1.71)
Total {2.25} 0.58 (1.71)
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Befors tax Tax {(expense)} Net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurements of defined beneflt liability (asset) 519 {1.31) 3.88
Total 5.15 {1.31) 3.88
(<} Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended

farticulars

March 31, 2023 § March 31, 2022
Profit before tax as per Statement of profit and loss 1,217.75 119.56
Applicabla Income tax rate (35) 25.17% 25.17%
Tax expense catcuiated at applicable incoma tax rate 306.48 30.09
Tax effect of adfustments to reconcile expected income tax expense to reported income tax
Other adjustmeants 4,48 17.54
Ihcome tax expense racognised i profit and loss 310.86 47.62
Effective Tax Rate 25.54% 39.84%

Mote: The Company bas alected to exertise the aptioh pesmitted under section 1158AA of the Income Tax Act, 1561 as introduced by the Taxation Laws
{Arendment} Ordinance, 2019, Accordingly, the Company has recognised provisian for income Tax for the year ended March 31, 2022 and re-measured
its Deferred tax assets/liability basis the rate prescribed in the aforesalg section and recognised the effect of change by revising the annual effective

ineame (ax rata.
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Netas to the Financial Staterments for the year ended March 31, 2023
Al amounts in X in Milllans uniess otherwise stated}

42 Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average nurnber of equity shares outstanding during the year adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive patential equity
shares.

Particulars Year endad March | Year ended March
articutar 31, 2023 31, 2022

Net prefit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company - A 506,79 71.93
Weighted average number of shares (Basic) - B 22,986,172 17,314,340
Dilutive impact of potential equity shares for employee stock options gutstanding 280,015 52,207
Weighted average nurnber of shares (Dituted) - C 23,266,187 17,367,147
Basic earnings per share (%) {A/B) _ 39.45 4.15
Diluted earnings per share (%} {A/C} 38.97 4.14
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Stateiments for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
fAl amounts in % in pillions unless otherwize stoted)

Cantingent liahilities and commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various partles. The Company assesses such claims and
assertlonts and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legat counsel, wherever necessary. The
Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss ts probable and capable of being estimated and discioses such matters in
its financial statements, if raterial. For potential losses that are considered possible, but not prohahle, the Company provides disclosure In
the financial statements but does not record # liability in its accounts unless the loss becames probable,

The Company believes that the outcome of these praceadings will nat have a materlally adverse effect an the Company's financial position
and results of operations.

a. Cpntingent Liability
There are no contingent labitities as at 31 March 2023 as wel! as at 31 March 2022.

b. Cammitments

Pacticular As at As at
fMarch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Commitment in respact of:
Capitat expenditura 4.94 4,16
Loans samctionad but not disbursed - 1,345.03

€. During the year ended March 31, 2023, a short seller had issued 2 report alleging eertain {ssues against the Adani Group Entitles. In this
context there 15 a petition filled in the hon'ble Supreme Court, and SERI is examining compliance with laws and regulations by conducting
enquiries to listed Adani group entitios,

Adani Capital Private Limited has not entered into any transactions with the Adani Group entities that are the subject of the short selier
repert or SEBI report, Therefore, the management has concluded that there will be no impact on the financlal statements of the Company
as a result of the atlegations or the outcome of the SEBI report,

For the inans pertaining ta Farm Equipmant and Cemmercial Vehicle business ampunting to T 1,555,93 Million (FY - X 1,601.64 Millian) as
at March 31, 2023, the Management is in the process of collection of Registration Certificate Book (RC Book) from the customers.

In ease of Laans for Farm Equipment business amounting to T 77.51 Million {PY - T 51.45 Milian] as at March 31, 2023, first loss default
guarantee (FLDG) is provided by equipment mapufacturer ta the extent of S0%.

in respect of secured loans for M5ME business amounting to @ 130.87 Million (PY - ® 62.92 Million) disbursed, the Company is in the
pracess of parfecting the security.

Receivahle / Payable balance In forelgn currency — % NIt {PY — X Nill. The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure
as an March 31, 2023 (PY - Nil),
Segment infarmation

The Company operates in a single reportable sepment i.e. lending, since the nature of the loans are exposed te similar risk and return
profites hence they are coflectively operating under a single segment, The Company operates in a single geopraphical segment i.e.
domestic, Hence, thare are no separate reportable sepments, as required by the Ind A% 108 on “Segment Reporting’.

Events after reporting date

There have bean no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements,
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50 Maturity Analysis of assets and liabllities

The table below shaws an analysis of assets and liabilities anatysed accarding to when they are expacted to be recovered or settied,

“As at March 31, 2022 -

fror 12

Franths
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 790,34 - 790.34 4,136,80 - 4,136,580
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalants 394,30 304.20 1,23C.74 30.87 1,281.61
Receivables
{) Trade receivables 10.54 0.15 10.63 77 0.12 7.4
Loans 7,961.96 18,935.13 26,901.15 G,847.1B 11,935.60 18,782.78
Investments - 393,55 353.55 . " -
Other Financial assets 480,82 664,98 1,145.80 188,62 149 15 337.77
3ub total 9,243,66 20,3532.07 29.68573 12,410.51 12,135.74 24,546.25
Non-financial asszets
Current Tax assets (Net) - - - IREG 18.66
Property, plant and equipment . 192,79 292.79 - 304,78 304,78
Capital work-in-progress - - - - 0,18 0.18
intangibfe assets under development - 33.15 33,15 - 2338 23.38
Other intangible assats - 137.03 137,03 - 12277 12277
Gther pon-financial assets 101.74 - 101.73 67,66 - 67.66
Sub total 161,74 462.97 564,71 67,66 489.97 55743
Total assets 9,345.40 F1,855,04 30,200.44 12,478.17 12,645,5] 25,103.68
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Firancial Kabifithes
Payables
(1) Trade payables
{t) total outstanding dues of creditors of micro " . - - -
enterprises and small enterptises
{ii} total gutstanding dues of ereditars athes than 185,177 - 185.87 69,12 - 6¢.12
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(it) Other payables
{i) total outstanding dues of creditors of micro - - "
ebterprises and small enterprises
{tl]) toral outstanding dues of creditors other than 21.77 .77 ias - 3.85
micta enterprises and small enterprises
Dbt securities 1,744.08 - 1,744.08 2,012,235 499 34 1,511.69
Borrowings {Qther than Debt Securities) 7.362.52 12,918.56 20,281.08 5,183.45% 29359 16,116,37
Subordinated Liabilities 0.16 576.00 576.16 0.09 336,87 236,26
Other Financial liabilities 498.74 173.28 672.00 628.81 1E3 84 B12.65
Sub toral 5,813.14 13,667,582 23,480.96 #,883.67 10,952,897 19,841.64
Neon-Finarchal llabiitles
Current tax labitities (net) - 9.77 877 - - -
Provisions 45,440 29.70 75.10 21.47 25,40 a7.27
Deferrad tax iiabilities {net) . 203.61 203,61 - 17.13 17.13
Other non-financial labilitlas 145.19 v 14819 77.30 - 77.30
Sub total 194.55 243.08 437,67 88.77 42.93 141.70
Total lisbilitles 10,007.73 13,910.90 23,918.63 B,987.44 10,895.90 19,883.54
{662.33) §,844.14 6,281,881 3,490,73 1,624.6] 5,120,344

Net Assets / {Lizbilities) {A - B}
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Related Party Distlosurs

a. Name of related party and nature of retationship:

Nam¢ of Related Pardes by whom contral b5 exerclized

Ultimatg hatding company

Holditg company

Faltow subsidiary tompany

Entesprise ynder comman contral

Kay management peridnne

Ralative of key management perionnel

Adeni Properties Frivate Limited
Adani Fingerys Private Limited

Adani Housing Finance Private Lirnited
Adanl Special Situatinns Peivate Limited
Adani Digital Sarvices Private Limited

Adani Hosplials Mundra Plvate Limited
Adani Digital Labs Private Limited
Adani Foundation

Mr. Sagac R. Adani {Directar)

Mr. Gauray Gupta {(Managing Diroctor & CEO)

Mr. Viral Shah {CFO}

Mr, titandra Chaturved {Company Secretary] (w.ed 11 Nevember 2021)
My. Bhavik Shah {Company $ecretary) (Till 11 November 2021)

Mirs, Anjali Gupta

b. Transaction with retated parties;

Particulars For the year ended March 33, 2023 For the year ended Mareh 31, 2002
Crrent aceount iEANsACHENs

Intar-corparate depotits received:

Adant Finsaryg Private Limited 150,00 -
Inter-corparate deposits repald:

Adanl Finzarve Private Limited pla el -
frnrest on inter-corporate deposits patd:

Adanl Finzerve Private Limjted 0.93 -
{s5me of Equlty Sharas Including pramivm:

Adant Flnserve Private Limited 350.00 1.500.7%
Purchase of Equity Shares of C5C Grameen EStore Private Limited:

Adanl Finsarve Private Limited 23066 -
Relmbursemeant of expenses:

Adani Housing Finance Private Limited - Recalvalble 82.27 56.68
Adunl Finsarve Pivate Limited - Reimburspmant of share based payment 1% 11.28
to amployees - Reesivabiles

Adanl Finserve Pivate Limited « Transfar of Ernployses Gratuity Babllity of - 0.22
erstwhile empioyor of AFPL - Racelvabla

Adanj Housing Finence Pivate Limited - Other Relmbursament Payabie 0.2% "
Adaai Housing Finange Pivate Limitad - Otber Reimbursernenl - 0.06
Receivable

Orthers:

Adent Hospitals Mundra Plvate Limited 0.74 023
Adani Foundstion .27 133
Adani Digitaf Labs Private Limived 1.50 -
Rent pald:

Mr. Gaurav Guata 188 3.88
Mrs. Arjall Gupta 3.88 158
Adani Properties Private Limited 1.24 124
Rermunoratlon:

Mr. Gaurev Gupta 26.30 19,79
Me. Viral Shah 10.97 B8.57
Me. Jitendra Chaturvedi {w.ef 11th November 2021) 212 D.&2
Mr. Bhavik Shah {Til 11th November 2021) - 0.8
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51 Related Party Disclosura

. Transactions antstandiag 8t year end

Farticutars

As at March 31, 2023

As at Mareh 31, 2022

Aman Receivablo:
Adani Housing Finance Private Limited

Adani Finserve Private timited
Share Baged Payment ta Emplayees

Amuolnt Poayalse;
Adani Finserva Private Limited
Intes-corporate deposits

Adanl Hospitats Mundra #lvate Limited
Others

Adani Digital Labs Pivste Limied
Othars

37.18

16,28

10G.00

G5.81

18.03

0.22

SRR o
A '
APy

)
i
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(Al amounts in T in Miflions uniess otherwise stated)

52 Laases

Company as a Lessee

The Company has entered into lease contracts for premises at various Iocations. Leases of premises generally have lease terms between 5 ta 9
yaars, The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets,

The Company afso has certain leases of premises which are caneeffable in nature and leases for printers with lease teern of 12 months or ess for
which the Campany appiies the “short-term lease’ and “lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions,

a. For carrying amounts of right of use assets {included under "Property, Plant & Equipment'} and the movements during the period refer Note

15

b. Carrylng amounts of lease liabilities {included under 'Other Financial Liabilities’) and the movements during the perfod:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 [As at Maech 31, 2022

As at 15t April 225,10 147,64
Additions 31.33 101.04
Dispasals {14.36) -

Accretion of interest 2045 17.63
Payments (54.77) {41.21)
As at 315t March 207.75 225.10

¢. Maturity analysis of lease Habtfitles is as under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 |As at March 31 2022

Within 12 months 34,49 42,24
After 12 months 173.26 182.B6
Total 07,75 225.10

d. Amounts recognised {n statement of profit or lass:

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Partlculars As at March 21, 2023 (A5 at March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-uze assets 43.36 35.10
Interest expense on lease liabilities 20,45 17.63
Expense ralating ko shart-tertm [eases and fow value items ingluded in other expenses} 21.05 18,79
Ba.B6 71.52

e, Cash flows and additions ta assets [ liabilities:

The Company had total cash outflows for lepses of & 75.82 Million for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023 {PY - % 60,00 Million). The Company alse
had non-cash addithens to right-gf-use assets of % 36.80 Million for the year ended Margh 31, 2023 (PY - X 104.75 Milllon) and lease liabilities of

% 31.33 Millien for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023 (PY - % 101.04 Miltion),

f. Future Commitments:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at Maych 31, 2022

Future undiscounted lease payments for which the feases have not yet commenced

Nil

Nit

g Extenslon / Terminatlan Options:

Some of the leases contain extension and termination options. Such options are taken into account in the determination of the lease term only if
extensioh of pom-termination ¢an be assumed with reasonable certainty, On this basis, there were na such amounts Included In the

meaasurement of lease labitities as at March 31, 2023,
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Capital Managemani

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management palicy are to ensure that the Company complias with
externally imposed capital requirements from its regulatars i.e, Reserve Bank of india (RBI) and maintains strong cradit
ratings and healthy capital ratics In order to suppaort its business and to maximise shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to It according to changes in econamic cenditions
and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, retura capital to shareholders or issue capital securlties, The capital
rmanagement policy Is under constant review by the Doard.

Regulatory Capital
The below regulatory capital is computed fa accordance with Master Direction DNBR, PD, 008/03,10.119/2016-17 dated

September 1, 2016 issued by Reserve Dank of tndia,

Az at As at

P
articulars March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Capital Funds

Met owned funds (Tier | capital) 4,894 85 4,631.66
Tier 0 capital 747,43 ..a57.59
Total capital funds 5,642.26 5,089,325
Total risk weighted assets/ exposures 27,8308 20,597.08

% of capital funds te risk weighted assets exposures:

Tigr | capital 17.594 22.49%
Tier Il tapital 2.69% 2.22%
Total capital Funds 20.17% 24.71%

Regulatory tapital consists of Tier | ¢apital, which cemprises share capital, share premiurm, retained earnings including
current year's profit less acerued dividends, Certain adjustments are made 1o ind AS — based results and resarves, as
prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India, The other component of regulatary capital is Tier Il Capital, which includes
subosdinated debt.

The Cormnpatty is meeting the capital adequacy requirements ot Resarve Bank of India {(RBI).
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54 Fair Value Measurement
A Valuation Principles
Fair value Is the price that would be received to et an gsset of paid to tranifer a liability 18 an grderly transaction in the principal (or mast
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions {i.e., an exit price), regardiess of whether that price is directly

vbservable ar estimated using a vatuation techaique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified Based an
i hierarchy of vatuation technigues, Refer Note 5.20 - Determination of Falr Value {Accounting policy Note) for more details on falr value bieraschy,

B. Valuation governance framework
The Company's fair value muthodolagy and the govarnance over itt models includes & number of eontrals and other procedures to ensure appropriate
safeguards are in ptace to ensure its guality and adequacy. All new product initiatives {including their valuation methodofogies) are subject to

approvals by various functions of the Campany inctuding the risk and finance functions.

Where Eair vatues are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or ebservable pricing tnputs ta models, Independent price determination or
validation is used. For inagtive markets, Company sources alternative market infarmation, with greater weight given to jnformation that is considered
to be mere relevant and reliable.

The responsibllity of ongotng measurement resldes with the business and preduct line divislons. However finance department is also responzible {ar
establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring faly vadues are in compllanee with aceounting standards.

€. The fellewing table shows an analysls of financial instruments recorded at fair vafua by lavel of the fair value hierarchy

At 3t March 1, 2023

Partleularg -l T U e A ] T el B BORICERT R

Agsets measured at fair value on recurrlng basis

Investments

-fnvestment ia Seturity Recoipts . 153.89 . 153.89

-trvestment in Equity Shares of Other Company s - 239.66 139.66
- 153.8% 139,66 193,55

D, Valuatian Methedologles of Flnanelal instruments measured at fair value

Investment in Security Recalpts
Investment it Security Receipts are measurad based on their published net asset value {NAV}, taking inta account redemption and/or other
restrivtions, if any, Such instruments are elassified as Leval 2.

Investmant in Equity Sharves of Other Company
investment in Fauity Shaces of Othar Company have beer rmade ducing the half year ended 31 Mareh, 2023 and the cacrying amoeurt is 3 reasonable
approximatfon of thair fair values, Such instruments are classificd as Leval 3,
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54 Fair Value Maasurement
E. Falr value hiararchy of financial assets and financial liahilities

The: carerying amounts of the followlng financial assets and financial liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair valuas,

As at March 31, 2023

Particula

Financial Assets

Cash and ¢ash equivalents 790,34 790,34
Bank balznces other than cash and cagh 3494.20 - 384,20
eguivalents

Trade Receivahles 10.69 - 10.69
Loans 26,900.15 26,501 15
Other financial assets 1,145.80 1,145.80
Yotal Financlal Asgets 29,242.18 - 29,242,19
Financial Liabllitles

Trade Payables 207.64 - 207.64
Debt Securittes; 1.744.08 - 1,754.08
Borrawings {Other than Debt Securitles) 20,281.08 20,281.08
Subordinsted Uakrilities 576.16 - 576.18
Gther Financial Liabilities 672.00 - 672.00
Total Finaneia! liabilities 23,480.%6 23,480.96

As st March 31, 2023

T e g plue

RN V-1 I SRR I -\ - I B
Financial Aszety
Cash and cash aguivalents 4,136.80 . 4,136.80
Bank halinces other than cash and cash 1,281.61 1,281.61
equivalants
Trade Receivables 129 109
Loans 18,782.78 18,782.78
Gther financial assots 33777 #3777
Total Fihancial Assets 4,506.24 - 24,546, 25
Fitanelal Liabilities
Tradi: Payables g3.9Y - 63.97
Debt Sacurities +,511.69 - 1,511.69
Barrawings (Other than Debt Securitics) 16,116.37 - 16,116.37
Subordinated Liabilities 336.96 335,96
Qther Financial Liabllittes 312.65 - 812.65
Total Financial liabilities 19,8431 B4 - 19 841 .64
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Risk Managament
Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an inherent part of Company's business activities. When the Company extends a corporate or retait loan, buys or sells
securities i market, or offers other products or services, the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company's overalt
objective is to manage its businesses, and the associated risks, in @ manner that balances serving the interests of ity customers and
investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

The Compasy balioves that effective risk management requires:

1) Accaptance of responsibHity, including identification and escaiation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company ;

2) Ownership of risk identiflcation, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate ; and
3) Firmwide structures for risk povernance

4} Robust underwriting policy

5} Portfalio Monitoring process

&) Fraud detection and prevention process

The Cormpany strives for continual improvement through efforts to enhance controls, engoing ermployee tralning and development
and othet measures,

Risk Management Structure

We have a well-defined risk management palicy framework for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage
risks associated with the various business activities. The risk function Is moaitored primarily by independent risk managerment tearm.

Our sk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be able to withstand market volatility and
seenarios of sharply declining prices, As a resalt, we follow conservative lending norms.

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Company’s risk management
framawork. The Bpard, has empowered the Risk Management tear, whicth bas an independent Head who Is responsible far
developing and menitering the Company's risk management policies. On a periodic basis the Head of Risk appraises the Board on
the overall risks, recommends change in the processes and polictes and takes stock of the overall portfolio quality and key risk
indicators.

The audit committee oversees how managemant monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adeguacy of the risk managament framework in relatien to the risks faced by the Company. The audit
committee {5 assisted in Its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit yndertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
rmanagement controls and procedures, the results of which are reperted to the audit committee.

Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensura complete independence of functlons and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit
appraisal 8 eredit control processes, centralised operations unlt, Independent audit unit for checking compliance with tha
prescrihed policies and appraving loans at transaction level as well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of
multiple checks and verifications. Our key business processes are regularly moenitared by the head of our business of eperations, Our
Ipan approval and administeation procedures, callection and enforcement procedures are designed ta minimise delinquencies and
mMaximise recoveries.




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al grnotints In X in Milllans unless otherwisa stoted)

At all levels of the Company's operations, speciiically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed it order te ensure that all
business divisions have access to extensive, necessary and up-te-date information,

It is the Company's policy that & briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other refevant members of the Cotmpany at regular
intervals for the utitisation of market limits, proprietary Investments and Hguidity, plus any other risk developments.

It is the Company's policy to ensure that a robuss risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees are
expected to take ownership and be accountable for the risks the Company (s exposed ta. The Company's cantihuous training and
development emphasises that employees are made aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported In thair roles and
responsibilities to mopitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite limits, Compliance breachaes and
internal audit findings are important elements of employees* annuat ratings and remuneration reviews,

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activitles, or activities in the ssme
geographical ragion, or have similar econemic features that would rause their ability ta meet contractual abligations to be sitmilarly
affected by changes in econpmic, palitical ar other conditions, Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Campany's
parformance to developments affacting a particular industry or geegraphical location,

In order tQ avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specitic guidelines to focus on
raintaining a diversified postfolio. Identified concentrations of eredit risks are controiled and managed accordingly.
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Credh risk

Credit rish is the risk of financlal loss to the Company If a customers or counterparties to financlal instrument faits to discharge thair contractuad ohligations and arises principally
from Compary 's Leant and advaaces Lo euitorner, Trade Receivables and Investment. The Compary manages and contrels credit risk by setting fimits on the amaount of risk it is
willing to accept for Individual counterparties and far goagraphical and industry concentrations, and by maaitaring exposures in relation to such limits. The company has adopted
i policy of daaling with eredit worthy counter parties and obtain sufficient collateral , where 2ppropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defauit.

Crodit risk is manitnred by the credit ok depaztment of the Company's independent Risk Controlling Unit. it is thair responsibllity to review and manage credit risk, including
enviranmental and scclal sk for all types of countarparties. Credit risk cansists of line credit risk managers wha are responsible for thelr business lines and manage specific
portlalies and experts wha suppart both the line credit risk manager, as welf as the business with toals like credit risk systems, policies, modeds and reperting,

The Company has establishied a credit quality review procoss to provide sarly identification of postible changes in the creditworthiness of counterparties.

The Credit quality zéview process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as result of the risk te which it 15 exposed and take correctiva actinn.

The Cotapany's internal rating graded on days past due {f) basis.:-

Internal Rating Descriptipn oot et g
0 DPD e 30 BPD Stagn 1
A1 to B0 DFO Stage 2
90 DG ] Stuge 3

&6.1.1: Impairment atsessment

The refarences balow show where the Company's impainment assessiment and measurement aporoach 1s set out in thig report. It should be read in conjunction with the fummary
of significant accounting pulicies,

{4} The Company’s definition and assessmant of default and cure (Note 55.1.1. 1)

|&3) How the Company defines, caléulates and mapnitoers the probabifity of dufault, expasure at default and fozt given delyclt {Notes 55.1.1.2 ta 55.1. 1.4 )

{£) When the Company considers there has been a significant iberease In credit risk of an exposure (Mota 55.1.1.5)

{d) The Company’s policy of sogmenting financial assets where ECL is assassed on a collective basls {Noto 55.1.1,6)

{e] The detalls of the ECL caleulations for Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 sssets (Note 10,1}

55.1.1.%; Oafinition af deafauit and coare

The varnpary considers & financial Instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 {creditdmpaired) for £CL calculations jn all cazes when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on
ity pentractual payments. As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the company also considers a variety of Instancos that may indicate unlikellness
to pay. When such avants oceur, the company earefulfy considers whether the event should result In traating the customer as defautted and therefore assessed bs Stage 3 for ECL
calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such guents include expsture to sectar which is facing same challenging tme s terms of demand and supply mismatch, funding
igsie thar may indieate unlikelingss to pay ete,

55.3,1.2 FD astimation procesy
Probability of default (P} 12 an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizan. In the absence of sufficient Bistary of delaull the campany bag primarily saurced the
PDs frem external default reports published by various rating agencies,

55.1.1,3 Exposure at defautt;
The expesure at dafault {(EAD) represents the grosd carrying amount of the finoncial instruments subject te the impairment calculatlon.

§5.1.1.4 Lovs given detacwt

The LGQ roprosents expocted losses on the EAD given the event of defacit, taking Into account among other attributes the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it i
expected to be realised and the time valug af mangy. The LGD js computed in the fallawing manner:

a) b case of Cotimerelal vehicle and Farm Equipments portfolte the LGE parcantage s determined basad an the recovery exparicnce fram clozed case.

b} In case afl lgans to Small Busihess boeans the LGD percentage (s determined basad on the estimated value of recovery from the sale of colfateral after considering reasaenable
halrcuts as determined appropriste by the mansgement where lacest falt value of collateral 1s not avadiable with the management and

€) In case of other portfolios proxy LG D pereantage as praseribed by the regulatory authority (FIRB Approach} it considered.

EE.1.1.8 Significant inereaza In credit rlsk

When determining whether the credit rish bas increated significantly sinee initial recogoitton, the Company considers toth quantitative and quahitative information and analyzi:
based on the Cempany's histerical experiener, including ferward-locking information. The Company ¢onsiders reasonable and fupportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cast and effort, Yhe company considers an exposure to have significantly increasad in credit risk whan the berrawer crosses 30 DRD but 15 within 90 AN,
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55.1.1.6 Grouping finastial assets measured on a collective basls

The Campany asicsies whether the credit risk on an exposure hag increased signifieantly an en individual or collective basis. For the purpuses of a collective evaluation of
impairment, loans are grouped on the baxis of sharpd credit risk charactaristics, taking inde account Instrement type, credit risk ratings, date of initlal recognition, remaining term
to maturlty, industry, geagraphical location of the borvower and other relevant factors.

the Company combines thase exposurs inte smaiter hamogenaous poertfolios, basad on a combination of intarnat and external charactertstics of the laans, the eampany has
determined the follewing pools for the purpose of computing ECL:

a} Cammaorclal Vehicle

b) Farm Equipments

¢} Srrialf Business Loars

) ShartTerm Trade Finance

&) Other Retall Loans

55.1.1.7 Forward looking Adjustment

A measure of ECL s ah unhizsed probability weightad amount that Is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and using 2 reasonable and supportabln information
that is available without yndue cost of effort at the reporling date abaut past everts, eurrent tonditions and fareeasts of future acenomiz eanditions. In tho current year tha
management has incerporated the impact of ferward Inoking estimate through management nvarlay,

55.1.2 Anglysis of ik concentration

Concentration acise when a number of counterparties are engiged In simitor business activitios , or activities in the same geopraphical ragion , ar have similar economse faatures
that would cause thelr ability tn meet contrastual ebligation to bo similarly affected by chance In economic, poiltical or other conditlon . Concentration indicate the refative
sensitivity of the Company 's performance to development affacting a particular industry ot geagraphical lovation.

The lollowing table shows the risk eoacentration by industry for the eomponents of the balance sheet. Additions? disclosures foe eredit quality and the maximum exposure for
eredit risk por cotegarias based on the Company's internal rating geade and year-end stage classification are further disclosed in Moto 30,1,

Industry Analysis

33 -Mardd o - Financlal Sorvices | - Resl Estate Loans -] - Retall Loans - CTatal e
Flrnancial assets

Cashh g cash eguivatents 790.34 - - Tat 34
Bank batances other than cash and eash equivalents 394,20 . ' 394.20
‘frade and ether racelvabiex 10.6% - - 10.59
Loa is - 8.95 26,892.2D A6,801.15
Investments 153.89 - 239,66 393.55
Cither Financial Assels 1,145 80 - - 1,145.80
Tatal 1,494,932 8,45 27,131.86 29,635.72
-Mar=gp o " Financlat Services - " Retoll Loang - CTotal e
Financlal assets

Cash and eash eguivilents 4,135.80 - " 4,136.80
Bank halancas other than cash and eash equivalznts 1,2R1.61 - - 1,281.61
Trade and other recelvables 224 - - 7.20
Livant - 10.61 18,772.17 IR, 7878
Gthar Fingnrial Atsets 137.77 r u 337.77
Tatal . 576347 10.63 AR PR 24,586.25

44 1.3 Coflateral and other credit enhancemants
The amount and type of eallateral required depends on an assessment of the eredit risk of the eounterparty. Guitelines ate ik place covering the aceeptabiiity and valuation of
each type of coliateral.

The raln types of eollateral obtained are, as follows:
#) For corporata Ianding land, bulldings, redidential properties and deveinpment rights of an undar copstruction praperty
b) For retall lending, mortgage property mainly residential praperty, vahicie, Farm equipment

In its normak coursg of business, the Cormpany does not physically repassets properties or othar assels in its retail partfolio, but engages extornal agents ta recaver funds, genarally
at auction, to settle outstanding debt, Any surplus funds ara returned te the customers/obligors, As a result of this practice, the residenttal proparties under legut repatsession
processes are not recerded on the balance sheat ang not treated as non—current assets hetd for sale.
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The tables on the flowing pages show tha maximum oxposure fo eredit risk by class of financia! asset along with detalls an caliateral held agalnst exposure,

As at March 31, 2043

- paxitum exposura Yo cradit risk R :
s Prineipal bype of eoliateral

o “As at Marth 31,2022 -
Financial assots
Cash s cash equlvelents 790,34 4,136.80
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 394.20 L8161
Recelvables -
{1] Tiade receivables 10.6% 7.29
{11} Other receivables - -
Leans Secufed 5,648.07 15,188.32 {land, buildings, resldential properties and devalopmant

rights of an under construction property, mortgage

praperty mainly residential  property, vebice, farm
equipmant.

Investments 393.55 -

Loans Unsocured 1,728.40 2.830.92

Other financial assets 1,145.80 337,47

The Company has an Undrawn leans & advances cammitment amounting to ® N {PY; R §,345.0% mn)

Coltsteral and other cradit enhancements

5 for stage 3 assets.

The below Lables provide an apalysis of the curpent fair valued of collatesal held and cradit enhancement

Carin s b

‘Maxlmum exposure to eredit risk

r Value of Collatara

Loans
Raetail Loani
31-Mar-23 ADD.O& 156,74 241.30 809.13
31-Mar-22 283 82 99.48 184,34 529.3%

Natrative desertption of Coltaterat

Caliateral primarify Inelude yehicles purchasred by retait loan customers and machinery & property in case of Srmall Business 1oans customers.

Quantitatlve Information of Collateral

Tha Campany monitors its exposute to toan portfslio using the Loan Te Value (LTV) ratio, which is caieulated as the ratio of the gress amount af the loan ta the value of the

rollateral.
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Wguidity Risk

Liquidity risk 15 defined a5 the risk that thi Campany will sngountgr diffiguly 1n manting ohigatians assaciated with financial habilittes that are seitled by delivering cash or another
financial nsset. Ligufdity risk arises berayse af the possibidity that tho Campany might bz unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due a¢ & result of mismatches in the
tiining &f the cash flows undor both normal and strass cirecumstances.

Te liralt thix risk, management has arranged for giversified funding sourees and s seiaptad 3 palicy of managing 385045 with fNauigiy in mind and monilosing futuig gash fews and
liquidity on regtialar bddls, Thee Ciunpany et devalopeil intarral contral processes and contngrney plans Jor managing llquidity risk. This Incorporates an assessment of expectzd cash
flowes and the availahllity of cash, rash aquivalents and high grade coilateral which couid be used to secure addhitional funding If required.

The Company malntaim a porlfollo of highly marketable and diversi wmiets (hat afe Svstrsed 0 e easily lgeidased In thee avant ot an unfaresoen intereuption in cagh fow, The
Company als has eommitted lines of eredit BHat B an agcess 10 meat liguidity neads. iy aecardanca with the Company's policy, the houidity position is assessed under a varlety of

scenarios, glving dua considaratian 10 sirass factors ralating to bot the market tn general and specifically te the Campany.

Adupnges 10 borrowlkngs ratio

[Partlgulars ~JAs ot March 21,7023 [A« ot March 31, 2022 ¢ |
[Year-end [ 118.02% ] 25.04% |

Borrowings fram banks and Financial institutions and b oF debemtures e congitherad 35 iportant spurces of tunds to Ainance lending ro customers, They a2 monitorad using the
2dvances to Dariwlhgs ratin, which conpares loans and advances 10 CUSTOMers as a percentage af secured and unsecurcd borrowings.

Analysis of financial assets and tHabXities by ramalning contractusl maturities
Tho tabie brlow summarises the maturity profile of the undiseeuated cidh Bows 80 the Compaeny's Tinandbd assets and fiabilitles as at:

Az pknieh, 38, 2023

Parteriarg o G Demand | Lessthandmenths | 3t 12avanths | ltoSyears | OverSYears ' - Toeal
Flnoncial assogs

Cuath and cash equivalents 750,24 - - - - 40,34
Runk Bgtantes other than cash and cash equivalents - - - 441,45 - 443,45
Trada Recoivabluy - 751 3.83 .15 " 11.49
Loans . 5,260.83 7.349.48 23,7128 £,488.17 43.870.75
Irvestments . - - - 303,55 558
Cthirr Finatseial assets - 203.14 27R.87 f63.79 7.4% 145223
Total undl sntod i {nl LEELH] TIC.34 5,480.48 7.623.17 13,876.67 B, 45,15 46,659.83
tFlnnntiat fiehhities

Tradn Payabley 2156 12113 64,35 . ' 0764
Dobt securitioy - 759.60 1.091.36 " - 185105
Borrowings {Char shan Dabt S4curitieg) . 2,031.14 91111 1453011 - 23,452.36
Subwrinated tiabllities . 14.63 44,04 156,81 604.0% #1953
Othor Finangiyl labdlities - 47245 15.30 171.35 . £72.00
Total undiscaupted Mnaneial abilltec 21.56 3,409.04 2,131.76 1a,980.1Y 604,05 27,131 54
Total net inaneial azants / (abilitie) 768.7@ 2,071.44 (514.58) #,916.50 H,285.11 13,527.25
Ag ot Mueth 1, 2022

Particulors o D Demand -} lessehan3months p -3to 12 months f - dtoSyesars | cDverd Yﬁwars 1o Tatal
Firantinl asscts

Cagh and cash equivalants 4,136.80 6.16 - - . 4,342.96
Bank balances other than cash and cish eguivalents - 2062 1,232.25 53.01 . 1,305.BR
Trade Kecevabsles “ 7.18 D.30 Q.13 - .41
Loany . 4,7192.03 q,755.41 1354078 4,871 48 04910
Qthar Finanelnl assets - 123.40 6535 14432 12,52 345.59
Tatal undiscovnted firanciol assety 4,136.80 379,29 5,003.31 13,788.24 4,884.00 3385174
Finaricial babititios

Trate Payatiles 182 4119 18.03 - . 64,04
Dbt securltiag - 1,03%.92 1,123.86 511.52 - 2,675.10
Barrowings {Other than Dol Seaaritice) - 1,437.06 5,487 21 11,328.0% - 18,652,30
Subardingted Liabiitizs . 14.13 34.13 10247 391,51 564,94
Qthar Finaheial abiditles - 536 56 32.2% 127.31 56.53 812.65
Total undiscavnted fndsclal lin!?llivmlle‘! 3482 3,148.B& 7,096.48 12,065.13 450.34 12,768.63
Total net financiol atsets / {liabilities} 413290 1.800.53 (1.002.17} 1,713.11 4,033.65 11,083.11
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Contractual euplry af coinmilrmenTs

The wble below shows thr contractual exptry by maturity of the Company's commitmants.

Asat March 3], 3023

Rardcatars ©ooces . D Prermand Lesuthan S months | Sroddmonths | dtoSyeaa | OvarSYears | - foral
..Ei!«iw"l.“’.‘.ﬁd amaunt of contracts capital accgunt - - 594 - - i ]
Tatal . . 4.94 . - 4.54

AzatMareh 31, 2003

Paptitglars 0o e oAt p D Domend 0] bas ban 3 months | 3gp d2manths ] X teSyears | Duer T Yaars o Terkah e
Estimatod smount of contracts capital accaunt : - 4.16 . " 4,16

Totat - - 4,36 - - 4,16
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Disclosura 35 per RBF circwlar DOR.NBFC (PD) €C. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2018

Rt has issued guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-8anking Financial Companies and Core
Investment Companles on November 4, 2018, As per the guidelines, the diselosyre en liguldity Hsk as ag March 31,
2023 b5 as under:

A. Funding Concentration bazed an significant counterparty

Hof.
Totad Liabilities -

:.:"Finanh:l;;lnfc‘-,‘;,;r : N:Liﬁhé:;ﬂf‘S‘I‘gn‘iﬂcant‘Cuunt.arp;r}iaﬁl

b tRs.Iﬁ‘Mlilliunsl '

2022-23 23 21,972.67 | NA 91.86%
202122 19 1836547 { Na 91.%0%
Notn;

"significant Counterparty” is dafined as a single counterparty or group of connectad ar affiliated caunterparties
aeeounting in aggregate for more than 1% of the MBFC-NDSI's, NBFC-Ds total liabilities and 10% for other non-
depasit taking FBFCs.

Total Liabilities has been computed as Totat Assets less Eguity share capltal less Reserves and Surplus.

B, Top 20 large daposits (amount in X Milliony snd % of total deposits)

Nil. The Cotrpany i registered with RBI as Non Beposit accepting NBFC,

€. Top 10 borrowlngs {amount in % Mitlions & % of total borrowings*)

Financlal Year o elAatount g of Total Berrowdngs T
2022-23 15,522.08 69%
2021-22 12,843.44 GR%

D, Funding Concentration based on significant instrument / product:
Az at March 31, 2023

e e e e e L W mber of rapunt ¥ of
Narme of the Instrument/produet | -Countmiparties °| ‘(RsIn Millions) | Totat isbilities
1 Lang Term Bunk Loans 20 19,052.77 79.66%
2 Short Term Loans 5 1,728.33 4.72%
£y Long Term NCD 1 500.00 2.09%
L] Short Term NCD 1 96,37 4.17%
5 Subordinated Debt 406 376.16 2.41%
[} Cornrnercial Papar 1 247.62 1.04%
7 Inter Corperate Depasit 1 100.00 0.42%
Taotal 2301 22,691.32 94,48%

= Totsl Liabilitios has been computed as Total Assets less Equity share capital less Reserve & Surpfus
+ ff One bank has sanctioned both tong term lpans & long term NCD. Four Bank Ras sunctioned bath long tarm loans
and short Term (adng

As st March 31, 2022
e ey e Nemberal o Ampunt T % of
:Name of the hystrument/product f - L cimarties | iRsin Millions) | ‘tatal Uabllities

1 Long Term Bank Loans 19 14,113.75 70.63%
2z Shart Term Laung 2 1,995.89 10.01%
3 Long Term NCD 7 1,507,73 7.54%
4 Short Term NCD 1 1,003.96 5.02%
5 Subordinated Debt 136 33696 1.69%

[ Comrierclal Faper " Nit -
Total 1644 18,962.29 96.55%

+ Total Liabilities has been computed as Total Assets kess Equity share capital less Resarve & Surplus
+ it Twa bank has sanctioned both leng term loans & long term NCD




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statemnents for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amaunts in % In Mitllons unless otherwise stated)

E_ Stock ratioy:
As at March 31, 2023

Commerctal papars 835 3 % of total liabilitles 1.04%
Commarcial papers as a % of total assets 182%
Commercial papers 25 3 % of total public fund N.A.
Nan-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one yoar} as a % of tetal liabiities 4.17%
Non-convertible debaatures (original maturity of less than ane year) as a % of total Assets 3.30%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) 95 o % of public tung N.A,
DOther shart-term lizhilities as a % of total liabilities 41.84%
Dtbirr short-term liahilities a3 3 % of toral pusets 33.14%
Othar shart-term ltabilitles as a % of public furd NAL

As ot March 31, 2022

Commercial papess as o % of total liabilites N.A,
Commercial papers as a % of total #ssets M.A.
Commercial papers a< a % of total public fund N.A,
Nan-tonvertible debentures (origindl maturity of hes than ane year] ag 8 % of total liabilities 5.0245
Non-convertible debentures {orlginal maturity of less than one year) as a % of total Assets 4.00%
Non-corvertible debestures (ovigleal maturity of less than pna year) 35 a % of pablic fund N.A.
Qther short-term Habilities as a % of total liabilities 44.97%
Other short-term liabliities as a % of total assets 35804
Other short-teers abilities 24 2 % of public fund WA |

= As an March 31, 2022, Outstanding Commercio! Paper is Vil
F. Ingtitutional sor up for liquidity risk management:

the company has fellbwing Board approved poilcies for Liguidity Risk Management.
- Ayzet Liability Manapement Policy

- Interask Rate Pelicy

- Liguldity Managorment Framewotk

« Risk Management Policy

ALCO provides guidance and directions in terms of interest cate, liguidity, funding soucces, and invastment of surplas
funds.

‘the Asset Liability Management Committee, Inter alla, reviews the asset liabiltty profile, risk monltoring system,
liquidity risk management, funding and capitad planniog, and contingency planning.

Borcowing program Baos now expanded ta ¢. % 28,110 miflions with limits from 23 lenders, 8 PSBs, § private sector

banks, 3 MNC banks and other Fls, Further, Commercial Paper limits to the tune of % 1250 miltions sre lae unutllized
and avallable.

Further, liquidity buffer of % 1,241 .40 millians; un-utilized bank lines — % 442.20 millians and un-epcumbered cash &
Bank batance and thvestrments — % 799 20 millicns;

Funding Revigw mecting with — Director, Treasury team , Accounts team on monthly basis providing overview of
liquidity, naw funding discussions etc.

Liquidity Overview Report = Is circutated to Management every month,




ADRANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes ta the Financizd Statements for the yaar endad March 31, 2023

(A4 arnounts in ¥ in Milons gitess gtherwiss stuti)

Market Risk

Mbeket risk I ha risk that the fair valun or futurg cash flaws of finanglal ingtruments will fluctuate dua ta changes in market variablas syeh as intrrast. ratis, sauity prites and
Index mavemonts. The campany 2assifies anpOsures th market 75K Into sither srading or non-trading portfolios and manages gach of Whose pertfotios separately, A the puthions

are managen and Menitored ustag semittvity analyses,

Total market risk exposura

Interast rate risk
Price rizk
Irrterest rate risk

Ineeriest rite risk
Interedt rate risk
taterest rate risk
Iaterest rate risk

‘A ot March 31, 2023 Ay ot March 31, 2022
Finpneint assets
Cazh and cash aquivatents 790,34 - 79,34 4, k36,80 - 4,136.80
Bank balances athar tham ash ang Gash equivalants 394,20 - 384,20 1,282,561 - 1,781.61
Trade Aeceivatdos 10,69 - 1059 7.2 - 7.2
Loans 2690115 - 2500115 1878278 - 18,782.78
investments 303.55 - 393.55 - - -
Other Financial assets 1.145.80 - 1,145.80 33777 - 337.7%
Total financlal pysets 29,615.73 N 29,635.73 24,546.25 - 24,546.25
Finmacial liabilities
Trude Payables 307,64 - 107.64 £3,97 - £3.97
Dobt sicuritias 174408 - 1,744.08 151169 - 251160
Barrowings {Othar than Qett Securities) I0,371.08 - 103808 1611637 - 16,116 37
Suberdinated Liabilities 576.16 - 576.16 336,96 - 336.96
Gther Mnanglal Habilities £72.00 - 672,00 812,65 - B12.65
Total financlal liakaithn 23,080, 0% - 23,480,095 13.841.64 - 1984151

&, Intnrgst Rave Risk

The company uses & mix of Cash and BOrrowings o manage the lquidity & fund reguirernaents of ks day-to-tay cperations. Furthar, cartaln Interast bearing liabilties carry

varable interpsr rates.

For flantng tate liabillties, anakysis is propared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

The following table domonsirates the sopitivity 10 a riasonably pessibie chapge in Intarest rates on thal portion of loans and Barrewings affected, With all uther variables held
canstant, the company's profit belose tox is affacted trough thie epact on Tesling rate Berroeings, as folkiws:

interest rata sepsitivity

Hank Barrowinpy

“fraeresse in bl

" hasls peints

Sansitivity of .

" paints frofie
A5 at March 31, 20¢3 PR 106 {238.50) 109 133,50
A3 at March 31, 2022 thin 10 (74.38) 1069 7431

. Priva Rizh

The Company's aeposure ta price tisk arises from imvestmenis classifiod in the balaece sheet at fair valve shegugh prafit & lost, Pricg osk 15 tha risk that fair valug or future
cazhflows of a financial Instrahent will Hatluate Because of changis i the Tevel of fdividual wastment by prces of Bnancial nstruments, Currantly this Corapany's expature to

price risk is not matarial,
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Nptes to the $inancial $tatements far the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
AR gnounts In S in AIEODS unltss ST st

transfar of Finantisf nssets

Asslgnment Transattion:

Duting e year ended March 33, 2073, the Company has sold [Dans and 2dvances measured A amortised cost as pur assigamaent deal. As par tha tarmg af thess dedls, since
substantial risk snd rewirds related to these assets werd transferred to the buyer, the assets have been derecognised from the Company's balance sheet, ta the eatent af share

of Assignee,

‘the management has evoluated the impact of asiignment trarsactions dune during the year for its business model. Dosed on the future business plsn, the company businass
model remajns 1o huld the assets for coillecting controctual ¢ash flows.

Tha Leble below summarises the carryiag ansaunt of the derecogaised Iinanglal assets measurad at amartised cost and tha gain on deracagnition, par type of asset,

Lowris i1 sdvancer maasured 2t pmartised cagt o A sk March 34, 2073 UAs pEMsreh 31, 200 oo
Carrying proount of derecognised financial asgets &,381.62 931,86
Day 1 gdln on derecognition of finantial ingtrmants undar amertlied cost catageny (A} 1,186.25 208.81
Unwinding on adcount of the actual excess Interest spread realised and reversal of excess interestf 347.17 495.86
spraad on fureclased loans {B) -

MNet galh on dcmmgnlrlnqﬂﬁfmﬂnnndal NELrMAnts under amartisnd cogt catrgary (A-B) A39.N8 ) 111.95

€5 unwinding i impacted / highar at each reporting date dud 1o tha fareciasurg of Inans comparad to estiatad recoipes of future incoma, any imaact of lngeease / decrease in
interest rate hy 1he company an floating rate loans gian (o custamars, and tha change in interest rate by assignegs bank, The garrngnt 45 Al tha wiew thet netting off of
uAwinding of Ei against gay T gain ea derecagnition of finandial insrouments rather than netting 18 off against interest eone provvides a better vaterstanding of the financial
impact of the transacticn,

Diselosure s per R Mater Direction DORSTR.REC.51/21.04.049/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021 for transfer of loan expasures

- Eirect Asslgnment B " Loan Partlcipption
: Az at | o Agat : 5 dt ' As A
L 2 i March 32, 2023 { March 31, 2022 | Worch 34, 2923 | Maren 31 2
Number of lnans 12,804 LRLE 4,362 134
{Apprepate ameunt {% (0 mdllons) 1.651.56 BRE.69 1.727.06 4%.17
Saie cansideratiore {7 (n enilfliongs) _— . 1,654.56 886,69 1,737 06 4537
HNumber of trapgactions e 10 2 7 1
Weighted avarage rerainiog matwity [in months) 68,74 6542 45.91 42,92
|Weighted average hakding period sfter arigination fin hontls) 15.00 1R.45 383 2.31
Retention of beneficial seanamic interest laverage) 10.00% 10.00% 20.00% 20.00%
Covarago of fargibte sneurity coverdgs 100.00%, 100.00% 16t.00% 100.00%
Rating wise dists bution of rated loans Na N NA NA
Number of instances (tranzactions) where transferor has agreed to reglace the transferred loans Nil Ml Nil NA
Number of {ransferred loans replaced il Nl Nil NA

As at March 31, 2033 . at March 31, 2032

~Ya ARCE : ToARCS ot

- X . ! X ) PRI ’ . X ‘SVIA Category | -NPA Category | SMA Categary | HPA Caegary
Na, of peudunts 118 105 NA NA
Agitraate rinclpal outstanding af faans transtacrad (X in millions) 161.71 134,88 NA MA
W&igmed Average residual tenor of the [oans teansterrad {in manths) 45,29 3884 MA NA
Net book vatun of lnans transfarmd {at the Time of Lransfic] (S 10 (mslians} - 159,51 el ) NA
Aggrogate conglmaration (%8 milens) — 252,10 NA

. . e NA Na
Additional cansidetation realized in respect of atcounts ansferced In eatlier yeors (% (b millions)

\
M e

" P
e i
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ADAN! CAPITAL FRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Finungal Stataments for the yaar ended Merch 51, 2023
1Al amaurits in & iy Milioos videit otherwlsc stoted)

Employga Stock Gation Blan

The Board of Rjrectoers taok the decitlon to ntroduce Adani émproyee Stock Dption Plan, 2020 (heretnaller catfed "ESCA 2020%) at the meeting held on lune 28, 2020, Thi; shirghatders appraved
It at the Annugl Generad Meeting held on September 28, 2026, The plan provides for the issuance al ftock options ta senlos omployees. Under she plan, tho Conspaity has livdmd two series of
eptions with different vesting peried. Under both the serles, the oplians vest not eadlier than 1 year and nat later than 4 years tram the date al the grant.

the detaills of the ESOP 2020 as on Man:h !1 2023 Are:

[Partiglutars " N wBaree) U] T Bl S T R

Options apprawved to be mrucd a5 LS{]P: . — 8,64,39% T

Qiikis & Goant etoher ¥, 2020 | January 12022

[Options granti - 334,645 | 225471 | ) 155,130

Method of Suttlement Enuity ]
The dotalls of the ESGP 5 an M:ln:h 31, IDZZ are:

partalulers - I YIRS B CBmrgal) o T karag e
Oatlons appraved to he lssH!:QAQEVIEEDF. et £.64,199

Date of Grant Uctaber 3, 2020 | January 1, 2072

Cptions giaivtaed e 334,51?] 26471 | e 155130
iethed of Settiement Equity |

2, Rpeoncifiation of Optians

t Masch 31, 2023

Shares a1 rm,‘ ',

5'@?6? ﬂﬂi;ﬂﬂ

- Reatty Oprtluptis ity : fram Uplions }
Uptions Outstandlng at the b i e thay yoar T16.023 191 158507 bk H JS‘J,I.SQ_ ) 70
DpHEnE Sranted — s nar . : - .
Qpilany fasrsised - - - Pt m
[2otlons Reinstaty ; ; ; : -
Optians Lapyed o {40,649 104 (192,352} 1) (41.a57) sl
ptians Forfeited - - - - : -
Opthuing Dutitanding at the erd of tho year 175,372 191 161,210 10 143,673 w12,

Asat March 37, 3022 -

Aoy N

ot Options

Qptieny Quiatanding ar the b bt exf THe yaae

1hi562

Ontions Granead

. 155,330

{pliang Fm'rcl_gvpd

Gptions Reinstated
Optlans Lapien

[43.42

3) 43)

Uptinns Forfeited

2plang Dutstanding at the end of the year

236,02

1 191

184,562

191 155,139

b, Balance outstandiing At (he v of The yoor dre s follows -

h ?l:l., ma

-, Ixarcise Price (#NR[ j

Veitnd Options.
fSorias R asarg] i
Serbas Il 111680 191
Sarkes (1l 47,412 79
WUnvai(ed Qptions
Sories | " - 91
Sariny |} L1450 191
{5eries 1 95,761 2
Ay gt Mareh 13, 202 R
" "N, - Exerelse Price 1INR) j
Veitad Datiens
Series 12172 141
Surles 1) HE.2MG 101
series 1 _ R 278
funuested Optlam 1
Saries | 43,842 191
Srrles N 1,356 131
|Ferfes il 155,13¢ bEE]




ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to tha Finmnelal §tatemunts for the year anded arch 31, 1023
(Al amaunty iy X /0 Millions unieid atherwie stoléd)

c. Welghted averikgy bemalning #a of the ES00 sutstandiog

o |-As at March 31, 20123

Ears | - -

Saries |l - 017

Series It N (X5

T T ] : A i Margh 33, 9033 -

Sarigy | 0.12

series 0.KE

Setiny 4l , T -

o, Fallewing amaunt has boan recognized as an qupense and Incfuded In 'Note 35 « Employea heneflt expenses’ and total carrying amount at the end of the pariod,

. . - Puctishlmrd - . Ag of Mareh 31, 2023 As ot March 31, 2033
{Erpenze mlsing from equity sevtled share based payment tra)

80 zhare Dased| Shion 4.4 30,91
Carrylng 3mount ar thi and of thy yiar BS.82 9.9

@, Fair value of the options granted

Hlwey Prive on thae date of Grant {IMR} 17400

Fimiclis Fijee GNR] 278,00

Expacted Volariliy (i) 54.03% b0 4% 54.28%) 51 A%

Lile of optiory geanted {yaars} 10 1.50 3.00 254

Rk Jree WOPUEE T (28] e s crsssenns B oo SR 4864 1.88%

Eaparied dividend rate (%] 0.00 0.00 0.00 03.00 I,

Fnir yalue of optiais az g Blick 220,08 zzs.uul 22005 225.00 230.36 11041 11587
srhalet (INA) P - . SV SRR R SRR

Risk free interost petr
Yhe risk-free inturrst taly baing canyidorgd for thy saieulating is thi sntnad G ppplitsbly Ter mardtity agqual ta The Axpectid Bl of the aptlons Dased on the Turo-yield furve for Gryernment
Secorities,

Ewpected lif= of apilany

Tirte! L Mulurity 7 Expecred wife af optlans is the poriod for which the Company expects the optians to be live. The mininwm life of 2 stock aption is the munimum pernod before which 1ha aplinsd
caniat bt grercised and the mamum life is dre period afer which the options cannot be exerclsed. The eapected e of an award of steck pptions shail take into ccount the Faliawing Taceais -

i. Thir expwciud (ite must at least include the vesting petlod.

ii. Thi average lengths of time of umilar grams have remained outstanding tn the past. If the company docs not have 2 sulficendy long history of stock option grants, the eapaience al an
apprapristaly comparable pesr group may be taken inta consideration.

fil. The expirted (e of stock options should not be less than half of the exarcise period of the stock options iszued wntll and unless the same iz supported by histoncal avidence: with raspect to

stack aptlons lawyed by the company earlier.

A welhted avizapgs of yiats has been calcwfated to arcive ot the value af the nptons pranted.

Enpected volotifing

Vailardity iv 4 measure of the amount by which & piice has fluztuated or i expacted 1o Huctuate during a period. SHice each vast has been considered 2u 3 separale grant, we favir conslderdd the
volardity fur perlods, corresponding o the expecicd lvas of diftarent vests, prior o the grant date. The Fair value of an option is very sensitive to this variablz. Higher the volacflity, higher i the
Fair valus. The rationale breing, the irore volatiie 2 srock is, the more 12 s patential to go up lar come dawn, and the mere is the probabitity to galn from the movement in the price. Accardingly,
i Aphon te by 3 highly valatie stock {3 more valuatie than the one to buy atess volatie stock, for the probabllity ot ganing |5 lessar i the latter case.

Exgected dividend yleld
Expénted dividend yleid has bk chlculatod basnd on 1he dividwid declarsd Tor 1 finasclal year prisi ta the date of grant. The dividand yiold has besn derhved by dividing the dividand por vy iy
the ravknl price por share an the date af gran.
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58.1

8.2

58.3

ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amaunts in % in Millions unless otherwise stated)

R Disclosures

The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company -
Systematically Important Non-Depasit taking Company and Depasit taking Company {Reserve Bank) Diractions, 2016 issued vide
Master Direction QONBR. PD. 008/03.10.115/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 ag amended.

Capital to Risk Asset Hatio (CRAR)

Particulars As at As at
Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

CRAH {%3) 20.27% 24.71%
CRAR - Tier | Capital {%) 17.59% 22.49%
CRAR - Tier It Capital {3) 2,69% 2.22%
Amount of subordinated deht raised as Tier - il Capital 576.16 136.08
Amount raised by issue of parpstual debt Instruments - -
Investments

Particulars Asat As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

{a) Value of Investments

{1} Gross vatye of investiments

{a) In tndia

393.55

{a) Qutside India

{11) Provisions for Depreciation

(&) In India

(&) Outside india

(11} Net value of investments

{a} In India

333,55

{a) Outside India

{b] Movements of provisions hefd towards impairment an investments

{1} Opening balarce

{tt) Add : Provislons made during the year

{11} Less : Write-off/ Written- back of excess provisions during the year

{IV) Closing balance

Derlvatives

Forward Rate Agreement {FHA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

{}] The notional principal of swap agreements

{H) Lasses which would be incurred i counterparties faitad to fulfil their
obligations under the agreements

(M) Collateral required by the NBFC upan entering inte swaps

{1V} Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps.

{V) The fair value of the swap book

<,

-
at”
=
%

dr’fp F 2 nf&}§
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All avownts {n 2 in Millions unless atherwlse stated)

Exchange Traded Interest Rate {{R) Darivative

Particul As at As ot

articulars March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
{H Notional principal amaunt of exchange traded IR derivatives
undertaken during the year (instrument wise)
(11} Notlonal principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives
gutstanding (instryment-wise)
(i) Netlonal principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives
outstanding and not "highly effective” {instrument-wisa)
(IV) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives autstanding
and nat "highly effective” (instrument-wise)
Disclosures on Risk exposure in darivative,
Qualitative Disclosures Not Applicable
Quantitative Disclosures
Particular; As at As at

i March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(1} Derivatives (Notional Prineipal Amaunt)
(1} Marked to Market Positions (1}
{a) Assets
{b} Llability

{IH) Credit exposure
{1V} Unhedged expasure
Securitisation
particular As at As at

? s March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(1Y No of 5PVs sponsared by the NBFC for securitisation transactions

(11} Tatal armeunt if securitised assets as par books of the 5PVs sponsored

{E) Total armeunt of exposure retained by the NBFC towards the MRR as
on date of balance sheet

{a) Off-balance sheet exposure towards credit enhancements

{b) On balance sheet exposures towards credit enhancements

{1V} Amount of exposyres to securitisation transactions other than MRR

{a) Off-balance sheet exposure tewards credit enhancements

(i) Exprsure to own securitisations

{ii) Expasure to third party securitisations

{b} On balance sheet exposures towards credit enhancements

(i} Expasure to own securitisations

(i) Exposure to third party securitisations
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in X in Mifllons imless otherwlse stated)

Detalls of financial assets sold to securitisation f reconstruction tompany for asset reconstruction,
As at As at
feul
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{1} No. of accounts 223 "
(1) Aggregate value {net of provisions) of accounts sold to 5C / RC 296,50 -
{lll) Aggregate consideration 252,10 "
(IV) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred NA -
In earller years
(V) Aggregate gain/loss aver net book value 44,49 -
Dutatls of Assignment Transactions undertaken by NBFCs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2032
Na. of aceaunts 17,166 1,882
Aggregate value (net of provision} of accounts assigned 6,381 62 931.86
|Ageregate consideration £,381.62 931,86
Addittonal canslderation realized in respect of accounts transferred in - -
earlier years
|Agpregate gainloss over net book value - -
Details of non-perfarming financial assets purchased / sold
Details of non-performing financlal assets purchased:
Particutar As at As at
antleuiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{1} No. of accounts purchased during the yaar .
{It} Agpregate autstanding "
{tt}) Of these, numbear of accounts restructured durlrg the year -
{IV) Aggregate autstanding .
Details of non-performing financial assets sold:
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 1023 March 31, 2022
{1} No. of aceounts sald 105 -
(1) Aggregate outstanding 134,88
114.65

(1) Aggregate consideration received




ADAN! CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2023
{Alt amounts in X in Milllaps unless etharwiie stoted)

8.8 Exposure to Real estaie sector

As at As at

Particul
artlculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Category

a) Direct exposure

{1) Residential mortgage:
Lending fully secured by mortgage on residential propenty that is or wili 895 10.61
e occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Exposure would also
tnclude nan-fund based {NFB] limits

(ii) Commereial real estate:

Lending secured by rortgages on commercial real estates {office » “
bullding, retall space, muftipurpose commaercial premises, mulii-family
residential buitdings, multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
ware house space, hotels, land acguisitions, development and
construction, ete)) Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB)
lirnits.

{ift) Investment In morigage hacked securities {MB5) and other
securitised expasuras:
{a) Residential -
{b) Commercial real estate . -

b} Indirect exposure
Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank -
and Houslng Fihance Companies.

Total Expnsure to Reaf Estate Sector £.25 10.61

58,9 Exposure to Capital Market

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

(A direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible - -
debentures and units of equity criented mutual funds the corpus of
which is nat exclusively thvested i corporate debs; *

{ii} advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or - "
un clean basis to individuals for investment in shares {including IPOs /
E30Ps), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity.
arianted mutual funds:

{iil) advances for any ather purpases where shares or convertible bords . .
or convertible debentures or units of equity criented mutual funds are
taken as primary security;
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{All aervounts It X in Millions unless atherwise stated}

(v} advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the
collateral security of shares er convertible bands or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds ie. whers the
primary securlty other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible
debentures / units af equity oriented mutus! funds dees not fully cover
the advances;

{v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
issued on hehalf of stockbrokers and markat makears;

(vi} leans sanctioned tu corparates against the security of shares / bonds
/ debentures or other secutities or on clean basis for meeting
promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation
of ralsing resources

{vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

{vii} Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of
primary Issue of shares of convertible bonds or convertible debentures
or units of equity ariented mutual funds

ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading

x} All exposures to Alternative Investrment Eunds:

{i) Category |

(it} Catepory 1|

{ili} Category th

Total Exposure to Capital Market

* The Campany has not made any investrment in equity oriented mutual funds as at the year end

Financing af Parent Company Product

Particulars

As at
Mareh 31, 2023

As at
Mareh 31, 2022

Details of firancing of parent company products if any

Datails of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrowar Limit {GBL} exceedad by the Company
The Prescrihed exposure limit of credit and investment cancentration of single party and single group of parties has nat

aneeeded during the year 2022-23 and 2021-22,

Unsecured Advances

Partivulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Az at
March 31, 2022

Amount of unsecyred advances glven against rights, licenses,
autharizations etc,

Amount of advantes given against intangible securities such as charge

over the rights, licenses, authority etc,
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(Al amounts in % i Millions unless otherwise stated}

Registration from Other Fiancial Sector Regulators

As at As at
Particufars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Registration from other financial regulator, if any
1. insurance Regulatory and Development Autharity of India IRDA IRDIA
- Registration Number CADGZR CADG2ZR

- Registration Date

December 31,2021

December 31, 2021

- Reglstration Validity

December 30, 2024

December 30, 2024

Penaity

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Penalty if any levied by Regulator

Totat

Credit Rating

As ot Asat

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Naturs of borrowing Rating / Outigok Rating / Outiaok

CRi5IL CRISIL
Shart Tarrn Bank Loans CRISIL AL+ CRISILALY
Lang Term Bank Loans CRISIL AA-/5table CRISIL AA-/5table
Carmnmercial Paper CRISIL AJ+ CRISIL AT+
Nan - Convertible Debentures (Short Term) CRISIL Al+ CRISIL AL+

Non - Convertible Debentures {Long Term)

CRIS|, Ad-/Stahie

CRISIL AA-/Stable

Subardinated Debt (Long Term)

CRISIL AA-/Stable

CRISIL AA-/Stable

Fravislons and contingencies

Particulars

hs at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

1, Provisions for depreciation on investiment

12,33

2. Provisions made towards income tax 123.90
3. Provisions towards NPAs™ 57.26 17,02
3. Provisions for standard assets# §2.54 42,87
4, Other provision and contingencies
Gratuity g8.19 8.08
Compensated absence 2298 15,58
Performance Linked Incentive - -
Praviston for expenses 121.13 41.19

* Represents impairment loss ellawance on stage 3 laans,

# Represents impairment loss allowance on stage 1 and stage 2 loans.
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Special Reserve under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

Statutory Resarve

As at As at
Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the yaar
a) Statutory resarve as per Section 45.¢C of the Reserve Bank of India 66.29 51.90
Act, 1934
b) Amount of spacial reserve ufs 36{1) (vili} of tncame Tax Act, 1961 - -
taken In ta aceount for the purpose of statutory reserve under Section
45-1C of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934
Addition [ appropriation / withdrawals during the year
Add:
a) Amount transferred as per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India 181.36 14.39
Act, 1934
b} Amount of special reserve u/s 36{1) (vili} of Income Tax Act, 1981 -
taken in te account for the purpose of statutory reserve under Section
45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Less:
a) Amount appropriate as per Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of india - -
Act, 1934
b) Amount of withdrawn from special reserve u/s 36(1) (viii} of Income -
Tax Act, 1961 taken in to account for the purpose of statutory reserve
under Section 45-IC of tha Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Balancs at the end of the year
a) Statutory reserve as per Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of india 247.65 6629
Act, 1934
b) Amount of special reserve u/fs 36{1) [vili} of income Tax Act, 1961 - -
taken in to account far the purpose of statutory reserve under Section
45-IC of the Reserve Bank of fndia Act, 1934
Total 247,65 66,29
Maote: During the year, the Company has not drawn down any amount from reserves
Concentration of Public Depasits {for Public Deposit taking / holding NBFCs)

As at As at

Particutars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Totat Deposits of twenty largest depositors

Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositars to total deposits of
the NBFC

Concentration of Advances

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 Macch 31, 2022
Total Loans to twenty largest borrowers 737.98 1,335.66
Percentage of Loans to twenty largest harrpwers to total advances of the 271% 7.02%

NBFC
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Concentration of All Expasure {incleding off - balance sheet exposures)

Particutars As at As at
%
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Total Expusure ta twenty largest borrowers / customers BR7.38 1,422.60
Percentage of expasure to twenty largest barrowers / customers to total 3.25% £.590%
exposwre of the NBFC on borrawers f customers,
Concentration of credit frmpaired Joans
Particulars As at As 2t
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Total Exposure to tap four credit impaired accounts 26.53 i1.77
Movarment of Credit-impaired Loans under ind AS
As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(1) Net impaired foss allowance to Net (oans (5} 0,90% {1L.9R%
(il} Movement of Cradit impaired loans under ind-A5 (Gross)
{a) Opening Batance 283.82 163.20
{b) Additions during the year 116.22 120.62
(c} Closing balance 400.04 28382
{1} Meovement of Net Impaired loss
{a) Opening Balance 184,34 80.73
{b} Additions during the year 58 98 103,61
{c) Clasing balance 243.20 184 34
{11} Movement of impairiment loss alowance an credit impaired [oans
{a) Opening Balance 99.48 82.46
{b) Additions duri_nE the year 57.26 17.02
{e} Clasing balance 156,74 99.48
Oversess Assets
Asat
Particulars As at 52

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Qverseas assetls

Off Balance Sheet 5PVs sponsored (which are required to be consolidated as par accounting norms)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Domestic

Overseas
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Adverse remarks

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Atlverse rernarks if any given by Regulator

Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Foretgh Currency Transaction 1.96 2.37
Receivable and Payable outstanding in foreign eurrency - -
Disclosure pursuant to Master Direction - Monitering of Frauds in NBFCs {Reserve Bank) dated September 29, 2016
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Amount of Fraud detected during the year 0.47 3.14
Area of Dperations
Particulars Details
Area and Country of Operations India
Jaint venture partners with regard to joint ventures and overseas subsidiaries Nil
Postpenements of reverus recagnition; Current year: Nil {Previous year: Nil)
Remunperation to nan-executive Directors

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Mr. Rajender Mahan Malla {Independent Director} 1.20 1.20
Ms. Padma Chandrasekaran (Independent Directar) 1.20 1.20

Details of all material transactions with related parties are disclosed in note 51

Net Prefit or Loss far the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies
There are no materiat prior period jterns other than those diselosed in Finaneial Statements. There has bsen no change in
accounting palicies followed other than those disclosed in the Financial Statements.

Intra-graup exposures

The Company does not have any intra-group exposures in the current year as well as previous year,
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Sactoral axposure
Ag at March 31, 2023 As at Match 31, 2022
Tatal Expasure [inchudes Percantoge of Gross Total Expostire Percentage of Gros

Purticulars NPAS v total ingl I PAL Lo tatal

on balance sheet and Gross NPAS o tota {includes on balance Gross NPAs N wtal

olf-balance shaet oxposure in that  [sheet and off-balance #xposure in that
BXROSUTE} sartar sheet exposiire) sactor

L. Agriculture & allied actjvitios 8,727.01 82.77 _ 0.85% 5.628.10 62.72 A 11%
2. MSME 1),281.37 11686 1.91% 7.036.76 123.02 1.75%
3. Corporata Borrowers 12 7.88 1.01% a78.14 381 0.39%
A Services - B . f R .
5 Unseeured Pecsanal Loans 24388 8.3% £ 949% 1,851.61 17.84 0.97%
&, Auto Loans 5, 547.98 B3.14 1.50% 3,544 65 71623 2.15%
7. Othar Personal Leans - - . . B A

Discinsura of Complaints

a. Complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and fram the Offices of Ombudsman

ﬁi’p.ttculars

Complaints recelved by tha NEFE from its customets

L. No. of eamplainly pending at the beginiitng of the year

2. No. of complaints received during the year

3, Humber of complaints disposed during the year

3.1 Of whieh, numbar of comptaints rejected by Lhe NBFC

4. Number of complaints penditg at the end of the year

Matntainabie complaints recoived by the NAEC from Offlce of Umbudsman

5. Humber of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Offlce of Ormbudsman

5.1 Of5, number of compiaints resolved ik Favour of the NEFC by Office of Ombudsman

5.2 OF 5, numbar of complaints cesaived through conctliation / mediation / advisories issued by Office of Ombudsman

5.3 Of 5, numger of complaints resolved afted pagsing of Awards by Offiee of Omsudsman againgt the NAFC

E. Number of Awards ubhlmplamented within the stipalated time {other than these appesled)

b. Tap flve grounds of complaints teceived by tho NBFCs from customors

Grounds of complaints, {i.e. complaints refating to)

somplalnts rcaivad

uring the

% ineronse / decreass

‘the numbaer of

Of 5, number of .
complaints panding

As ot March 31, 2023

Total

Loan closure / Foreciosute - 45 GO0,00% - -

Levy of chavges without prlor notice / excessive tharges / . 10 0.00% -

foreclosure ehadge:

Qthars / Statamaonts o - 52 -1.89% I -

total ‘ - 111 52 67% . .

As &t March 31, 2022

Loan giosure / Fareclosure . K -53.33% - -

havy of charges without prior notice / sxcessive charges / - 10 «79.59% v -

foreclosure charges

Others / Statements - 53 -52.68% - -
u 70 -60.23% M -
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FAI amants in T in Millions unless athirruics Stufed]

Disclosure pursuant to Reserve fank of India notifieation DOR (NSFC).CC.PD.No, 109 /22,10,106/20119.20 datad 13 March 2020 pertaining to Assek Classification as per RBI

Noems

&g 2t Mary)y 33, 290,

Aszet Classification ss per

Assot Classification as

Gross Corvying

Loty Allgwencas
[Provislons} as

Met Carrying Amaunt

Provision required as

Differoncn betwasn
Indf AS 109 pravislons

RBI Narms perind AS10%  tAmount as per ind A% | requdred uader nd per IRACE norms vt IRACE Aorme
AS 08
{1 2 [} 1) {5)=43):(4) ) {7)=ta)-1e]
Porforming Assets
Standrrd Stage 1 26,063.02 17125 25,891.77 104.88 06,37
Stage & 31441 48.13 766,04 42.27 1.06
Subitatal Tor Perfarming Azsats 1687743 119.58 26,657.85 1dg,15 73.43“
Non-Performing Assets [NPAY
Substandard age 3 360.99 117.69 241,10 35.65 T8.04
Doubitful - up to year Stage 3 160 17.60 - 545 1218
1to Jygaes Stage 3 20.98 hyah - 12.90 B.9B
Mesres than 3 yeary Stage 3 - - " - --
Loss Stage 3 nari 1,47 - .47 -
Subtotal for NPA 400.04 156,74 213,30 57.57 09.17
Other it suchk  as  guarbniees, loan Stage 4
commitments, etc, which are In the scape of Ind : ) ) )
AS 109 but not cavared under cuerent Incpma Stagre 2 R A R R _
Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning
[tRACF) norms Stage 3 : W - - -
Subtotal for other ltems - " . - .
Stage 1 24 0p3.G2 17125 15,591.77 104.88 66.7
fota Stage 2 §14.41 4833 66,08 A1.27 7.06
Stape 3 —— 00,74 156.74 24%.309 5157 4917
Tatal 27,2714Y _— 376,32 26,001.15 08,72 171.60
£S5t March 33, 2022,
Loss Allowancas Diffarence batween
Asset Classification as per Assat ClassHication as Gross Carrylag [Provisions) as Not Castying Amount Froviston required as Ind AS 108 pravislans
R8I Nurms per Ind AS 108 Amount as perind A5 required under Ing per IRACE norms
and HALP norma
Af 109
i {2) ) (4 {5)=3)-44) {8) (7It4F (8]
Parfarming Assats
Standard Saga 1 17,8379.75 120.63 19,759.13 99,35 .78
$tago 2 §55.73 16.41 £30.32 18,39 (2.88)
Sutrtorzt for Perlorming Assets 18, 748.48 e 18,598.14 118.64 18.40
Non-Performing Assets (NFA}
Substandard Stage 3 188.24 47.98 140.26 17.37 30.51
Doubifu! ~up to 1 year Stage 3 B9.12 45.14 4404 2299 .30
110 3 years Stage 3 8,36 636 - 193 4.43
Merg than 1 years Saye 3 - . - - -
Loss Stage 3 - : - - -
Subtatal kor NPA £83.82 9%.48 18434 4234 Si.Id
Other  Jtems  such a5 guarantees,  loan stage i - r - - -
commitments, etc. which arg in the scope of Ind Stage 2 - - " . B
AS 107 but not cavared snider currant tnegie Stage 3 " - - - -
Subtatal for athar items - - u - .
Stage 1 14,8%9.)5 120,63 17,759.12 99.35 2128
e Stope 2 B55.73 16.41 B3%.32 18.29 (2.8E)
ot
Stage 3 283,82 959.48 1084.34 42,39 1.4
Total 19,019.30 - 236,51 18,782.78 16028 75,61
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ADANL CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Mates to the Flnanclal Statemsents for the yedr ended March 31, 2023
fall ameunts in % in Milions uiniess athevaise Atggd)

61 [Dsclosure s per circular DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2038 21 |ssued by RBI dated August 6, 2020 far Resalution Framewark for COVED-19-related Stress for the half year
anded Mareh 31, 2023

Of {A] amaunt written ;|
iff durt half-year

Personil Lopos " - - - B

Corparate Loams - - ) - . -
6 which M5MES S : S - :

Chery - 225" 3,67 D.58 26.28 185,98
‘Total 262,52 30,67 0.58 36.28 185.98

fi2.1 Informatiaon reiating 1o Restructured Accounts ir aecordance with RB) notilicaton DORMNG.BR,BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 dated Aujtust 6, 2020

Particulary ™ : Az at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 1022
No of Accounts Rosttuetured 128 314
Amaunt 1H5 95 441.24
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Notes to the Financial Statemeants for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts in X jn Millions unless otherwise stated)

The Company has maintained sufficient capital and liquidity position and it will continue the same going forward.

In assessing the recoverability of loans and receivables, the Company has considered internat and external sources of information,
including eradit reports, economle forecasts and industry reports up to the date of approval of these financial results,

The Cade on Social Security, 2020 {‘Code’) relating to employes benefits during employment and past-emplaoyment benefits received
Presidential assent in September 2020, The Code has been published in the Gasette of lndia. However, the date en which the Code will
come inta effect has not been notified and the Fina! rulesfinterpretation have not yet been issued, The Campaty will assess the impact of
the Code when it comes intg effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becames effective.

Other Additional Regulatory Information

Title deeds of Immeovable Properties not held in namea of the Company
The Company daes nat have any immovahble praperties where title deeds are not held in the name of the comparny.

Loans and Advances

There are no foans or advances in the nature of loans which are granted to promaters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined
under the Campanies Act, 2013), elther severally or jointly with any other person that are;

(a) repayable on demand, or

(b) without specifying any tarins or pariod of repayment

Details of Benami Property held
The Company does not have any benami propenrty, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding
any Benamnl property,

Security of current assets against borrowings

The Company has bean sanctioned working capitat limits in excess of Rs, five crores in agrregate from hanks during the year on the basis
of security of qurrent assets of the Campany. The quarterly returns/staternenty filed by the Coampany with such banks are In agreemant
with the hooks of accounts of the Company.

Wilful Defaulter
The Company is nat declared as wilful defaulter by any bark or financial Institution or other fendar.

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
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Notas to the Financlat Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in T in Milllons untess otherwise stoled)

Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companles {ROC)
The Company does not have any ¢harges or satisfaction of charges which ts yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutery peripd,

Utilisatien of borrowed funds and share premium

a} During the year, the campany has not advanced or foaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entitylies), including forelgn
entities (intermediaries} with the understanding that the Intermediary shail:

(i) directly or Indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Uitimate Beneficiaries), or,

(1) provide any guarantee, security ar the like 10 or an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b} During the year, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding fwhether recorded in writing or atherwise) that the Company shabl:

(i} directly ar indirectly lend or invest in ether persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the company
{Ultirmate Beneficiaries), or,

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Uitimate Benefitiaries.

Undisclosed Income

The Company have not any such transaction which is nat recorded in the hogks of accounss that has been surrendered or disclosed as
incorne during the year in the tax assessments under the ncome Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey ar any ather relevant provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961},

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypte currency or Virtual Currenay during the qurrent financial year and any of the previous
finsncial yesrs.

Financlat Ratios

5r. No. |Particulars S Lol l oA ot Mareh 31, 2023 0] A at Mareh 31, 2022
1 liguidity coverage ratio (36 Mot applicable as per MBI guidelines
21 [Debt - Equity ratie (Refer Note 1 below) 3.60 3.70
3 |Net Worth {Refer Note 2 below) §,281.82 512034
4 |Total debts to total assets ratio (Refer Note 3 beiow) 0.75 0.76

..... A |Gross Stage 3 asset (M) (Refer Note 4 below) 1.47% 1.49%
6 jNet Stage 3 asset (%) {Refer Note 5 below} 0.80% 0.98%
7 |CRAR [%) (calculated as per RBI guidelines) 20.27% 24,71%
B |Tier - | CRAR (%)} 17.50% 22.49%
5 |Tler -1l CRAR (%) 2,69% L2.22%

Note:

1. Debt-equity Ratio « Total Debt (Debt Securities + Subordinated Liabilities + Borrowings ether than debt securities) / Net warth
2. Net Warth = Equity share capital + Qther equity

3. Total dabts to total assets = Total Debt (Debt Securities + Subordinated Liabilities + Borrowings nther than dabt securities) / Total assets
4, Gross Stage 3 ratic = Gross Stage 3 lnans / Grass Loans

5. Net Stage 3 ratio = (Gross stage 3 loans - impairment loss allowance for Stage 3}/ {Gross Loeans - impairment loss allowance for Stage 3)
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ADANI CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes 1o the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Alf amaounts in X in Aillions uniess otharwize stated)

Standards issued but not yet effective

Recent accounting pronsuncements

Ministry of Corparate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amenrdments to the existing standards under Companles {ndian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. Qn March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accgunting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023, as helow:

Ind A5 1-Presentatian of Financial Statemants

The arendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, Accounting
policy information, together with other informatian, is material when it can reasonably be expected t@ influence decisions of primary users of
general-purpase financiat statements. The Campany dogs not expoct this amendment 1o have any significant mpact in (ts financial statements.

Ind A% 12~ Income Taxes

The amandments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as feases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments narrowed the seope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of ind A5 12 {recognition exermption) so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on initial recagnition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is
evaluating the impact, if any, in its financial statements,

ind AS B~ Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting pelicies and accounting estimates. The defimition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertalnty”, Entities develop sccounting estimates if sceounting
palicies require items In financial staterments to be measured in a way that imvolves measurement uncertainty, The Company does not expact
this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Previous yeatr's informatipn  have heen regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary {0 cprrespond  with  current  period's
tlassification/diselosure,

This is the Motes referred to In aur report of aven date

For Natigla & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Actountants - Adani Capital Private Limited
ICAl Firm Rﬂgistra@’_umbur: (02391C/NSO00ES CIN: UBS950GI2016PTC0936592
™, 7 : o
‘\ \k Jw “““ " 5. T N
MAF 4u’§preet Singh Badi MP’Gaurav Eum‘a Mt Sagar R, Adani
Fartner Managing, Dfrector & CED Qirgctar
Mambership No: 601788 DiN: 01669109 QIN: Q7626229
Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad \
i’ . [
L e
AL 1z 'J Wil
Place; Mumbai I\;}l Viral Shah Mr. Htendra Chaturvedi
C)[gef Financial Officer Company secretary
Membership No: A45158

Date: April 29, 2023 Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai




ADAN! CARITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

SCHEDLULES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

Annexure b

{As required in terms of Paragraph 19 of Master Direction - Nen-Banking Financial Commpany - Systemically Important and Mon-Deposit
tzking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

(Rs. in L.akhs)

Amaunt Amount
FParticulars Outstanding Overdue
Llabitties side
(N Loans and advances avalied by the
non banking financial company inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid.
(a) Debentures : Secured 14,955 -
Unseeured . -
{other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(h) Deferred Credits
(e} Term Loans (including loan repayable on demand) 201,61
() Inter-corperate Ivans and borrawings 1.000
(&) Commercial Paper 2476
{f) Other Loans - Suhardinated Debt 5762
Assels side Amount

Outstanding
{2) Break-up of Loans and Advanaes including bills
recelvables [other than those included in {4) balew]
(&) Secured 255491
{b) Untecured 17,284

(3) Break up of Leazed Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards Asset Finance activities

(N Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(3) Financial lease
{b) Operating lease -
(i) Stock onm hire tnetuding hire charges under sundry delitors:
(2} Assets on hire -
(b} Repossessad Assets
(114} other inans counting towards Asset Finance activities
(3} Loans whare assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

(4) Break-up of tnvestments
Cyrrent Investments

1. Quoted ;
{I) Shares : (a} Equity
(b) Preference
(i} Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Wnits of mutual funds
(iv) Goverament Sequrities
(v) Others (please specify)




2. Unquoted ;
{t) Spares : (a) Equity
(b) Preference -
{ii) Debentures and Bonds
(i1} Units of mutual tunds
(v} Government Securities
(v} Qthers -

Particulars Amaunt
Qutstanding
Lang Term investments :
1. Quoted ;
() Shares : (a) Equity
{t) Preference
(ii} Debentures and Bonds
{il¥) Units of mutwal funds
(v} Gavernment Securities
{v) Others (please specify)

2. Ungquated

(i) Shares : {a) Equity 2.397
(o) Preference '

(i) Debentures and Bonds

(i) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Goverament Securities -

(v) Others - Security Raceipts 1.5%9

(5) Borrawer group-wise classification of assets financed as in {2) and (3) above

Please see Note 2 betow:
Ambpunt net of provisions

Category Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(2} Subsidiaries . -
(0} Campantes in the same group -
{c) Other related parties -
2- Qther than related parties 255,43 17,2684 272,775
Total 255,491 17,284 2725
{6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments
(current and long term) in shares and securities
{both quated and unguoted):
Please see note 4 above:
Category Market Value / Book value
Break up or fair {Net of
valde ar NAY Provisians)
1. Ralated Parties
(&) Subsidiaries
{b) Companias in the sama group - -
{c) Other related parties )
2. Other than related parties 3,935 3,235
Total 3935 3,835




(7} Other information Afhaunt
Particylars
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
{a} Related parties .
{b) Ctner than related parties 4.000
{i) Nat Mon-Pearfortming Assets
{a) Related parties
() Other than related parties 2433
(i) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt






